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Corporate Information
NAER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa

Mr. Lo Kai Bong (appointed on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Au Chung On John (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva (appointed on 31 March 2017)

Ms. Yeung So Lai (resigned on 31 March 2017)
Ms. Cheng Mei Ching (resigned on 31 March 2017)
Ms. Yeung So Mui (resigned on 20 July 2017)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Tong Wing Chi

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
The Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE
PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

3/F., Club House of Le Paysage

Buiji Street

Longgang District, Shenzhen City

Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Room 1201-1202, 12/F., China Merchants Tower

Shun Tak Centre

168-200 Connaught Road Central

Sheung Wan

Hong Kong
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PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER
OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN ISLANDS

SMP Partners (Cayman) Limited

Royal Bank House - 3rd Floor

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

In Hong Kong:

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

In the PEOPLE’S REPUBLIC OF CHINA:
China CITIC Bank

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For other information relating to the Company, please contact
Corporate Communications Department

website: www.suncitygroup.com.hk

e-mail:  ir@suncitygroup.com.hk
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Properties Portfolio Overview
YHEASEE

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS
Completed project

Saleable Interest

Site Area GFA (m?) Area Commencement/ attributable

Project name Place (m?) Residential Shop  Others™ Total (m?) completion date  to the Group

Le Paysage Shenzhen 42,233 90,053 5,890 42,180 138,123 96,953 2008/Q1-2014/Q3 100%
Properties under development/to be developed

Saleable Interest

. GFA (m?) .

Site Area Area Commencement/ attributable

Project name Place (m?) Residential Shop  Others!" Total (m?) completion date  to the Group

The Landale Chaohu 122,363 78,120 4,854 2,782 85,756 82,974 2005/Q2-2019/Q4 100%

Fushun Project Shenyang 72,350 N/A N/A N/A N/A 195,345 note (2) 90%

PROPERTY LEASING BUSINESS

100% owned

Project name Place by the Group
Leaseable area
(m?)
Gang Long City Shopping Shenzhen 64,397
Centre
Notes:

(1) Includes club house and car parking spaces

(2) The project is still in the initial design and planning stage.
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Properties Portfolio Overview

EHEESTE
VIERREK
ExERIEB
LT REDE (m) THEER £%8
BEHEM ok (m?) iz G Hgo |3t m)  BI/BIKYE EGE:
F LB Y 42,233 90,053 5890 42180 138,123 96,953 2008/Q1-2014/Q3  100%
ER% SHRYWE
LHEE BEER (m?) THERR KEM
BEHEM ok (m?) iz (G Heg A3t m) BI/BIHYE EGEz
PN i Ly 122,363 78,120 4,854 2782 85756 82,974 2005/Q2-2019/Q4  100%
H)EE B & 72,350 TEf TER NEH T@EA 195,345 152 90%
MEBEEEK
AEHE
HEE® i 25 15100%#E 25
oA EE
(m?)
V[ 0 BE ) R 0 il 64,397

5L -

(1) BEFGRMEEL

2 WNHZBABNEVSRITRREER-

—ELEEE  ABEHERZRERAT o)




Group Financial Summary
EEFE

Result E
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETT AREFTT AR®TT ARET:X
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (&5) (E3) (E3))
Revenue LN 544,708 1,108,841 777,211 959,781 226,830
Change in fair value of investment BREMELDAEE
properties (7,100) 40,000 95,000 467,000 49,210
Change in fair value of derivative THEERIAZRAE
financial instruments 25 (329,855) 17,704 - - -
Reversal of provisions (provisions) for ~ SFiAB Rl (B45)
litigations 289,240 (130,761) (114,393) (98,406) (89,628)
(Provision) reversal of provision for EBHERE (BE)BE
potential claims #m (41,882) 14,937 (15,137) - -
(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment 37 7R 2 (R{EE
loss recognised in respect of B) R EEERD
inventories (57,034) (21,557) 13,367 59,612 (57,000)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of 77 2 2 i EE 1B
goodwill - (4,039 - (3,564) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  Ft I BEMNEN &
prepayment for land use right ERZAEER - (99,330) - - -
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment  #tIERE1 4 EiR 4 R
loss) recognised in respect of deposits 2 il (B 5 18 @
for non-current assets (REER) 438,000 (316,259) - - -
Share of result of an associate AN ES (37) - - - -
Gain (loss) on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMNB R Al 2 Wz
(B#E) - 1,145 - (2,001) 100
Finance costs BENAR (118,046) (192,137) (296,431) (347,102) (211,070)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AR (B18) 262,084 (393,452) (230,606) (47,420) (669,620)
Income tax expense FEHAX (65,191) (318,839) (161,504) (239,763) (36,091)
Profit (loss) for the year KEEER (B18) 196,893 (712,291) (392,110) (287,183) (705,711)
Other comprehensive income (expense) A4 H i 2 E A
for the year (AZ) 392 (234) - - -
Total comprehensive income (expense) for £ /& B A
the year (Fx%) s 197,285 (712,525) (392,110) (087,183) (705,711)
Total comprehensive income (expense) AR EIHEA AEEEE
attributable to owners of the Company WA (B ) 4% 197,394 (702,470) (391,185) (286,316) (705,711)
Total comprehensive expense FERERELZER
attributable to non-controling interests 37 4858 (109) (10,055) (925) (867) -
197,285 (712,525 (392,110)  (287,183)  (705,711)
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Group Financial Summary

SEIBEEE

Assets, Liabilities and Non-controlling Interests EE BERFERESR
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRE AR%Tr ARBEFT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(851) (E751) (&%) (E751)
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,834,649 1,970,453 2,274,831 2,144,087 1,499,566
Current assets MBEE 1,084,052 1,004,600 1,342,918 2,035,495 2,422 214
Current liabilities HEAE (2,403,566)  (2,277,216)  (3,363,623) (2,906,351) (3,481,114)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (762,950) (1,170,883 (821,393) (1,459,128) (337,666)
Non-controlling interests iR 10,772 10,663 5,217 4,292 -

Deficit attributable to owners of the A2 7% B AELG

Company B4 (237,043) (462,383) (562,050) (181,605) 103,000
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

The board (“Board”) of directors (“Director”) of Suncity Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to announce the
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil). The Group
will formulate appropriate dividend policy in accordance with the
development needs in the future.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The Group has commenced to deliver Le Paysage to buyers since
the fourth quarter of 2014. With the heating up of Shenzhen property
market and we began to deliver the boutique highrise building and
villa residential units, the gross profit margin in property development
segment has increased from 46.60% in the year of 2016 to 76.97%
in the year of 2017. Looking ahead, we expect the government
policies will remain unchanged and the local governments will fine-
tune and introduce targeted policies based on growth properties
stock, properties prices and land prices. In the meantime, the Group
will actively examine the developing real estate markets outside
China. Asian countries, such as Korea, Malaysia and Vietnam are
among the initial target markets of the Group.

The Group has been actively developed its travel agent business
since the acquisition of the entire interest of Sun Travel Ltd. (“Sun
Travel”) in 2016. The sale of hotel accommodation products and ferry
tickets increased significantly during the year ended 31 December
2017. According to the information published by the Statistics and
Census Service of the Macau Government, the average occupancy
rate of hotels and guesthouses increased from 83.3% in 2016 to
86.9% in 2017 and the number of guests through travel agents
increased from approximately 5.4 million in 2016 to approximately
5.8 million in 2017. With the continual growth in number of visitors to
Macau and more specifically, the increase in overnight visitors, it is
anticipated that revenue from travel agent business will continue to
grow in the future.

Having entered into the technical services agreement to provide
pre-opening and technical services to integrated resorts, the Group
commenced to receive revenue during the year ended 31 December
2017 and will continue to explore opportunities in Asia.

8 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Cont’d)

On 27 July 2017, the Group entered the acquisition agreement in
relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest in
and shareholder’s loan owned by Star Admiral Limited, which is
a company indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr.
Chau). Star Admiral Limited owns approximately 34% equity interest
in a project company, in which its principal asset is an integrated
resort project in Hoi An, Vietham. We expect this acquisition shall
complete by first half year of 2018, subject to the fulfiiment of the
conditions precedent as disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 1 November 2017.

The Group will continue to explore and invest in potential projects
and business opportunities with good potential and to further
expand its tourism-related business to other countries in the Asian
market.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to bear its social responsibility and
contribute to the weak and poor. The employees of the Group have
actively participated in various charity activities involving cultural
education, disaster relief, environmental protection, health and
hygiene, as well as public transportation of the municipal. The Group
will continue to promote our corporate culture of dedicating sincerity
and love to the community internally, and bear our related social
responsibility.

Chairman’s Statement
FEWE
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust in, understanding of
and support to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also like
to thank all staffs for their tremendous effort and contribution. We
will continue to explore new business opportunities in the challenging
year ahead and strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

29 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue: Revenue was derived from (i) the sale of properties, and

(ii) the leasing of properties, (iii) the provision of hotel and integrated
resort management and consultancy services, and (iv) the provision
of travel related products and services. Revenue for the year was
approximately RMB544.7 million, decreased by approximately
RMB564.1 million when compared to approximately RMB1,108.8
million (restated) for the last year. The decrease was due to lower
contributions from property sales and rental income, netting off with
the increase in revenue from provision of travel related products and
services and provision of hotel and integrated resort management
and consultancy services.

In respect of sales proceed of properties delivered, we have
delivered residential units of approximately 1,202m? (31 December
2016: 23,489m?) gross floor area (“GFA”), which includes high-rise
building units of approximately 204m? (2016: 13,775m?) GFA, luxury
high-rise building units of approximately 215m? (31 December 2016:
6,821m?) GFA and villa of approximately 783m? (31 December 2016:
2,893m?) GFA in 2017.

Revenue from provision of travel related products and services
has been growing rapidly, contributing a total of approximately
RMB354.1 million in revenue for the year, representing an increase of
approximately RMB352.9 million over the previous year.

Revenue from the leasing of properties decreased as a result of the
decrease in occupancy rate during the year.

Provision of hotel and integrated resort management and
consultancy services is a new business of the Group and has
generated revenue of approximately RMB2.5 million for the year.

Other income, gains and losses: The significant increase in other
gains was mainly attributable to net exchange gain of approximately
RMB41.7 million when compared to net exchange loss of
approximately RMB80.9 million for the last year.

Selling and distribution expenses: The decrease in 2017 was
mainly attributable to the decrease in commission paid for the sales
of Le Paysage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN LD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Administrative expenses: The increase in 2017 was mainly
attributable to the share-based compensation benefits of
approximately RMB24.4 million (31 December 2016: nil) and the
increase in directors’ remuneration by approximately RMB9.3 million.

Other operating expenses: The decrease in 2017 was mainly due
to the decrease in compensation and penalty paid.

Change in fair value of investment properties: The decrease in
2017 was mainly due to the prevailing market conditions.

Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments: In
December 2016, the Company issued convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$570 million (equivalent to approximately
RMB505.1 million) to Fame Select Limited, the major shareholder
of the Company. The change in fair value, as assessed by an
independent valuer, of derivative component has been recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Reversal of provisions (provisions) for litigations: As stated in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, since the Group
reached settlement agreements in relation to the Bank Claim (as
defined in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements) and
Consultant Claim during the year, reversal of provisions for litigations
amounting to approximately RMB289.2 million was recognised as
compared to provisions for litigations amounting to approximately
RMB130.8 million (restated) for the last year.

(Provision) reversal of provision for potential claims: As stated
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements, since certain
properties have been seized by the court in relation to the Bank
Claim during the year, provision for potential claims amounting
to approximately RMB41.9 million was provided, as compared to
reversal of provision for potential claims amounting to approximately
RMB14.9 million (restated) was provided for the last year.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories: The
amount represented the impairment loss recognised for the
difference between the cost and its net realisable value of a property
project in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), as assessed
by an independent valuer.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill: The amount
represented the impairment loss recognised on the goodwill arising
from the acquisition of the subsidiary, Sun Travel, during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

1 2 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of prepayment for
land use right: As stated in note 17(a) to the consolidated financial
statements, the amount represented the impairment loss recognised
on the prepayment for the consideration of the land use right and
related tax of a property project in the PRC.

Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) recognised in
respect of deposits for non-current assets: As stated in note
17(b) to the consolidated financial statements, since the Group
has received the fund of RMB150.0 million and RMB288.0 million
for Jiangsu Project (as defined in note 17(b) to the consolidated
financial statements) and Anhui Project (as defined in note 17(b)
to the consolidated financial statements) after a series of follow
up collection actions taken by management of the Group, reversal
of impairment loss of such deposits of RMB438.0 million was
recognised during the year, when compared to the impairment loss
of approximately RMB316.3 million recognised for the last year.

Share of result of an associate: The amount represented the
share of loss and other comprehensive expense of the Group’s
associate.

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: The amount represented
the gain recognised on the disposal of subsidiaries, Vanilla Rose
Investments Limited together with its subsidiaries, to an independent
third party.

Finance costs: Finance costs comprised interests on interest-
bearing loan and effective interest expenses on the convertible bond.
The decrease in 2017 was mainly due to the decrease of interest-
bearing loans.

Income tax expense: Income tax expense included current tax and
deferred tax and the decrease for the year was mainly due to the
decrease in sale of properties.

SEGMENT ANALYSIS

In 2017, property development income, property leasing income,
hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy
services income and travel agency services income accounted
for approximately 24.33% (31 December 2016: 94.56%), 10.19%
(831 December 2016: 5.33%), 0.47% (31 December 2016: 0.00%)
and 65.01% (31 December 2016: 0.11%) of the total revenue
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN LD

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
GEARING

Total pledged bank deposits, restricted bank deposits and
bank balances and cash as at 31 December 2017 amounted to
approximately RMB308.8 million (31 December 2016: RMB145.1
million) which included approximately RMB262.4 million, US$0.01
million, MOPO.3 million and HK$55.1 million respectively.

The Group had total bank and other borrowings of approximately
RMB617.5 million as at 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016:
RMB715.0 million) of which approximately RMB212.5 million were
repayable on demand or within one year; approximately RMB40.0
million were repayable in the second year; approximately RMB140.0
million were repayable in the third to fifth year, inclusive; and
the remainings were repayable after the fifth year. The Group’s
borrowings carried interest at fixed or floating interest rates. The
Group’s total bank and other borrowings divided by total assets as
at 31 December 2017 was 21.16% (31 December 2016: 24.03%).

The Group had convertible bond and derivative financial instruments
of approximately RMB411.1 million (31 December 2016: RMB365.3
million (restated)) and RMB439.9 million (31 December 2016:
RMB130.0 million (restated)), respectively. The total of convertible
bond and derivative financial instruments divided by total assets as
at 31 December 2017 was 29.16% (31 December 2016: 16.64%).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had current assets of
approximately RMB1,084.1 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,004.6
million (restated)) and current liabilities of approximately RMB2,403.6
million (31 December 2016: RMB2,277.2 million (restated)).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB617.5 million were secured by certain
investment properties and inventories of the Group of approximately
RMB1,724.9 million (31 December 2016: RMB1,732.0 million) and
RMB178.1 million (31 December 2016: RMB250,0 million (restated))
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGE ON ASSETS (Cont’d)
As at 31 December 2017, pledged deposits of approximately

RMB5.6 million (31 December 2016: RMB1.3 million) were pledged
for the license and suppliers in relation to Sun Travel, an indirect

wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

As at 31 December 2017, pledged deposits of approximately
RMB297,000 (31 December 2016: RMB296,000) have been pledged
with the banks as guarantee deposits for the mortgage loan facilities
granted to the buyers of the Group’s properties.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

The Group conducts its business primarily in Renminbi. Except
for bank balances and cash of approximately HK$48.5 million and
US$0.01 million, pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$6.6
million, convertible bond in the principal amount of HK$570 million
and promissory note of approximately HK$5.6 million, the Group
did not have material exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates.
The Group did not engage in any derivative activities and did not
commit to any financial instruments to hedge its statement of
financial position exposure to fluctuations in exchange rates as at 31
December 2017.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
For the details of contingent liabilities, please refer to the note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE
The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a staff force of
approximately 168 (31 December 2016: 250) employees. Of this,
most were stationed in the PRC. The remuneration of employees
was in line with the market trend and commensurable to the level
of pay in the industry. Remuneration of the Group’s employees
includes basic salaries, bonuses and long-term incentives (such as
share option scheme). Total staff costs incurred for the year 2017
was approximately RMB38.7 million (31 December 2016: RMB33.7
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEEN LD

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the development of residential
and commercial properties as well as leasing of commercial
properties in Guangdong, Liaoning and Anhui Provinces, the
PRC, and providing hotel and integrated resort management and
consultancy service and travel agency service.

Property Development
Summary of development and status of existing projects are
reported in the following paragraphs.

Completed Project

Le Paysage: Le Paysage is in the boarder land of Luohu district
and Longgang district of Shenzhen, on the hillside of the east side
of Qingping expressway and Fengyi mountain tunnel. Le Paysage
consists of premier villas, residential units and retail shops with
planned GFA of approximately 138,000m?. In March 2013, the Group
launched pre-sales part of Le Paysage and was well received by the
market. The project is completed and to deliver in phases in the third
quarter of 2014 onwards.

Projects Under Development

The Landale: The Landale, formerly known as Vacation Water Town,
and is situated in Zhongmiao Town of Chaohu in Anhui Province.
The Landale consists of lake-side villas and residential units with
planned GFA of 85,756m?. To cope with the rectification, integration
and development of Chaohu Scenic Area, the Group planned to
postpone the development progress of The Landale and commence
pre-sale of the project in phases in 2019 onwards.

Fushun Project: The Group acquired a land at Hua Mao Jie Dong,
Fushun Economic Development Zone in Liaoning Province, the
PRC. The site area of the land is approximately of 72,350m? with
a plot ratio of more than 1 but less than 2.7 and the planned GFA
of approximately of 195,345m?. The land use of the land is for
commercial and residential use. The project is still in the initial design
and planning stage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)
Properties Leasing and Management
Hong Long Plaza: Hong Long Plaza is situated in Bao Min 2nd

Road, Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province, the
PRC. Hong Long Plaza is a commercial and residential complex
occupying a total GFA of approximately 172,630m?. For residential
portion, it comprises three 25 to 27 storey towers with a total of
approximately 1,500 residential units erected on a 5-storey shopping
mall and a 2-storey basement for car parking. It is managed by
Shenzhen Sun Era Management Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group. The commercial portion of Hong Long
Plaza, namely Gang Long City Shopping Centre, comprise a total
GFA of approximately 64,397m? for a shopping mall. Gang Long
City Shopping Centre is held by the Group for leasing purpose and
is managed by Shenzhen Gang Long City Commercial Management
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group.

Hotel and Integrated Resort Management and Consultancy
Hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy represents
the provision of management and consultancy services to hotels and
integrated resorts.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered
into memorandums of understanding in relation to the provision of
management and consultancy services to two integrated resorts in
Vietnam.

On 22 September 2017, the Group entered into the technical
services agreement with Van Don Sun Joint Stock Company, an
independent third party, which owns and in the course of developing
an integrated resort in Van Don District, Quang Ninh Province,
Vietnam, to provide pre-opening and technical services.

Travel Agency Service

On 6 February 2017, Sun Travel entered into (i) a hotel
accommodation procurement agreement and (i) a ferry ticket supply
agreement with Sun City Gaming Promotion Company Limited (“Sun
City Gaming Promotion”), a related company which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Chau, the Chairman of the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE T Mo

BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

Travel Agency Service (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the hotel accommodation procurement agreement,
Sun Travel may from time to time to procure from Sun City Gaming
Promotion the hotel accommodation products, subject to the cap of
HK$120 million (the “Original Cap”) from the commencement date
of hotel accommodation procurement agreement to 31 December
2017.

Pursuant to the ferry ticket supply agreement, Sun City Gaming
Promotion may from time to time purchase from Sun Travel the ferry
tickets and other complementary services, subject to the annual
caps of HK$8.5 million in 2017, HK$10 million in 2018 and HK$10
million in 2019 respectively.

On 15 May 2017, Sun Travel and Sun City Gaming Promotion
entered into a revised hotel accommodation procurement agreement
to amend the Original Cap to HK$420 million and to provide the
annual caps of HK$570 million and HK$590 million for the years
ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019, respectively.

Investment in Integrated Resort

On 27 July 2017, the Group entered into the acquisition agreement
in relation to the proposed acquisition of the entire equity interest
in and shareholder’s loan to Star Admiral Limited, which indirectly
owns approximately 34% equity interest in an integrated resort in Hoi
An, Quang Nam Province, Vietnam, which is expected to complete
by first half year of 2018 subject to the fulfilment of the conditions
precedents as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 1
November 2017.
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Biographical Detalls of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa, aged 43, was born in Macau. Mr. Chau joined

the Company on 2 September 2011 as an executive Director and
acted as the Chairman of the Company since 8 November 2011.
Mr. Chau was also appointed as directors of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Chau engaged in the business of operating and
managing VIP clubs in hotels. Mr. Chau was previously an executive
director and the chairman of Sun International Group Limited
(formerly known as “Sun International Resources Limited”) (Stock
Code: 8029) (“Sun International”), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprises Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”) and resigned on 5 July 2018.

Mr. Lo Kai Bong, aged 38, joined the Company on 9 March 2017
as an executive Director. Mr. Lo has obtained a Bachelor of Arts
degree from the University of Winnipeg in Canada. Mr. Lo is the
Chief Investment Officer of Suncity Group and has been involved in
business development of Suncity Group’s overseas businesses. Mr.
Lo is also responsible for the corporate management and mergers
and acquisitions of Suncity Group and is experienced in the gaming
industry. Prior to his appointment as an executive Director, Mr. Lo
was appointed as an executive director of Sun International from 13
August 2013 to 28 February 2015.

Mr. Au Chung On John, aged 58, joined the Company on 31
March 2017 as an executive Director and was appointed as a
director of Suncity Group Management and Consultancy Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company with effect from
1 April 2017. Mr. Au has obtained a Bachelor of Social Science
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1983. He has
more than 13 years of experience in the gaming industry. From 2004
to 2016, Mr. Au was the senior director of business development,
director of operations as well as various senior management
positions at one of the major gaming concessionaires in Macau.
His major roles included but not limited to establishing business
strategies, driving overall performance and control of VIP business,
and overseeing both gaming and non-gaming operation of newly
established properties. Representing the company, Mr. Au was a
member of gaming related committees formed by the six Macau
concessionaires and sub-concessionaires to provide advice to the
relevant regulatory bodies of the Macau government.
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Biographical Detalls of Directors
EEVRRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, aged 64, joined the Company on 31
March 2017 as an executive Director. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva had
served at The Gaming Inspection and Coordination Bureau (“‘DICJ”),
the Macau gaming regulator, for more than 43 years and was
appointed as the Head of Inspection at DICJ from 2003 to 20186,
during which he was responsible for overseeing the casino operation
in Macau. Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva is recognised across Asia as an
expert on casino game rules, internal controls in casinos, the control
of junket and VIP gaming operations and in the regulation of gaming
machines. He serves as a consultant to a number of substantial
industry participants, including machine manufacturers, casino
operators and other industry suppliers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tou Kin Chuen, aged 41, joined the Company on 26 April
2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman of
audit committee and the members of remuneration committee and
nomination committee. Mr. Tou is the principal of Roger K.C. Tou
& Co. Mr. Tou graduated from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College) with a Honours
Diploma in Accounting in 2001. He is experienced in audit, taxation,
company secretarial, insolvency and finance for over 19 years.
Mr. Tou is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and an associate of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Tou has been the independent non-executive
director of Sun International and Milan Station Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1150), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 22 July 2015.

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick, aged 79, joined the Company on 26
April 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of nomination committee and the members of audit committee
and remuneration committee. Dr. Wu obtained his LL.B. degree
and Honorary Doctorate of the University from the University of
Buckingham, United Kingdom. Dr. Wu is also an Associate of
Chartered Institute of Arbitrators and a Barrister of the Inner Temple,
the Victorian Bar, Australia and the Singapore Bar. Dr. Wu was
awarded Diploma in Chinese Law by the then University of East Asia,
Macau, now known as the University of Macau. Dr. Wu has been at
the Hong Kong Bar for over 37 years. He is a practising member of
the Hong Kong Bar Association.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, aged 49, joined the Company on 10
October 2012 as an independent non-executive Director, the
chairman of remuneration committee and the members of audit
committee and nomination committee. Mr. Lo graduated from
the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree of
Science (with honours) in Computer Science in 1991. Mr. Lo is
experienced in securities and finance industry for over 20 years. He
is currently the managing director (equities) and head of institutional
sales of SBI China Capital Financial Services Limited.
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Directors’ Report
EEgHE

The Board is pleased to present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 31 March 2017, together with the
approval of the Register of Companies in the Cayman Islands on
11 April 2017 and the approval of the Registrar of Companies in
Hong Kong on 12 May 2017, the name of the Company has been
changed from “Sun Century Group Limited Kt SEBEHR A A"
to “Suncity Group Holdings Limited AB5 ¥ & B A AR A 77 with
effect from 11 April 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SUBSIDIARIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017 are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position on page 71
and page 73 of this annual report respectively.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM RIGHTS ISSUE

On 20 September 2016, the Company proposed to raise the gross
proceeds of not less than approximately HK$901.4 million and not
more than approximately HK$960.7 million by way of issuing not less
than 4,506,944,175 rights shares and not more than 4,803,587,904
rights shares at the subscription price of HK$0.20 per rights share
on the basis of three rights shares for every one share of the
Company on the record date. The rights issue has been completed
on 16 December 2016 and the net proceeds from the rights issue
amounting to approximately HK$892.92 million (after deducting the
cost and expenses in relation to the rights issue). Details of the rights
issue please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 20
September 2016, 7 October 2016, 13 October 2016, 25 October
2016, 14 November 2016, 15 November 2016 and 15 December
2016, the circular of the Company dated 28 October 2016, and the
prospectus of the Company dated 22 November 2016. Such net
proceeds have been used in the following manner:
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Directors’ Report
EEgHE

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.

RESERVES

Details of the movement in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 44b to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise share
premium, capital reserve and accumulated losses. The Company has
no reserves available for distribution to the shareholders as at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Details of the investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group’s largest customer and the five largest
customers taken together accounted for 15.97% and 42.34% of the
aggregate of the Group’s total turnover for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and the five largest
suppliers taken together accounted for 85.44% and 98.42% of the
Group’s total purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors, their
respective associates or, so far as the Directors are aware, any
shareholder who owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company has any interest in any of the said top five customers
and suppliers of the Group for the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa (Chairman)

Ms. Yeung So Lai (resigned on 31 March 2017)

Ms. Cheng Mei Ching (resigned on 31 March 2017)

Ms. Yeung So Mui (resigned on 20 July 2017)

Mr. Lo Kai Bong (appointed on 9 March 2017)

Mr. Au Chung On John (appointed on 31 March 2017)
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva (appointed on 31 March 2017)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen

Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS
The biographical details of the current Directors are set out on page
19 to page 21 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND
ROTATION

The appointment of each Director is subject to retirement by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance
with the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles”). All of
the executive Directors do not enter any service contract with
the Company. All of the independent non-executive Directors
have entered a service contract with the Company for a term of
3 years and subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles and the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles, Mr. Lo Kai Bong,
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen and Mr. Lo Wai Tung John shall retire from the
Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Other than disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered or
has proposed to enter into any service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not expiring or determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
Details of Directors’ emoluments on a named basis are set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements.

ANNUAL CONFIRMATION FROM INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and both the Board and the
nomination committee considered that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, EERRM HEROIESFH 2’
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES =

MR2017F12A31H  EF R AR R ET M
HEOEE (REBLERBEEN ([BEERHE
fEpl]) EXVER 2 EE) ([HEEEE]) 2K
B HARORESTREREBERHE
GBI 535216 BHFE 2 T BMATE IR
TETABEEETEELERH 2 IZETFH ([12
ESPR )W BITHNEAD R R

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) (the “Associated
Corporations”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model 20 :
Code”) were as follows:
LONG POSITION IN THE SHARES OF THE COMPANY REQATRBZHER
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
Capacity in which Number of under equity of shares in
Name of director shares are held shares held derivatives Total issue*
%
HEZROMGE
BRERARLTE BITROABH
T ARXEHE ZEDH*
EEnA BRERGZEH BHEROEE igriged 4= At %
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa Interest of controlled 4,345,489,489"  2,192,307,692° 6,537,797,181 108.59%
(“Mr. Chau”) corporation
BElRELEE ([FALE]) ZEGHEB 2 #5
Beneficial owner - 196,666,667° 196,666,667 3.27%
EnEEA
Mr. Lo Kai Bong (“Mr. Lo”) Beneficial owner - 173,333,333¢ 173,333,333 2.88%
ERMHEE ([EXE]) BEmERBA
Mr. Au Chung On John Interest of spouse 400,000 - 400,000 0.01%
(“Mr. Au”)
Bhzsd ([MEE]) RBRER
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva  Beneficial owner 290,000 3,000,000% 3,290,000 0.05%
Manuel Assis Da Silva B A A
ke
Interest of spouse 520,000 - 520,000 0.01%

FciBiEs
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Notes:

28

This represents interests held by Mr. Chau through Fame Select Limited, which
holds 4,345,489,489 shares. Mr. Chau has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited
and is therefore deemed to be interested in 4,345,489,489 shares.

This represents the maximum of 2,192,307,692 conversion shares to be issued
upon the full conversion of the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Fame
Select Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments).
Mr. Chau has 50% interests in Fame Select Limited and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 2,192,307,692 underlying shares.

This represents the maximum of 196,666,667 conversion shares to be issued upon
full conversion of another convertible bonds, which will be issued by the Company
to the vendor (or as it may direct in writing) for settlement of an acquisition, at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments).

This represents the maximum of 133,333,333 conversion shares to be issued
upon the full conversion of another convertible bonds, which will be issued by
the Company to the vendor (or as it may direct in writing) for settlement of an
acquisition, at the initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments). Mr.
Lo is also interested in 40,000,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$0.455
per share to subscribe for shares.

Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva is interested in 3,000,000 share options at an exercise
price of HK$0.455 per share to subscribe for shares.

The percentage has been calculated based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2017 (i.e. 6,020,818,900 shares).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the

Directors had any other interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
Associated Corporations which had been entered in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in notes 30 and 36 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Convertible Bond/Derivative Financial
Instruments” and “Related Party Disclosures”, respectively, no other
contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to the date of this annual
report, none of the Directors are considered to have interests in a
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements headed “Convertible Bond/Derivative Financial
Instruments” and the share option schemes described below, at no
time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of those persons (other
than the Directors) in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of

Directors’ Report

RAEQXBTBRA 2 EER#ER

20175128318 AR AR (7 B R iE
BELBEENENBERARFEFEZE
M ATRE sk S 2 ZEAT (BEERIN W0

the SFO were as follows: T
Percentage
Number of of aggregate
underlying interest shares
shares held to total number
Capacity in which Number of under equity of shares in
Name shares were held shares held derivatives Total issue*
BRESTETIR BREZRAMEE
FEHEBR®BZ BRITRAAEZ
BEspns EERGZEH BFERGHE A st Btk
Fame Select Limited Beneficial owner 4,345,489,489"  2,192,307,692° 6,537,797,181 108.59%
BEBRAIDA EmEEA
Mr. Cheng Ting Kong Interest of controlled 4,345,489,489"  2,192,307,692° 6,537,797,181 108.59%
(“Mr. Cheng”) corporation
BTHEEE([BEE]) XEHEE 2R
Mr. Chau Interest of controlled 4,345,489,489"  2,192,307,6922 6,537,797,181 108.59%
B%HE corporation
ZEEHEE 2 Em
Beneficial owner - 196,666,667° 196,666,667 3.27%
EnlEA
Magicmount Holdings Beneficial owner 337,719,868* - 337,719,868 5.61%

Limited (“Magicmount”)

BEERERAA EmfEAA
(Mz&1)
Notes:

1.

30

Fame Select Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng.
As such, Mr. Chau and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in 4,345,489,489
shares held by Fame Select Limited.

This represents the maximum of 2,192,307,692 conversion shares upon the full
conversion of the convertible bonds previously issued by the Company to Fame
Select Limited at the initial conversion price of HK$0.26 (subject to adjustments).
Fame Select Limited is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau and 50% by Mr. Cheng. As
such, Mr. Chau and Mr. Cheng are deemed to be interested in the 2,192,307,692
underlying shares.

This represents the maximum of 196,666,667 conversion shares to be issued upon
full conversion of another convertible bonds, which will be issued by the Company
to the vendor (or as it may direct in writing) for settlement of an acquisition, at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.90 (subject to adjustments).

Magicmount is wholly-owned by Mr. Kwan Tat Ming. As such, Mr. Kwan Tat Ming is
deemed to be interested in 337,719,868 shares held by Magicmount.

The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number of shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2017 (i.e. 6,020,818,900 shares).
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SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, the Company
had not been notified of any interests and short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which had been
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there was sufficiency of
public float of the Company’s securities as required under the Listing
Rules up to the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION

On 31 January 2007, in recognition of the contributions made by
employees of the Group towards its growth and success, a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
shareholder’s written resolution of the Company. On 2 June 2016,
a resolution has been passed in the 2016 annual general meeting
of the Company to terminate the Share Option Scheme and adopt
a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”).
Following the termination of the Share Option Scheme, no further
options will be granted under such scheme, but in all other respects
the provisions of the Share Option Scheme will remain in full force
and effect and options granted prior to such termination will continue
to be valid and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Share
Option Scheme.

The Listing Committee of Stock Exchange has granted the listing of,
and permission to deal in the shares of the Company which may fall
to be issued pursuant to the exercise of the options which granted
and/or may be granted under the Share Option Scheme, and/or the
New Share Option Scheme, subsequently.

As at 31 December 2017, a total of 346,458,336 share options
were outstanding which comprised 95,958,336 share options and
250,500,000 share options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and the New Share Option Scheme respectively.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme and the New Share Option Scheme.

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

32
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or a company in which the Group holds an interest or
a subsidiary of such company (“Affiliate”);

(b) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or an
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which include
any director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or

(c) a company beneficially owned by any director, employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher
of:

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of one (1) share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued shares capital that it represented
as at the date of this annual report

No further options will be granted.

Maximum entitlerment of each participant
Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)

Period within which the securities must be taken up under
the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$10 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme has been terminated on 2 June 2016 but the
provisions of the scheme shall remain in full force and effect
in all other respects. Options complying with the provisions of
the Listing Rules which are granted during the duration of the
scheme and remain unexercised immediately prior to the date
of termination shall continue to be exercisable in accordance
with their terms of grant, notwithstanding the termination of the
scheme.

(B) New Share Option Scheme

Purpose
Recognise and acknowledge the contributions that the grantees
had made or may make to the Group.

Participants
Eligible participants include:

(@) full time or part time employees, executives, officers, or
directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) of the Group;
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(B) New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Participants

(b) and any business or joint venture partners, contractors,
agents or representatives, consultants, advisers, suppliers,
producers or licensors, customers, licensees (including any
sub-licensee) or distributors, landlords or tenants (including
any sub-tenants) of the Group.

Exercise price
Determined by the Board and shall not be less than the higher
of:

(@) the nominal value of the share;

(b) the closing price of one (1) share on the Stock Exchange at
the offer date, which must be a trading day; and

(c) the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date.

Total number of shares available for issue and the
percentage of the issued shares capital that it represented
as at the date of this annual report

500,425,890 shares, being approximately 8.31% of the issued
shares of the Company.
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ARE OPTION (Cont’d)

New Share Option Scheme (Cont’d)

Maximum entitlemment of each participant

Not exceed 1% of the shares in issue in any 12-month period.

Period within which the securities must be taken up under
the option

Subject to the discretion by the Board and, in the absence of
which, from the date of acceptance to the earlier of the date on
which such option lapses and 10 years from the date of offer.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised
Subject to the discretion by the Board.

Amount payable on acceptance
HK$1 payable upon acceptance of the offer.

Period within which calls/loans must be made/repaid
Not applicable.

Remaining life of the scheme

The scheme will be valid and effective until 2 June 2026, after
which no further options will be granted but the provisions of the
scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects.
Options complying with the provisions of the Listing Rules which
are granted during the duration of the scheme and remain
unexercised immediately prior to 2 June 2026 shall continue
to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of grant,
notwithstanding the expiry of the scheme.
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SHARE OPTION (Cont’d)
(C) MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

BRE (&)

Movements of the share options, which were granted under
the Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December
2017 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the

C) BRESFE 228

-

Directors’ Report
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Listing Rules:
During the year
B
Adjusted
exercise Exercisable
Category Date of grant Asat ® Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat A price period
LY REBH 1.1.2017 Rt BTk BE# BAR 3112200 BRRAHE bt
HKS
BT
Continuous Contract 15,05.2007 506,485 - - - (596,485)' - 4134 15,11.2007 -
Employees 14.05.2017
KEANES 10.10.2007 444,405 - - (444,4251 - - 6.728  10.04.2008 -
09.10.2017
12.12.2013 462,559 - - - - 462,559 0344 13.12.2013-
12.12.2028
Sub-total: /i 1,503,469 - - (444,425) (596,485) 462,559
Consultants 15052007 5,786,833 - - - (5,786,833) - 4134 15,11.2007 -
BB 14.05.2017
13022008 3,558,149 - - - - 3558149 3822 13.08.2008 -
12.02.2018
1212.2013 103,497,628 - (11,560,000 - - 91,937,628 0344 13122013 -
12.12.2028
Sub-total: /f: 112,842,610 - (11,560,000 - (5,786,833 95495777
Totl: #3t: 114,346,079 - (11,560,000) (444,425)  (6,383,318) 95,958,336
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SHARE OPTION (cont'd)
(C) MOVEMENTS OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME
(cont'd)

Notes:

1.

6,383,318 share options were lapsed under the Share Option Scheme upon
expiry of the life of the options during the year ended 31 December 2017.

444,425 share options were cancelled upon the resignation of an employee of
the Company.

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date on which the share options were exercised was HK$0.710.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case
of right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

(D) MOVEMENTS OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Movements of the share options, which were granted under the

38

New Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 December

2017 are listed below in accordance with rule 17.07 of the

BRE (&)
C)BRESE 228 (&)

P &L -

1. #EHE2017%F12A31H 1L FZ - 6,383,3181) fi#
A% A2 B 50 i PR AR 5 21 ) BB PR T2 O PR AR R S AR A

FHEIRA -

2. 4444250 RN AR E — B IR BB BUR B

B8

3. EEERETEZBINAQBRNEMETS
W& /0.710/8 T -

4. BREZTEESEEH#RIKBITARIAL
B Bt SR By i #F A o

5. EBRECRBEBEE P AIRERERR
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(D) FTHEIREFT & 2B B
HE2017F12A31A L FE - REHE
feEst SR 2 BBk i F B ik TR A
E17.071K5) R~ T

Listing Rules:
During the year
£k
Adjusted
exercise
price/
Exercise Exercisable
Category Date of grant Asat Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat A price period
BRRAEE
L)) RLAH 112017 Ri Bk B BE% 2200 /FfEE f:d
HKS$
BT
Consultants 11.01.2017 - 150,000,000" - - - 150,000,000 0202 11.01.2017-
B 1001.2027
19.04.2017 - 16,500,000% - - - 16,500,000 0700 19.04.2017 -
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 - 4,100,000° - - - 4,100,000 0700 19.04.2017 -
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 - 6,150,000° - - - 6,150,000 0700  19.04.2018 -
18.04.2027
19.04.2017 - 10,250,000° - - - 10,250,000 0700 19.04.2019-
18.04.2027
Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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SHARE OPTION (cont'd) BRE (&)
(D) MOVEMENTS OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME (D) FERESE 2 (&)
(cont'd)
During the year
ER
Adjusted
exercise
price/
Exercise Exercisable
Category Date of grant Asat R Granted Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Asat price period
BRENEE
LF] RYUAH 1.1.2017 R Bfif 4] BAR 207 /fEE s
HKS
BT
04.00.2017 - 1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 0455  04.09.2017 -
08.09.2027
04.00.2017 - 2,100,000¢ - - - 2,100,000 0455  04.09.2018 -
08.09.2027
04.09.2017 - 3500,000¢ - - - 3,500,000 0455 04.09.2019 -
08.09.2027
Sub-total: \3f : - 194,000,000 - - - 194,000,000
Directors
gz
Lo Kai Bong 04.00.2017 - 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 0455  04.09.2017 -
EEH 03.09.2027
04.09.2017 - 12,000,000¢ - - - 12,000,000 0455 04.09.2018 -
08.09.2027
04.00.2017 - 20,000,000* - - - 20,000,000 0455  04.09.2019 -
08.09.2027
Manugl Assis Da Silva 04.00.2017 - 600,000 - - - 600,000 0455  04.09.2017 -
08.09.2027
04.00.2017 - 900,000 - - - 900,000 0455  04.09.2018 -
08.09.2027
04.09.2017 - 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 0455  04.09.2019 -
08.09.2027
Sub-total?N 5 - 43,000,000 - - - 43,000,000
Continuous Contract 04.09.2017 - 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000 0455  04.09.2017 -
Employees 08.09.2027
HELNES 04.00.2017 - 4,050,000° - - - 4,050,000 0455 04.00.2018 -
08.09.2027
04.00.2017 - 6,750,000 - - - 6,750,000 0455  04.09.2019 -
08.09.2027
Sub-total/]\zt - 13,500,000 - - - 13,500,000
Total#23t - 250,500,000 - - - 250,500,000

—E—tEER  ABusEzREsRAT 39
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SHARE OPTION (cont'd)
(D) MOVEMENTS OF THE NEW SHARE OPTION SCHEME

40

(cont'd)

Notes:

No vesting period for the 150,000,000 share options granted on 11 January
2017. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date
of grant was HK$0.199.

No vesting period for the 16,500,000 share options granted on 19 April 2017.
The closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of
grant was HK$0.60.

Among the 20,500,000 share options granted on 19 April 2017, 4,100,000
share options vested on 19 April 2017, 6,150,000 shares options will vest on
19 April 2018 and 10,250,000 share options will vest on 19 April 2019. The
closing price of the Company’s share immediately before the date of grant
was HK$0.60.

Among the 63,500,000 share options granted on 4 September 2017,
12,700,000 share options vested on 4 September 2017, 19,050,000 shares
options will vest on 4 September 2018 and 31,750,000 share options will vest
on 4 September 2019. The closing price of the Company’s share immediately
before the date of grant was HK$0.46.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to the adjustment in case
of right or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share
capital.

When the share options are lapsed or cancelled, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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PENSION SCHEMES

The pension schemes of the Group are primarily in form of
contributions to the PRC statutory public welfare fund and Hong
Kong’s Mandatory Provident Fund, respectively.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 6 February 2017, Sun Travel,
subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i) the hotel accommodation

an indirect wholly-owned

procurement agreement (the “Original HAP agreement”); and (ii) the
ferry ticket supply agreement (the “Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement”)
with Sun City Gaming Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City
Gaming Promotion”).

The Original HAP agreement has a term commencing from the date
of approval of the Original HAP agreement at the extraordinary
general meeting (the “EGM”) held and convened and ending on 31
December 2017 (both dates inclusive) (the “Initial Term”), subject to
subsequent renewal in compliance with the Listing Rules. During the
term of the Original HAP agreement, Sun Travel may from time to
time procure from Sun City Gaming Promotion, and Sun City Gaming
Promotion may from time to time supply to Sun Travel, the provision
of hotel accommodation and related services, subject to the cap of
HK$120,000,000 (the “Original Annual Cap”).

The Ferry Ticket Supply Agreement has a term of three years
commencing from 6 February 2017 and ending on 31 December
2019 (both dates inclusive),
compliance with the Listing Rules. During the term of the Ferry Ticket
Supply Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion may from time to
time purchase from Sun Travel, and Sun Travel may from time to time

subject to subsequent renewal in

supply to Sun City Gaming Promotion, the provision of ferry tickets
and other complementary services, subject to the annual caps of
HK$8,500,000, HK$10,000,000 and HK$10,000,000 for each of the
three years (commencing from 6 February 2017) during the term.

On 15 May 2017, Sun Travel and Sun City Gaming Promotion
entered into a new hotel accommodation procurement agreement
(the “Revised HAP Agreement”) to amend the Original Annual
Cap and to provide additional annual caps. Taking into account
the development of the business of Sun Travel, the Board
proposed to revise the Original Annual Cap of HK$120,000,000 to
HK$420,000,000 for the Initial Term and to provide additional annual
caps for the years ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December
2019, respectively.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(cont'd)

Sun City Gaming Promotion is wholly owned by Mr. Chau, who is
the Chairman of the Company and an executive Director. Fame
Select Limited, which is owned as to 50% by Mr. Chau, is controlling
shareholder of the Company interested in approximately 72.17%
of the issued share capital of the Company. Accordingly, Sun
City Gaming Promotion is regarded as a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules, and therefore the transactions
contemplated under the Original HAP agreement, the Ferry Ticket
Supply Agreement and the Revised HAP Agreement constitute

BFEBEXS (#)

KEHBERNMTEARARREFERVITESAE
RERERB-BXARRFBFETERS
50%  RARAEBRERR HEARANE#H
TTIRAKIT2.17% - Btk KEBWIBR PN R
BEETRAKRBERARANEEANL Bt
BRI TR ANE14AS - [RBEEEERERE
% - MR 5 R KB RDE S (E B R
REHEATHETZIRHBRA QR MOE

continuing connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Parties to the transactions

Service provider

R 75 14 8 7

Service recipient

RIGESTT

REZATNT

Nature of transactions

LHME

Annual cap for

the year ended 31

December 2017
5=
2017512 A31H

LHFEZFEER

Total amount for
the year ended 31
December 2017
BHE
2017%12A31H
IEFE 2858

Sun City Gaming

Promotion

KEBWBEHN

Sun Travel

K Ik i

42

Sun Travel

N Dy

Sun City Gaming

Promotion

KW ERH N

Suncity Group Holdings Limited

provision of hotel accommodation
and related services

RMUE S (X1 MRS

provision of ferry tickets and other
complementary services

RUtMEREMEERS

Annual Report 2017

HK$420,000,000
(equivalent to
approximately

RMB363,000,000)

420,000,000 7T
(EERHARE
363,000,0007T )

HK$8,500,000
(equivalent to
approximately

RMB7,400,000)
8,500,000/ 7T
(HERHARK
7,400,0007T)

HK$376,608,596
(equivalent to
approximately

RMB326,889,000)

376,608,596/ JT

(HERDOARK

326,889,0007T.)

HK$6,864,376
(equivalent to
approximately

RMB5,958,000)
6,864,376/ T
(HEROARK
5,958,0007T )



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(cont'd)

Parties to the transactions (cont'd)

During the year, the above continuing connected transactions were
carried out within their respective annual caps. The independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that during the
year, the above continuing connected transactions were conducted
and entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms; and

(i) according to the agreements governing it on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company’s
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Full details of the above connected transactions are set out in the
announcements and circulars as aforesaid and are available in the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website at www.
suncitygroup.com.hk.

Details of other related party transactions are set out in Note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole and any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

BUSINESS REVIEW
“Group Financial Summary” on page 6 and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 11 to 18 form part of this Directors’ report.

The environmental policies and performance, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and relationships with employees are
also discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 58 to 62.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Facing the Company
The Group’s business performance in the year under review
was affected by the volatility and uncertainty of macro-economic
conditions in the PRC and Hong Kong.

The Group’s business is also exposure to credit, liquidity, interest
rate, foreign currency and equity price risks. An analysis of the
Group’s financial risk management is provided in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group recognise its responsibility to protect the environment
from its business activities. The Group continually seeks to identify
and manage environmental impacts attributable from our operational
activities in order to minimise these impacts if possible.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 December 2017 and up to the date of
this report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations
by the Group that has a significant impact on our business and
operation.

Future Development
“Review and Outlook” on page 9 from part of this Directors’ report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet
its immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended
31 December 2017, there was no material and significant dispute
between the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
5 June 2018 to 8 June 2018 (both dates inclusive) for determining
the identity of the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the annual general meeting (“AGM”). No transfer of shares will be
registered during this period. Shareholders whose name appears
on the register of members of the Company on 8 June 2018 shall
be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend and vote at the AGM, unregistered holders of the shares
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the share registrar and
transfer office of the Company, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 4 June 2018.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this report,
there was or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for
the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or an associate.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
For the details of events after the reporting period, please refer to
note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITORS

Andes Glacier CPA Limited resigned as auditor of the Company
on 20 July 2017, and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) was
appointed as auditor of the Company to fill the vacancy arising from
the resignation of Andes Glacier CPA Limited on 16 January 2018.
Save as disclosed above, there was no change in auditor during the
past three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming AGM meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Deloitte as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Chau Cheok Wa
Chairman

29 March 2018
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The Company is committed to maintain high standard of corporate
governance standards and procedures to safeguard the interests of
all shareholders and to enhance accountability and transparency.
The Company has complied with the code on corporate governance
practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2017 except the following
deviations:

Code provision A.2.1

Under code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and the chief
executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.

Following the resignation of Ms. Yeung So Lai as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company (the “Chief
Executive Officer”) on 31 March 2017, the Company has not
appointed an individual to take up the vacancy of the Chief Executive
Officer, and the roles and functions of the Chief Executive Officer
have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively.

Code provision D.1.4

Under Code provision D.1.4 of the Code, the Company should have
formal letters of appointment for Directors setting out the key terms
and conditions of their appointment. The Company did not have
formal letters of appointment for Mr. Chau, Mr. Lo Kai Bong, Mr. Au
Chung On John and Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva, executive Directors
of the Company.

However, Mr. Chau, Mr. Lo Kai Bong, Mr. Au Chung On John and Mr.
Manuel Assis Da Silva are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once in every three years in accordance with the Articles.
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Code provision E.1.2

Under Code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman of the Board
should attend the general meetings of the Company and invite the
chairman of the committees to attend. However, due to his other
business commitment, Mr. Chau, the chairman of the Board, did
not attend the extraordinary general meetings held on 31 March
2017, 23 June 2017 and 21 November 2017 and the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2017.

Code provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors
and other non-executive Directors should attend general meetings
and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.

Mr. Lo Wai Tung John, the chairman of remuneration committee of
the Company and an independent non-executive Director, did not
attend the extraordinary general meetings held on 31 March 2017,
23 June 2017 and 21 November 2017 and the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 23 June 2017. Mr. Tou Kin Chuen,
the chairman of audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) and an independent non-executive Director and Dr. Wu
Kam Fun Roderick, the Chairman of nomination committee of the
Company and independent non-executive Director, did not attend
the extraordinary general meetings held on 31 March 2017 and 23
June 2017 and the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 23 June 2017. However, executive Director(s) were present to
enable the Board to develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 December 2017.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises seven Directors, of whom four
are executive Directors, and three are independent non-executive
Directors. The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and
experience necessary for decision making and fulfilling its business
needs. The participation of non-executive Directors in the Board
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the Group’s
strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and management process
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders of the Company have
been duly considered.

The Board considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and has received from each of them the
annual confirmation of independence required by the Listing Rules.

Details of the biographies of the Directors are given under the
section “Biographical Details of Directors” of this annual report.

Details of term of appointment of non-executive Directors are given
under the section “Directors’ Service Contracts and Rotation” in the
Directors’ Report.

The Board is responsible for the approval and monitoring of the
Group’s overall strategies and policies; approval of business plans;
effectiveness of internal control and risk management systems
and oversight of management. It is also responsible for promoting
the success of the Company and its businesses by directing and
supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board focuses on overall strategies and policies with particular
attention paid to the growth and financial performance of the Group.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Directors and senior management of every business
segment, while reserving certain key matters for its approval.
Decisions of the Board are communicated to the management
through executive Directors who have attended Board meetings.

The Company had arranged for appropriate liability insurance for the
directors and officers of the Group for indemnifying their liabilities
arising from corporate activities.
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Board of Directors (Cont’d)

Exg (&)

Board meeting General meeting

Attended/Held Attend/Held

EX29E BRREXE
Directors BEx HE/BIT2RE HEBITZRE
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Chau Cheok Wa AR L 3/19 0/4
Ms. Yeung So Mui* CEY R 0/14 0/3
Ms. Cheng Mei Ching?® BISEFE 2 +° 1/6 0/1
Ms. Yeung So Lai® CEY et 6/6 0/1
Mr. Lo Kai Bang' ER AL 12/14 4/4
Mr. Au Chung on John? R A 22 5t A2 7/13 1/3
Mr. Manuel Assis Da Silva? Manuel Assis Da Silva%t 42 4/13 2/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES:
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HEFEE 14/19 1/4
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [EGE A= . 3/19 1/4
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EFERTE 11/19 0/4
' appointed on 9 March 2017 T 20173 AREZR T
2 appointed on 31 March 2017 2 R2017F3AIHEZF
8 resigned on 31 March 2017 8 H2017F3A31HET
4+ resigned on 20 July 2017 4 201797 420 B (E

Regular Board meetings are attended to by a majority of
the Directors in person or through other electronic means of
communication. Besides the regular Board meetings, special
Board meetings are convened from time to time for the Board to
discuss major matters that require the Board’s timely attention. As
some of the special Board meetings are concerned with the day-
to-day management of the Company which often requires prompt
decisions, usually only the executive Directors attend. During
2017, apart from holding Board meetings, the Board also passed
resolutions in writing to approve certain matters.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors were responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2017. The Directors’
consolidated financial statements and the auditor’'s responsibilities

responsibilities in the preparation of the

are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
The Board is responsible for effectiveness of the Group’s the

risk management and internal control systems. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the Group is exposed
and is used as a management tool for the day-to-day operation of
business. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. Procedures have
been designed for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance of applicable laws, rules and
regulation.

The Group has engaged external professional consultant to conduct
risk management and internal audit of the Group. It performs
risk-based audits to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems and reports to the Board
with its findings and makes recommendations. The Group has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the implemented system
and procedures, including areas covering financial, operational,
compliance and risk management function.

Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Chau Cheok Wa is the chairman of the Company. The chairman’s
responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and the
strategies and policies of the Group. The Chief Executive Officer’s
responsibility is to monitor the daily operation and management
of the Company. The Company has not appointed any person to
replace Ms. Yeung So Lai as the Chief Executive Officer following her
resignation with effect from 31 March 2017.

The Company is in the process of identifying a suitable candidate
to assume the role as Chief Executive Officer and further
announcement in this regard will be made as and when appropriate.
In the meantime, the former role and responsibility of Ms. Yeung
So Lai as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company have been
performed by all the executive Directors collectively.
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Professional Development

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction training
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
Group’s business and of his/her duties and responsibilities under the
Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed on the
latest development regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
statutory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of good
corporate governance practices. In addition, the Company has been
encouraging the Directors to enroll in professional development
courses and seminars relating to the Listing Rules, Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and corporate governance practices
organised by professional bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All
directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective
training records pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous professional
development and refresh their knowledge and skills during the year.
Such professional development was completed either by way of
attending briefings, conference, forum, courses and seminars and
self-reading which are relevant to the business or directors duties.

Company Secretary

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Tong Wing Chi, a
member of HKICPA. The company secretary assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. Mr. Tong Wing Chi has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee is responsible for ensuring that the
Company has formal and transparent procedures for developing
and overseeing its policies on the remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. The committee’s authorities and duties are set
out in written terms of reference.

4 remuneration committee meetings were held during the year ended
31 December 2017 for reviewing the remuneration of Directors and
senior management; and considering and making recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration of the newly appointed Directors.
Members of the remuneration committee and the attendance of each
member are set out below:
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Committee members Attend/Held
ZEERE HE BT
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John (Chairman) BEREE (FE) 4/4
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HEEFELE 3/4
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick [EEEN 4/4

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

to make recommendations on the Company’s policies and
structure for all the remuneration of Directors;

to propose the specific remuneration packages of the executive
Directors, and to make recommendations on the remuneration of
the non-executive Directors for the Board’s approval; and

(i) to review and propose remuneration for executive Directors by
reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by the
Board from time to time.
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee is responsible to make recommendation
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the management
of the Board’s succession. The committee’s authorities and duties
are set out in written terms of reference.

3 nomination committee meetings were held during the year
ended 31 December 2017 for assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors; considering the re-election of
Directors; reviewing the composition of the Board; and considering
and making recommendation to the Board on the appointment of
Directors. Members of the nomination committee and the attendance
of each member are set out below:

Committee members

REEEE
REZESAENZFEENEFTSUEE
BRAEFERIEEER -ZEEZRER

BEHNEmBESE-
B2 EEeNEE2017E12A318 ILEE

BIT3REE UM BIFNTEET BT
M EZEEERER EHEFTSHEN  RERE
ERZAESTNESTSRTERRZZ RS
ZEERERAENFEERREEIIWNT

Attend/Held

ZEE8RE s BT
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick (Chairman) A EIE L () 3/3
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen HEFLEE 3/3
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EFEREE 3/3

The terms of reference of the nomination committee are posted on
the Company’s website. The principal functions include:

(i) to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

(i) to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

(i) to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors in particular the chairman and
the chief executive officer.
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Audit Committee

2 audit committee meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2017. Each committee meeting has been supplied
with necessary financial information of the Group for members to
consider, review and access significant issues arising from the work
conducted. Attendance of the Members are set out below:
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Committee members Attend/Held
ZEERKE HE BT
Mr. Tou Kin Chuen (Chairman) H@EFEE (F£) 2/2
Dr. Wu Kam Fun Roderick ke 2/2
Mr. Lo Wai Tung John EEREAE 2/2

The terms of reference of the audit committee are posted on the
Company’s website. The principal functions include:

() to make recommendations with respect to the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the Company’s external auditor,
and to evaluate their independence, obijectivity and effectiveness
of the audit process;

(i) to review and monitor the interim and annual financial
statements, reports and accounts of the Company, and to review
significant and judgemental financial reporting issues contained
therein;

(i) to review the Company’s financial controls, risk management

and internal control systems; and

(iv) to discuss with the management the risk management and

internal control systems, and to ensure that the management

has discharged its duties and responsibilities in implementing an
effective internal control system.

The Group’s 2017 interim and annual reports have been reviewed
by the audit committee, which was of the opinion that such reports
were prepared in accordance with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements. For the 2017 annual report, the
audit committee met with the external auditor to discuss auditing,
internal control, statutory compliance and financial reporting matters
before recommending it to the Board for approval. The committee
also monitored the Company’s progress in implementing the code
provisions on the Code as required under the Listing Rules.
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Auditor’s Remuneration BERM<E
During the year ended 31 December 2017, the fees paid/payable to  # ZE2017F 128318 IF FE - gh i E A A A
auditor in respect of audit services and non-audit services provided & ERMEHZEIRH RIEZERB M,
by the auditor to the Group were as follows: RN TREMOERAT
2017 2016
Nature of services HK$’000 HK$'000
R E FEx FET
Audit ZE
- Current year —RFE 3,000 1,630
Others Hh, 423 219
3,423 1,849
COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND BERRRREEBE

INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Group also recognises the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information which
enables shareholders and investors to make a properly informed
investment decision.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt
with in an informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly
to the Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for
any inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a
website at www.suncitygroup.com.hk, where extensive information

and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Articles affecting its operations and reporting
practices.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of the Company, extraordinary
general meetings of the Company shall be convened on the
requisition of any one or more shareholder(s) (the “Requisitionist(s)”)
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of

voting at general meetings of the Company.

The Requisitionist(s) shall have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and the EGM shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the Requisitionist(s) may do so in the same manner,
and shall be entitled to reimbursement of all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Requisitionist(s).

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board’s attention
can be sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or extraordinary general meetings,
and encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered
shareholders of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out
in the notice of general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general
meeting is enclosed with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend
or are unable to be present at the meeting should fill out the form
and return the same to the share registrar and transfer office of the
Company, so as to appoint a representative, another shareholder or
the chairman of the meeting as their proxy.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BE B REARE

ABOUT THE COMPANY

The property development business and the property leasing and
management business are the Company’s largest business, both
of which are principally conducted in the PRC. Other business
segments of the Group included hotel and integrated resort
management and consultancy and travel agency service.

STAKEHOLDER ASSESSMENT AND
COMMUNICATION

The management had given due consideration in accessing and
addressing the definition and concerns of the stakeholders of
the Group. Stakeholder assessment and engagement refer to the
process by which the Group involves parties who may be affected
by the decisions it makes or can influence the implementation of
its decisions. In the course of the businesses the Management
had: set out the full spectrum of stakeholders by consulting
various departments within the Group; leverage on the on-going
communication channels and day-to-day interactions to engage
these stakeholders; and conducted an in depth assessment of the
influence and dependency of each of these stakeholder groups.
The Company’s stakeholders can categorically be divided into
customers, suppliers, employees and shareholders.

OUR ENVIRONMENT

The Group is in the business of property development and thus place
significant emphasis on the environment. The Group understands
and appreciate the key aspects of the PRC government’s
environmental protection efforts, including aspects such as reducing
pollution, effectively utilizing resources, increasing awareness of
environmental issues, and promoting sustainable economic and
social development. Being the business of property development,
the Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations in
PRC concerning overall environmental protection, impact to the
environment, noise pollution and environmental protection. It’s one of
the Group’s top priority to comply with relevant environmental laws
and regulations and require its staff and construction contractors to
comply with the relevant environment laws and regulations in PRC.
The management of the Group believes, in all material respects,
the Group has complied with applicable environmental laws and
regulations in PRC.
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Emissions

During the financial year ended 2017, there had not been conducted
any construction work. The other business segments of the
Group produce certain degree of emissions, most of which are
administrative offices based, details as follows.

For the business operation in the PRC, during the year ended 31
December 2017, the main source of the Group’s greenhouse gas
emissions indirect emission from acquired electricity emissions
(“Scope 2”) and other indirect emissions (“Scope 3”). The
greenhouse gas of Scope 2 was generated by electricity usage and
Scope 3 was generated by water consumption and paper used. The
total greenhouse gases emissions from Scope 2 and Scope 3 for the
year ended 31 December 2017 were 1,722,374 kg and 20,025 kg
respectively.

For the business operation in Hong Kong and Macau, during the
year ended 31 December 2017, air emission for nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”), sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and respiratory suspended particles
(“RSP”, also known as Particulate Matter (“PM”)) were about 3,242
g, 64 g and 239 g respectively, which were mainly produced as a
result of company vehicles usage.

Also, the main source of the Hong Kong and Macau’s greenhouse
gas emissions is derived from direct emission from the mobile
combustion sources (“Scope 1”), Scope 2 and Scope 3. The
greenhouse gas of Scope 1 was generated by vehicles usage,
Scope 2 was generated by electricity usage and Scope 3 was
generated by paper used and business travel by employees. The
total greenhouse gases emissions from Scope 1, Scope 2 and
Scope 3 for the year ended 31 December 2017 were 11,752 kg,
64,584 kg and 9,698 kg respectively.

For the year ended 2017, the Group did not produce any hazardous
waste. The Group produced some non-hazardous waste which
included the domestic garbage. The above environmental wastes,
which would pollute the land, would be disposed by the Group to
disposal services provider.
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B A R EARE

Use of resources

The Group has implemented internal policies to minimise the impact
of business activities on the environment and support environmental-
protection initiatives. The Group actively implemented measures to
reduce carbon emission and water usage in our business operations.
Since no construction work had been conducted during the vyear,
the policy focus was placed on the administrative offices. Measures
were introduced to minimising the use of paper by encouraging
double side printing and paper recycling. The Group also promote
paperless environment by encouraging the use of electronic copy for
the document instead of printed hard copy.

For the business operation in the PRC, the following consumption
data was recorded in the year ended 31 December 2017:

e electricity consumption: 1,979,401 kWh
e water consumption: 45,384 tons
e paper consumption: 306 kg

For the business operation in Hong Kong and Macau, the following
consumption data was recorded in the year ended 31 December
2017:

e glectricity consumption: 81,752 kWh
e petrol consumption: 4,340 Litres
e paper consumption: 441 kg

Environment and Natural Resources

The Group continues to review the environmental impact of its
operations and make use of best practices across their functions
and to develop monitoring of resources consumption data and
implementing better performance strategies as to enhance
the contributions to environmental sustainability through good
environmental practices. The Group does not ignore the opportunity
to contribute to sustainability at the office space, and the Group
enhances environmental awareness of the employees through
various means of internal communications.
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OUR EMPLOYEES
Employment
We value our employees as an intricate and vital part of the

Group, and thus the Group establishes and maintains fair and
comprehensive employment policies and practices to ensure the
compliance with all relevant ethical and regulatory standards, by,
for example, providing equal opportunity and career development
to all our employees. The Group strictly complied with the laws,
regulations and policies regarding employment benefits across
different jurisdictions, including, for example, the social security in
the PRC and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance in Hong
Kong.

Health and Safety

Although the health and safety related risks with office administrative
work is relatively lower than that of the construction sites, the Group
does strive to provide and maintain a safe and healthy workplace
for all employees. One of the measures include placement of safety
guides and healthcare tips in observable areas for our staff. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with the health and safety laws and regulations.

Development and Training

The Group places strong emphasis on staff development. Both
structured training programme and on-job coaching are organised
for new staff to familiarise with the Group’s culture, the industry and
specific skills required for their respective duties. Regular training
are provided to update knowledge of our staff from time to time
and where deemed necessary. The Group also encourages the
employees to identify their own personal objectives for development,
allowing them to develop according to their own needs and pace.

Labor Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health, comfortable working
environment with labor protection, reasonable remuneration and
various welfare. The Group enters employment contract with each of
its employees in accordance with relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. The Group also strictly prohibits employing
any child or forced labor.
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OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group tends to maintain long term relationship with its suppliers
for ensuring stable supply of materials for construction and
services. We also require our suppliers to improve their sustainability
performance and acting responsibly to adhere to our environmental
protection policies.

Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible standard with the
products and services provided. The Group pays a highly attention
to the quality and has put quality as its first priority to ensure
customer satisfaction in terms of our products and services. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was not aware of any
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to product
responsibility.

Anti-Corruption

The Group has implemented internal policies and guidelines to
comply with applicable laws on anti-bribery and anticorruption
for the respective jurisdictions the Group has operation in. These
measures are subject to regular review and update to ensure their
effectiveness to strengthen the internal controls and compliance
regime of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations related to anti-corruption.

COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION

The Group encourages employees to actively participate in
community and group activities. The Group will also participate in
even more activities to give back to the community in the coming
year and will consider from time to time to donate to charitable
organisations when the Group recorded profit after tax and have
sufficient cash flow.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
TN R RS

Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SUNCITY GROUP
HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Suncity
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 208,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
TN 2R RS

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which indicates that as at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by RMB1,319,514,000 and
total liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB247,815,000. As
stated in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group
is dependent on the financial support from its controlling shareholder,
which indicates that a material uncertainty exists that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to
the matters described in the Material Uncertainty Related to Going
Concern section, we have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BAREXSE (&)

Key audit matter

BEEZER

Provisions for litigations

AR

We identified the provisions for litigations as a key
audit matter due to the significance of the balance
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
combined with the significant estimation uncertainty
in determining the amount.

HRERE GV RAEREHEEZURETZ
P RERNGETHEEN WERMKFLARBES
ERARERERE-

As disclosed in notes 5 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group acted as a
guarantor for a bank loan and consultancy fee
and became defendant in the Bank Claim and
Consultant Claim as defined in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Group did
not provide any provision for these claims in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016. During the current year,
the Group provided the provisions for these claims
and the Group’s provisions for litigations amounted
to RMB235,000,000 as at 31 December 2017.
WERE SRR M FEo R28FT#HE 5 - BSEEE
RITERRERE 2 ERA UKARTEERE
MRE(ERRGEMBHHRENT28) 2HE &
SEMENREE2016F12A318 L FE ZHEATH
BRABRZEREFREARE -RAFE: BS
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMNERNMNEERREREE

Our procedures in relation to the provisions for litigations
included:

BHBEERRREIIEFERE:

e Understanding how the Group’s management perform
assessment on the provisions for litigations;

e TH BEEEEREMNMHFLRBEHEZON:

e Discussing with the management on the status of
litigation cases, possible outcomes and basis to estimate
the provisions;

o HEBEINMAARMER BEGERMELEAGGEE:

e (Obtaining and reading the related legal documents and
discussing the impacts with the management;

s ERLFHMBAZIEXHUAMEEEENBTE:

e (Obtaining legal letters from external legal counsels
and discussing with them on the potential exposure of
significant litigation cases;

s BINBEEBEERBUERZERMG WERRFARERNFAR
2 EERE R

e Arranging litigation search and checking the search
results and legal expenses against the information stated
in the legal letters from external legal counsels to assess
the completeness of the litigation cases;

s RHFINESUVERESERLEERAEKBINDER
B2 EB KGR ER U FARMG 2 T8

e Checking the payments made to settle the litigation cases
against bank payment record; and
o REFRMEM ZMEBRNRERIT R K

e FEvaluating the adequacy of the disclosure of provisions
for the litigations in the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters (Cont’d)
BAREXSE (&)

Key audit matter

HEELER

Provision for land appreciation tax

T (B I

We identified the provision for land appreciation tax ~ Our
in the People’s Republic of China (“LAT”) as a key
audit matter due to the significant underprovision
of LAT in prior years and significant judgement
required in estimating the amounts of the LAT
including the appropriateness of the tax rate
applied and the deductibility of expenditures of
properties.
HNVBEFE DB ED ([TEER ] FEEX
BEIRARRGF I HIZERSBRAFELEXR
HE (BRARAREZEEERYER < 2T
MIZE) - RSP EARLMBE 2 £ 18 B 5
HRIFAREREE -

As disclosed in notes 6(a)(iii) and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group’s
income tax expense in relation to LAT amounted
to RMB56,056,000 and RMB228,730,000 for
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

WMERE T BERM E6@) I RI12FTEEE  REE
20176 k2016F12AB1HILFE X BEEARLT
WIRE 2 PS5 X 5 5l & A R #56,056,0007T
K A\ R 228,730,000 °
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EMNERNMEEERERSEE

procedures in relation to provision for LAT included:

HPAERLIHIRERREZEFEE:

Understanding how the Group’s management estimates
provisions for LAT;
THR ESEEEBREMGIHEETREEZAR:

Engaging our internal tax expert to assess the accuracy
of the provision for LAT with reference to the applicable
progressive rates on the appreciation of land value;
ZEANDPHBEERSE LHIRERZEARERETE L
IR E TR 2 R

Obtaining and inspecting the documents, including the
sales summary supporting the calculation of LAT; and
BRRBEXH BEFRA T MIEENGTEZHEME
K

Assessing the reasonableness of the estimation of the
amount of LAT with reference to the estimated deductible
expenditures including the cost of land use rights and all
relevant property development expenditures.
KREBZMEETNRAX (BT EREKRERAEREBY
FRERX)TETIBER BB el M-
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Other Matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were audited by another auditor who
expressed a modified opinion on those statements on 24 March
2017.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

RBMERGESMBHRRNELE

(&)

s HEZFRARKELESHEENEE L
R(ERFARENEZER) 2L FHEHR
=M EMA R BEERY BEREF
BRERENELERRENERTHEE
MRL&ER - HERMRBFEERNTHE
EN - BEERBMBETRFEIESRS
MBRROBERER (NZEETR)
EREMNER - RANGEHRERBEEX
e E B MBS EZER - AW
AREHSMNATEESR BEREEX

2 L AA
FELE -

s HESFEUBHRNEEZS HBLEA
B BEREEMGEVBEHRRELRER
RNF2HNHARRTHBAR S R EMF -

e ENAM ESBERNEBAHEHKIHN
MBERNTEDBEENEZRR AR
EBMBHRREXRBER -RMEAREE &
BRETREEEZ BRADAHRMANE
RERARZMEME-

BB (AP ) BRI & E MM E
ERERAER (BRAMEERTEENR
HRIEHIE AR ) AR R R AR A -

BATAEEEEARTE—NER RF7R
MEETAEBBILIEMNERERENR It
RERREERHRMBYEELRFANAE
RNk (WER) HBEREEEREEZZES
A o

—E-tEER  ABEEEEREEAT 09



Independent Auditor’'s Report
TN 2R RS

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lau Kai Hung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

29 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

E\/

/\\/ \

H A2 mEks

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H It FE

1R

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt o AR® T ART T
(Restated)
(=5)
Revenue A 7 544,708 1,108,841
Cost of sales $HE A (362,658) (564,845)
Gross profit EF 182,050 543,996
Other income, gains and losses HEmgA - e & E1E 8 43,515 (76,616)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHE A (27,730) (79,075)
Administrative expenses TERER (105,600) (73,401)
Other operating expenses HibhZEE A (3,437) (18,059)
Change in fair value of investment properties &% 2 A r EE 16 (7,100) 40,000
Change in fair value of derivative financial MESRTAZAREED)
instruments 30 (329,855) 17,704
Reversal of provisions (provisions) for litigations & A B & B @ (& &) 28 289,240 (130,761)
(Provision) reversal of provision for potential BERE (BB BERE
claims 26 (41,882) 14,937
Impairment loss recognised in respect of RTEERZRERE
inventories 20 (57,034) (21,557)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REEBERZBEEE
goodwill 40 - (4,0839)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of B RENTEN S ER
prepayment for land use right BB EE 17(a) - (99,330)
Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss) Ft3ERBEEIL & ERZH
recognised in respect of deposits for non- ﬁi%ﬁﬁi%ﬁ[](iﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%)
current assets 17(b) 438,000 (316,259)
Share of result of an associate FE G B = R A 18 (37) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWBA ﬂZHﬁZﬁ 41 - 1,145
Finance costs & A AR 9 (118,046) (192,137)
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBLATER (BE]) 10 262,084 (393,452)
Income tax expense FriS & X 12 (65,191) (318,839)
Profit (loss) for the year REEGER (FHB) 196,893 (712,291)
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AN

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBmNKEMEE

2017 2016
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR T ARET T
(Restated)
(ZE=3)
Other comprehensive income (expense): HMZ2EU A (BIx%) :
Exchange differences on translating foreign ~ HZAJREEF DB EBEH
operations that may be subsequently MEGINETEMEE 2
reclassified to profit or loss MEH =R 392 (234)
Total comprehensive income (expense) FRAEZEBRA (BAX)
for the year B 197,285 (712,525)
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: LA T A X E{hRFEERER
(FH) :
— Owners of the Company —RRBHER A 197,002 (702,236)
— Non-controlling interests —FEE R (109) (10,055)
196,893 (712,291)
Total comprehensive income (expense) for A T A +BEAREE 2 EIA
the year attributable to: (BAX) 4%
— Owners of the Company e VAGIE Z =N 197,394 (702,470)
— Non-controlling interests —FEERER (109) (10,055)
197,285 (712,525)
Earnings (loss) per share: BREF (BE) :
- Basic (RMB cents) —EXR(ARES) 14 3.24 (36.35)
_ Diluted (RMB cents) — BB (ARESD) 14 3.18 (36.35)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MO R

At 31 December 2017 722017412 A318

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
MW12A31H W1B1E
2017 2016 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
k=3 ARETRT ARETRE ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E5) (&)
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER 15 3,605 2,643 2,843
Investment properties REME 16 1,724,900 1,732,000 1,692,000
Prepayment and deposits for non-current RIERBEE BN RES
assets 17 8,136 149,774 546,678
Interest in an associate RSN B RS 18 1,701 = =
Deferred tax assets EREREEE 19 96,307 86,036 33,310
1,834,649 1,970,453 2,274,831
Current assets REBEE
Inventories lE3 20 653,230 731,900 1,267,107
Trade and other receivables F%‘MAZEE?X&HWW?X 21 121,392 124,821 45377
Amount due from a related company NG 22 - 2,806 =
Amounts due from directors %H&é%ﬁlﬁ 22 666 = =
Pledged bank deposits BERBITER 23 5,873 1,634 2,666
Restricted bank deposits XBRHBTER 23 334 - -
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 24 302,557 143,439 27,768
1,084,052 1,004,600 1,342,918
Current liabilities nBaE
Trade and other payables A @E?X&Hﬁﬂréﬁ%’ 25 198,860 288,997 604,134
Amount due to a related company FE BT A A 22 50,193 2,421 =
Amount due to a director B — %i% 22 4,668 = =
Receipt in advance TR 27 339,441 454,965 455,433
Rent and other deposits HEREMEZE 8,442 9,238 10,200
Provision for potential claims REERE RE 26 42,082 200 15,137
Provisions for litigations A B 28 235,000 653,843 523,082
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 29 212,547 270,000 1,118,102
Loan from immediate holding company REBEEEZERA —I =F 22 - - 440,159
Convertible bond AR E % 30 411,107 = =
Derivative financial instruments TEEBMTA 30 439,938 129,675 =
Current tax liabilities AEHIEEE 461,288 467,877 197,376
2,403,566 2,277,216 3,363,623
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BRI R

At 31 December 2017 72017412 A31H

As at
As at 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
MiE  AR®TR ARETT ARETR

(Restated) (Restated)
EX) (&E51)
Net current liabilities nBaEFE (1,319,514)  (1,272,616)  (2,020,705)
Total assets less current liabilities SEAERRBER 515,135 697,837 254,126
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Bank borrowings BIIEE 29 405,000 445,000 480,000
Amount due to a director B —R2EEHE 22 = 4,995 =
Deferred tax liabilities BIEHBAE 19 357,950 355,602 341,393
Convertible bond AR 5 30 - 365,286 =
762,950 1,170,883 821,393
Net liabilities AEFE (247,815) (473,046) (567,267)
Capital and reserves EXK
Share capital FR A 31 525,734 524,712 123,644
Reserves & (762,777) (987,095) (685,694)
Deficit attributable to owners of the ARBEEAEGEL
Company (237,043) (462,383) (562,050)
Non-controlling interests FERES (10,772) (10,663) (5,217)
Total deficit Baam (247,815) (473,046) (567,267)

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 208 were S$71E208BE A MEHRER I BAEEZS RN
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 201843 A29H #t AW IR T3 WA N E

29 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: ERE:
Chau Cheok Wa Lo Kai Bong
B & R
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes N Equity

Attributable to owners of the Company

= \ 2
/\‘/ 3 I:I E PN ml:lln @J%

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F 128318 IEFE

ARERARE
Share Non-
Share Share Merger  Statutory option  Exchange  Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
R&  RGEE AKER  iERE BREEE  JERE  EiEE B FBMEE  BRET
Notes ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'0O0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETn ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETn ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 201651818 (£5)) 123644 998,042 2001 49,373 19,504 - (1776930 (562,050) (,217)  (567,267)
Loss for e year (Restated) EnER(E5) - - - - - - (1020%) (10203 (10,08  (712,291)
Exchange differences on translating ~~ E SN ERTELZERZE
foreign operations S = = = = - (234) - (234) - (234)
Total comprefensive expense ERRERYAE
for the year - - - - - (234)  (702,286)  (702470) (10,085  (712,529)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBATF 4 - - - - - - - - 4,609 4,609
Issue of rights shares e () 401,068 401,069 - - - - - 80137 S /AL
At 31 December 2016 and R2016512A31 B R201751
1 January 2017 (Restated) A1A (E5)) 524,712 1,399,111 24,001 49,373 19,694 (284) (2479.166) (462,383 (10,669  (473,046)
Proft for the year Emigt - - - - - - 197,002 197,002 (109 196,898
Exchange differences on tranglating ~~ AE B SBAEEZELE
foreign operations 2 S = = = = 3% = 392 - 392
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ ERZERA (F%) €8
for the year - - - - - 392 197002 197.3%4 (109 197,285
Exercise of share options BEREAE 1,022 3417 = - (925) - - 3514 - 3514
Recogniton of share-based EROE A0 EMRR
compensation benefits 3 - - - - 24,432 - 24,432 - 24,432
Forfeiture of share options RERE - - - - (7.341) - 7,341 - - -
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31A 525,734 1,402,528 24001 49,373 35,760 168 (214809 (287,049  (10772)  (247,815)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEREmER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z2017F12A31H L FE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
(Restated)
(E27))
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit (loss) before taxation B Ang A (E18) 262,084 (393,452)
Adjustments for: FHEIAE
Interest income FIEHA (534) (423)
Exchange (gain)/loss EH (Ux)EE (45,951) 80,944
Finance costs BEKAR 118,046 192,137
Depreciation e 1,701 1,344
Share-based compensation benefits AR S 15 O 5 B AR 24,432 =
Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories REEEAZAERR 57,034 21,557
(Reversal of provisions) provisions for litigations A (BERE)BE (289,240) 130,761
Provision (reversal of provision) for potential claims BERERE (BERD) 41,882 (14,937)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments T4 & BT AH A A EE 329,855 (17,704)
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment loss recognised ~ BIERBEE RS EA 2 CRES
in respect of deposits for non-current assets BREE)REESE (438,000 316,259
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME  BE K& ks (59) (57)
Gain from exchange of loan with convertible bond B AR ELS S AETRMERE - (1,098)
Share of result of an associate il d=NG E S 37 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEH B A Al 2 e - (1,145)
Change in fair value of investment properties RENENARERE 7,100 (40,000)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwil REERAZAERSE - 4,039
Impairment loss recognised in respect of prepayment RIWFRENENERRZRE
for land use right B - 99,330
Operating profit before working capital changes EEESEBAINCE R 68,387 377,555
Decrease in inventories FERD 21,636 513,650
Decrease in trade and other receivables JFE Ui B X e L At B M R D 357,454 6,435
Increase in amounts due from directors EREEHIE (691) =
Decrease (increase) in amount due from a related JE e BB X R SRR D (32 )
company 2,723 (2,744)
Placement of pledged bank deposits FHEERRIER (4,488) (885)
Decrease in trade and other payables JE 51 BR % B L At £ SR (88,807) (136,203)
Increase in amount due to a related company JE 1< BBt 7 m) FOBE AN 49,657 2,368
Decrease in receipt in advance TR FOR (115,524) (468)
Decrease in rental and other deposits HEREMZRRD (796) (962)
Cash generated from operations EEEENES 289,551 758,746
Income tax paid BASFTEH (79,703) (86,855)
Net cash from operating activities RETHELENBELFE 209,848 671,891
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meEREemER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 & Z2017F12A31H It FE

2017 2016
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
ik ARETR ARETT
(Restated)
(E31)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Capital injection to an associate S R AEE (1,745) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BELZE (1,370) (217)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE R k& E 215508 174 69
Net cash inflow arising from acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—HNBARIEENREREA
et 40 - 2,394
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of subsidiaries HEMRBLAREENAERNFE 4 - 1
Placement of deposits for non-current assets BEHRERDEERS - (18,685)
Refund of deposits for non-current assets ROFRBEERS 140,135 =
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits REMEEBBIHR - 2,364
Placement of restricted bank deposits BEHREREIRTES (334) -
Interest received B & 534 423
Net cash from (used in) investing activities RETHEL (BAI)NREEHE 137,394 (13,651)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REED
New bank and other borrowings raised BEENBROREMER - 200,000
Repayment of bank and other borrowings BERTREMER (98,000) (1,133,574)
Settlement for a litigation AR FIE (45,000) -
Placement of deposit for a litigation HAFAFRIEE - (84,603)
Proceeds from issue of rights shares AR BT 2 TS 3K IE - 802,137
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR B R R 2 P75 508 3,514 -
Interest paid BRFE (45,866) (330,910)
Net cash used in financing activities METHBANRELFE (185,352) (546,950)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R4 RB&ESEBYHNENTER 161,890 111,290
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY MBEIBNEERREEEY 143,439 27,768
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ELRgENEE (2,772) 4,381
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER, R12A31AMBRERESZEY
represented by bank balances and cash URTESBRBERE 302,557 143,439
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL

Suncity Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) (formerly
known as Sun Century Group Limited) is a public limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the
Company is at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands.
The principal place of business of the Company is at Room
1201-1202, 12/F., China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong. Its
immediate holding company is Fame Select Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI") and Mr.
Chau Cheok Wa (“Mr. Chau”) and Mr. Cheng Ting Kong are the
ultimate controlling parties of the Company.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 31 March 2017
and the Certificate of Change of Name issued by the Registrar
of Companies of Hong Kong on 12 May 2017, the Company
changed its name to Suncity Group Holdings Limited (A F% i &=
B j% A BR A al) with effect from 12 May 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are principally engaged in property
development and management in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), provision of hotel and integrated resort management
and consultancy services in Vietham and sales of travel related
products and provision of travel agency services in Macau.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB1,319,514,000 and total
liabilities exceeded its total assets by RMB247,815,000. Taking
into account the financial resources of the Group, including the
financial support from Mr. Chau, its controlling shareholder, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group has
sufficient working capital to meet in full its financial obligations as
they fall due for at least the next twelve months from the end of
the reporting period and accordingly these consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
and the Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses

As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 12

Except as described below, the application of amendments to
HKFRS in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The Group has applied these amendments for the first time in
the current year. The amendments require an entity to provide
disclosures that enable users of the consolidated financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. In addition,
the amendments also require disclosures on changes in financial
assets if cash flows from those financial assets were, or future cash
flows will be, included in cash flows from financing activities.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be
disclosed: (i) changes from financing cash flows; (i) changes
arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates;
(iv) changes in fair values; and (v) other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of
these items is provided in note 39. Consistent with the transition
provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed
comparative information for the prior year. Apart from the additional
disclosure in note 39, the application of these amendments has
had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
s A B IS IR R B

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and related
Amendments’

HKFRS 16 Leases?

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts*

HK(FRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration’

HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Amendments to HKFRS 4  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contracts'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?
Amendments to HKFRS ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets
10 and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual Improvement to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle!

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property!

Amendments to HKFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 — 2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

Except for the new and revised HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other new and revised HKFRSs and Interpretations will have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group
are:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their
fair value at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In
addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of
an equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

82

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects
of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is
presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected
credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk
management policies as at 31 December 2017, the directors of
the Company anticipate the following potential impact on initial
application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

All financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be
measured on the same bases as are currently measured under
HKAS 39.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Cont’d)

Impairment
In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured
at amortised costs and other items that are subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the

Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model was to be applied by the Group,
the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be recognised
by Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly increased
as compared to the accumulated amount recognised under
HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses provision
on trade receivables. Such further impairment recognised
under expected credit loss model would reduce the opening
accumulated losses at 1 January 2018.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Cont’d)

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

e Step 1:
e Step 2:
e Step 3:
e Step 4:

Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Determine the transaction price

Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

e Step 5:

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability
is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as operating
cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in
relation to lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an
interest portion which will be presented as financing cash flows
respectively by the Group.

The application of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes in
classification of these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the same line
item at which the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont’d)

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB5,140,000 as disclosed
in note 34. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases
unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB1,185,000 and refundable rental deposits
received of RMB8,442,000 as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are not
payments relating to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits may
be adjusted to amortised cost and such adjustments are
considered as additional lease payments. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance lease
payments.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result
in changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 sets out how to determine the accounting tax
position when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments.
The interpretation requires an entity to determine whether
uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as a group;
and assess whether it is probable that a tax authority will accept
an uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be used, by an
entity in its income tax filings.

The financial impact of the Group upon the application of
HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 is still under assessment by the directors of
the Company.

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (‘Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and derivative financial instruments that are measured at fair
values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope
of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in use in HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

e |evel 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise their judgements in the process of applying the
accounting policies. The areas involving critical judgements and
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to these
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as
incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair values, except
that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes
and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below); and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that standard.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Business combinations (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment,
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is
made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at their fair value or, when
applicable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost
as established at the date of acquisition of the business (see the
accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, which represent the lowest level at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes and not
larger than an operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets on
a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in the
unit (or group of cash-generating units). In respect of the goodwill,
impairment loss previously recognised in profit or loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable
amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal (or any of the cash-generating unit within
group of cash-generating units in which the Group monitors goodwill).

Interests in subsidiaries

Interests in subsidiaries are stated in the Company’s statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. The financial statements of associates used for equity
accounting purposes are prepared using uniform accounting
policies as those of the Group for like transactions and events in
similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income
of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. WWhen necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate that
are not related to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (“foreign currencies”) are recognised at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. RMB)
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. An investment property is measured
initially at its cost including all direct costs attributable to the
property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Investment properties (Cont’d)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment on tangible assets (Cont’d)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
Inventories

Properties for sale includes properties under development and
properties held for sale and travel related products which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

The carrying value of properties for sale comprises the costs of
land use rights together with development expenditure, which
includes construction costs and borrowing costs capitalised.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
the properties less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Costs of travel related products are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for travel related products less all estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including deposits for
non-current assets, trade and other receivables, amounts due
from a related company and directors, bank balances and
cash, restricted bank deposits and pledged bank deposits) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

e Dbreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

Annual Report 2017
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL

on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and

has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Cont’d)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the grouping
is provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded
derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is
shown as change in fair value of derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, amounts
due to a related company and a director, receipt in advance,
rent and other deposits, provisions for litigations, bank and other
borrowings, loan from immediate holding company and debt
component of convertible bond) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4. FESFHHEE (HF)
Financial instruments (Cont’d) SWMIA(E)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d) THEERER TA (&)
Effective interest method B R A 2%

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Convertible bond

A conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Group’s own equity instruments is a
conversion option derivative and early redemption derivative.

An early redemption option provides the Group to redeem its
convertible bond before the maturity date at principal amount is
an early redemption option derivative.

At the date of issue, both the debt component and derivative
component are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the debt component of the convertible bond is carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
derivative component is measured at fair value with changes in

fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair values at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge

relationship.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL. Generally, multiple embedded derivatives in
a single instrument are treated as a single compound embedded
derivative unless those derivatives relate to different risk exposures
and are readily separable and independent of each other.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially
measured at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

e the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
revenue recognition policies.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for
the proceeds received.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont’d)
Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for value added tax
or other sales taxes, estimated customer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and delivered to the buyers. Deposits and
instalments received from buyers prior to meeting the above
criteria for revenue recognition are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position under current liabilities.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Revenue recognition (Cont’d)

Interest income is accrued on a time apportionment basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue from
operating leases is described in the accounting policy for leasing
above.

Retirement benefit costs and termination benefits

Payment to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
including schemes registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance and government retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service, entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 4.
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Share-based payment arrangements (Cont’d)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont’d)

Share options granted to employees (Cont’d)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred
to accumulated losses.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised.
Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments and
interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and then are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax (Cont’d)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue recognition as principal or agent

During the current year, the Group commenced its operation
in the travel related businesses, which include the provision
of arrangement of hotel accommodation, transportation and
entertainment. The Group has acted as principal for transactions
of hotel accommodation products and acted as agent for the
rest. In assessing whether the Group acted as principal or agent,
the Group has considered, among others, indicators including
but not limited to whether the Group has primary responsibility
in providing the goods and services to the customers, inventory
risk before the customers’ order, credit risk for the amounts
receivable from the customers and whether it has discretion in
establishing price.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of prepayment
for land use right

As set out in notes 6(a)(vi) and 17(a), the Group prepaid land
costs for a project in the PRC and pursuant to the terms
stipulated in the Agreement (as defined in note 17(a)), the Group
has to complete the construction by 30 April 2016. Should
the construction cannot be completed by 30 April 2016, the
Agreement would be rescinded at no cost. The directors of the
Company retrospectively impaired the entire balance for such
prepayment as at 31 December 2016.

5. AREMAHRMATTRERRE

ZEBRR (%)

FE A& UK B O B 62 ) R
NTRARBDESRERAAEE SR
RZBREPELREREEMEHRERE
RNSBREAAREAFEZBRZE (X
EWRMEABRIN(RTX) ) -

ERZEAANLREZIRAER
RAFR AEBERREERERBE
BEREHBEEERS RBRRER
B AEBERTEEEBERBERERS 2
RFEAN WINGEERE - RFHEAEE
RERERFATIREAR AEEEZ
BE(EFEF)ZEREZ 8RETRR
AEEREFREE M EREEEST &
RIERE REFTENRTHEERFE
Rk R ALK R R EEREERRKE
SHRATEERE-

BLHEHETRN £ MR B E TR

BB 5E6(a) (vil) 2217 () BT EK - AN 58 [ 7t P
BEEMIHEAS  RBEHZE(ERR
FisE17(a) ) BT 2 &R - A& B ZER2016
F4RA30BRITTHRERETR - MBETLRE
R BER20164F4 A30H AT T Ak @ 175 15 48
IE MBAZNEMER - R20165F12
318 ARRZESEHZEN S 22 &S
BWRE -

—e—txaeg  Apusszrssas 111



112  Suncity Group Holdings Limited

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(Cont’d)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolio and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are held under a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather than
through sale. As a result, the Group has recognised deferred tax
on changes in fair value of investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including those completed investment
properties are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at their fair values, details of which are disclosed
in note 16. The fair value of the investment properties was
determined by reference to valuations conducted on these
properties by an independent and professionally qualified
valuer using property valuation techniques which involve certain
assumptions of prevailing market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions may result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
and corresponding adjustments to the changes in fair value
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income. During the year ended 31
December 2017, decrease in fair value of investment properties
of RMB7,100,000 (831 December 2016: increase in fair value:
RMB40,000,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Impairment loss recognised in respect of inventories
Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value.
Based on the experience of the directors of the Company
and the nature of the subject properties, the directors of the
Company determine the net realisable value of properties under
development and properties held for sale by reference to the
estimated market prices of the properties under development
and properties held for sale, which takes into account a number
of factors including the recent prices of similar property type
in the same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing
real estate market conditions in the PRC. The directors of the
Company estimate the future costs to complete the properties
under development by reference to the actual development cost
of other similar completed projects of the Group, adjusted by
certain current market data. During the year ended 31 December
2017, impairment loss of RMB57,034,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB21,5657,000) has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2017, the aggregate carrying amount of
properties under development and properties held for sale
amounted to approximately RMB644,411,000 (31 December
2016: RMB731,900,000 (restated), and 1 January 2016:
RMB1,267,107,000 (restated)) in the PRC.

PRC land appreciation taxes (‘LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The LAT is levied at
progressive rates on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds of the sales of properties less the estimated deductible
expenditures, the cost of land use rights and all relevant property
development expenditures.

Significant judgment is required in estimating the amounts of
land appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate
due to the uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and
deductible expenditures.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

PRC land appreciation taxes (‘LAT”) (Cont’d)

However, the implementation and settlement of the tax varies
amongst different tax jurisdictions in various cities of the PRC
and certain projects of the Group have not finalised their land
appreciation tax calculations and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. The amount of the land appreciation is
determined with reference to proceeds of the sales of properties
less the estimated deductible expenditures, including the
cost of land use rights and all relevant property development
expenditures. The Group recognised the LAT based on
management’s best estimates. The final tax outcome could
be different from the amounts that were initially recorded, and
these differences will impact the income tax expense and the
related income tax provisions in the periods in which such tax
is finalised with local tax authorities. During the years ended 31
December 2017 and 2016, approximately RMB56,056,000 and
RMB228,730,000 (restated) of LAT has been recognised.

Provisions for litigations

As set out in notes 6(a)(iv) and 28, approximately
RMB235,000,000, RMB653,843,000 (restated) and
RMB523,082,000 (restated) of provisions for litigations have
been recognised by the Group as at 31 December 2017, 31
December 2016 and 1 January 2016, respectively, in relation
to the Bank Claim and Consultant Claim (as defined in note
28). The directors of the Company reversed provision of
RMB289,240,000, net of provision for Consultant Claim of
RMB14,842,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017, and
retrospectively recognised provisions of RMB130,761,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2016, based on the best estimates
derived from different sources of documents, including the
Judgement from the PRC court, the settlement agreement and
legal opinion from external lawyers.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Cont’d)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont’d)

Impairment losses recognised in respect of deposits for
non-current assets

As set out in notes 17(b) and 17(c), the Group have paid
deposits for property development projects and potential
investment projects in the PRC. The Group reviews the
recoverability and aging of the deposits and provides for
impairment losses if the balances are not fully recoverable. The
assessments involve estimation on the recoverability of these
balances. The Group’s estimates and judgements may be
inaccurate and any change in estimates would affect profit or
loss in future years. The directors of the Company have reversed
impairment of RMB438,000,000 and recognised impairment loss
of RMB316,259,000 of the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, respectively.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The directors of the Company use their judgment in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for financial instruments not
quoted in an active market. Valuation techniques commonly
used by market practitioners are applied. For derivative financial
instruments, the estimation of fair value of derivatives includes
some assumptions not supported by observable market
prices or rates. The carrying amount of the derivative financial
instruments as at 31 December 2017 was approximately
RMB439,938,000 (31 December 2016: RMB129,675,000
(restated)). Details of the assumptions used are disclosed in
note 30. The directors of the Company believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions are appropriate in
determining the fair value of derivative financial instruments.
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN
PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES

The Company has carried out a reassessment on the Group’s

consolidated financial statements for the prior years and

identified the following misstatements. The directors of the

Company decided that the most appropriate treatment for

these misstatements is to restate the comparative figures in the

Group’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

Prior year adjustments

()

(a)(ii)

() i)

116  suncity Group Holdings Limited

Revenue was recognised incorrectly and recognised in
the inappropriate period. In addition, cost of sales was
incorrectly measured, certain administrative expenses
were not recognised in the year in which they were
incurred. Furthermore, the income tax expense was
misstated in prior years.

The Company identified that an amount of approximately
RMB34,849,000 was previously recognised as a
prepayment to a subcontractor included in trade and
other receivables. The management of the Group
performed impairment assessment on such balance
and considered the possibility of recovering the amount
is remote. Based on the analysis conducted by the
management of the Group, the amount should have been
fully impaired as at 1 January 2016.

The Group has over-provided the land appreciation tax
in relation to its inventories during the year ended 31
December 2016. Also, deferred tax assets and current
tax liabilities in relation to the land appreciation tax were
misstated in prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN
PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES (Cont’d)

Prior year adjustments (Cont’d)

(@)(iv) Provisions in relation to the Bank Claim (as defined in
note 28) and Consultant Claim (as defined in note 28)
had not yet been provided in prior years, but such claims
were disclosed as contingent liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016. After reviewing all the relevant documents, the
directors of the Company considered that the Group had
a present legal obligation as a result of a past event, it
was probable that the Group would be required to settle
that obligation, and a reliable estimate could be made of
the amount of the obligation in relation to the Bank Claim
and Consultant Claim as at 31 December 2016 and 1
January 2016.

(@)(v) Certain properties under pre-sale arrangement have
been seized by the court due to the litigations as set
out in note 28 since 2015. As a result, the Group
failed to fulfil the obligations stipulated in the sales
and purchase agreement within the predetermined
period of time. Pursuant to the terms of the sales and
purchase agreement, the Group is liable to the claims
for the return of pre-sale deposits, instalment payment
and compensation made by the buyers. However, no
such provision was made in the consolidated financial
statements in prior years. During the year ended 31
December 2016, certain properties were released by
the court and reversal of provision of RMB14,937,000
was recognised in profit or loss as the Group performed
the obligations stipulated in the sales and purchase
agreement.
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN
PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES (Cont’d)

Prior year adjustments (Cont’d)

(a)(vi)

(a)(vii)

Refer to note 30 for the details of the convertible bond
issued by the Company in 2016. Due to the inappropriate
assumptions used in the assessment of fair value of the
convertible bond, the initial recognition of the convertible
bond issued by the Company was not accounted
for correctly in 2016. Such balance was presented
as bank and other borrowings in the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016. The Group engaged Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, independent and professional qualified valuer
not connected to the Group, to revisit the valuation on
the convertible bond as at 8 December 2016 (date of
issuance) and 31 December 2016.

The prepayment for land use right was presented as
prepaid land costs under trade and other receivables in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016. As described in note 17(a), since the
Group did not comply with certain terms in the relevant
land use right transfer agreement signed between the
Group and the Fushun Land and Resource Bureau in
the PRC as at 31 December 2016, the directors of the
Company impaired the entire prepayment during the
year ended 31 December 2016. As the Group’s equity
interest in the subsidiary is 90%, adjustment to the equity
attributable to non-controlling interests has been made
during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Changes in presentation of comparatives

(@)(viii) In addition to the adjustments made to correct prior

118  suncity Group Holdings Limited

year’s errors mentioned in notes 6(a)(i) to 6(a)(vii)
above, the directors of the Company also made certain
reclassifications to the comparative figures as at 31
December 2016 and 1 January 2016 in order to conform
with current year’s presentation. Such adjustments were
mainly made to group together multiple line items with
similar nature that were previously disclosed on the face
of the primary statements, so as to make the face of
those statements clearer and more concise. The details of
the relevant items have been retained in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN 6. BEFEFAERLBBFEIZ
PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES (Cont’d)

(b) Summary of the effects of restatements

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

2E (

&)

(b) EF 2 EME
B FE2016F 12831 HIFFEZ 4

comprehensive income for the year ended 31 EEm REMEE Km K
December 2016
2016 (as 2016 (after
previously prioryear  Changes in 2016
reported) . ) adjustments)  presentation  (as restated)
20165 (11 e 20165 (8¢ e oE
EHE) ¥ FEEER) 28 (E51)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETR ARETT  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  AREBTr  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
(all) (el (a)(v) (altv) (aliv) (alvi) (a)vi)
Revenue WA 1,108,544 297 = = = = = 1,108,841 = 1,108,841
Cost of seles HEA (603,238) 38393 - - - - - (56484) S (504t
Gross profit £ 505,306 38,690 - - - - - 5396 - 539
Other income, gains and losses EBA RS REE (78,319 - - - - 1,708 - (76,616) - (76,616)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHER (79,079) - - - - - - (79,079) - (79,075)
Administrative expenses THER (82,232) 8,831 - - - - - (78,401) - (73,401)
Other operating expenses EneEEA (334,318) - - - - - - (334,318) 316,259 (18,059)
Change in fai value of investment RENFHARESR
properties 40,000 - - - - - - 40,000 - 40,000
Change in fa value of derivative financial $4£ BT 2z A% EES
instruments 7,138 - - - - 10,566 - 17,704 - 17,704
Provisions for litigations FERE - - - (130,761) - - - (130,761) - (130,761)
Reversal of provision for potential claims  E&Z(ERERE - - - - 14,987 - - 14,937 - 14,987
Impairment loss recognised in respect of SiEEERZBHESE
inventores (21,557) . . . - . . 21,557) - (21,557)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of HEZERZ HEKE
qooduil (6,039 . . . - - - 4039) - 039
Impairment loss recognised in respect of FiT3t{EFEHEMNERAZHE
prepayment for land use right BB - - - - - - (99,330) (99,330) - 99,330)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BiFERBIEEEEER L AERS
deposits for non-current assets - - - - - - - - (316,259) (316,259)
(Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBAFZ K 1,145 - - - - - - 1,145 S 1,145
Finance costs BERK (189,664) - - - - (2473 - (192,187) - (192,137)
Loss before taxation BENER (235,615) 4751 - (37 14,937 9,79 €933 (39345 - (%)
Income tax expense HEREL (054,893) 2719 8633 - - - S pi8sy) - 31883
Loss for the year TEEER (490,508) (25,258) 8,833 (130,761) 14,937 9,79 (99,330) (712,291) - (112,291)
Other comprehensive expense: E2ERR
Exchange differences on translating forelgn 47 s¢ B A BE BENAEEE
operations that may be subsequently ~ HEBMELZERZE
reclassified to profit or loss (234) - - - - - - (234) - (234)
Total comprehensive expense for the year £ RE {12 F R X A% (490,742) 25,258) 8,833 (130,761) 14,937 9,79 (99,330) (712,525) - (712,525)
Loss for the year attributable to: NTALEEAEEER:
~ Owners of the Company ~ARABEA (490,386) (25.259) 8833 (1%0/761) 14,997 9,79 @037 (702.236) - 023
- Non-controling interests -FikER (122) - - - - - (9933) (10,055) - (10,055)
{90508)  [25258) 883 (19076) 14,997 976 (@93%)  (71229) - )
Total comprehensive expense for the year H FALR(EAEE 2B % &
attributable to: B
— Owners of the Company ~BATREA (490,620) (25,.259) 8833 (130761) 14,937 9,79 0397 (702.470) - (02470)
~ Non-controling Interests ~ERES (122) - - - - - (9.933) (10,05) - (10,055)
9074 (25259 883 (00761 1497 9% %0 [125%) )
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN 6. BAFERERIBREFEI 2

PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES (Cont’d)
(b) Summary of the effects of restatements (Cont’d)

28 (&)
(b) EF 2 EME (H)

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 R2016F 12 31 H 2 43 & BT %k
December 2016 J &K
31 December 31 December
2016 (as 2016 (after 31 December
previously prior year  Changes in 2016
reported) adjustments)  presentation (s restated)
20168 9 n 016% 20165
128318 (1 e 125318 (B 85 nAYE
NERE) il FEEEL) 23 (:21)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT ARETR ARETz ARETR ARETz ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
(el ] (e (alfv) (@) (e (e)i) (el
Non-current assets FrRoEE
Property, plant and equipment VEN TG 2,643 - - - - - - - 2,643 - 2643
Investment properties REnFE 1,732,000 - - - - - - - 1,782,000 - 1,782,000
Prepayment and deposits for non-curent ~ SERBEEZ B2 Rige
assets - - - - - - - - - 149,774 149,774
Deferred tax assets EEREEE 102 - - 85,934 - - - - 86,036 = 86,036
1,734,745 - - 85,934 - - - - 1,820,679 149,774 1,970,453
Current assets REEE
Inventories iy 813,540 (96,611) - - - - - - 716,929 14971 731,900
Trade and other receivables FERESRAMELR 386,213 (21,093) (34,849) - - - - 99,330) 230,941 (106,120) 124,821
Amount due from a related company EREBARNE - - - - - - - - - 2806 2806
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER 1,634 - - - - - - - 1634 - 1634
Bank balances and cash HEBRRAS 143,439 - - - - - - - 143,439 - 143,439
130486 (117,704) (34,849) = = = = (99330 1,092,043 (38343 1,004,600
Current liabities REAE
Trads and other payables ERERRAMERR 378,171 7416 - - - - - - 385,587 (96,590) 288,997
Amount due to  related company ERBRARNE - - - - - - - - - 2401 2401
Receipt in advance BHER LARNYE (121,752) - - - - - - 299,365 155,600 454,965
Rent and other deposits RERA(ES 9238 - - - - - - - 9238 - 9238
Provision for potential claims SEEZERE - - - - - 200 - - 200 - 200
Provisons for lgatons FEEVA:] - - - - 65388 - - - 68 - 6
Bank and other borrowings RARES 270,000 - - - - - - - 270,000 - 270,000
Derivative financial instruments fiESMIA 50,613 - - - - - 70,062 - 129,675 - 129,675
Curtent tax iabities H#AsE 298,046 126,002 - 43629 - - - - 467,877 - 467,877
1,436,385 11,666 = 43629 653,843 200 70,062 = 2,215,785 61,431 2,217,216
Net current liabltes HBaETE 01559  (120370) (34,849) (3629 (653849 (200) (70,062 (99330 (1122842 (149774 (1,272616)
Total assets less current iabilties EEEEREDEGEERE 1603186 (129370) (34,849) 0305 (653849 (200) (70,062) (99330 697837 = 697,837
Non-curent iabiltes FRgaE
Bank and other borrowings FREMER 895,139 - - - - - (79,859) - 815,261 (370,281) 445,000
Amount due to a drector Efi-%E333 - - - - - - - - - 499 49%
Deferred tax liabilties EERERE 355,602 = = = = = = = 356,602 = 356,602
Convertible bond TRRES - - - - - - - - - 365,286 365,286
1,250,741 - - - - - (79,858) - 1,170,883 - 1,170,883
Net assets (iabilties) BE(8E)5E 3045 (129370) (34,849) 035 (653849) (200) 9,79% 99330 (473,046) - 1309
Capital and reserves BERER
Share capital e 524,112 - - - - - - - 524,712 - 524,712
Reserves 1 (181,537) (129,370) (34,849 42,306 (663,843) 200) 9,79 89,397) (987,095) - (987,095)
Equity (defict) attributable to owners of the  AA TR A% (B4
Company 393,175 (129,370) (34,849) 42,306 (663,843) 200 9,79 89,397) 462,383) - 462,383)
Non-controling interests FlER (730) - - - - - - 0,93 (10,663) - (10,663)
Total equity (defici) (B g8 392,445 (129,370) (34,849) 42,306 (663,843) 200) 9,79 99,330) (473,046) - (473,046)
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6. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS AND CHANGES IN 6. BAFERERIBREFEI 2

PRESENTATION OF COMPARATIVES (Cont’d) BE (&)

(b) Summary of the effects of restatements (Cont’d) (b) EFz2HEHE (&)
Consolidated statement of financial position at 1 R2016F 181 H 248 MHBM %
January 2016 *

1 January 1 January
2016 (as 2016 (after 1 January
previously prior year  Changes in 2016
reported) adjustments) presentation  (as restated)
2016% Effect of prior year adjustments 201\65'5 216
1818 (N BREERELE 1818 (B¢ 1818
EHE) EERER) 2529 (E31)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETxn
(all) (el (a)i) (v (a)(v) (a)(vi)
Non-current assets FRBAE
Property, plant and equipment nE BEREE 2,843 - - - - - 2,843 - 2,843
Investment properties REME 1,692,000 - - - - - 1,692,000 - 1,692,000
Prepayment and deposits for non- RERDEELBNE RIS
current assets - - - - - - - 546,678 546,678
Deferred tax assets BEHEEE 217 - - 33,093 - - 33,310 - 33,310
1,695,060 - - 33,093 - - 1,728,153 546,678 2,274,831
Current assets HEEE
Inventories 533 1,324,477 (144,335) - - - - 1,180,142 86,965 1,267,107
Trade and other receivables EREARE bR 636,077 6,313 (34,849) - = = 608,441 (563,064 45377
Pledged bank deposits BEARAER 2,666 - - - - - 2,666 - 2,666
Bank balances and cash RITERRAS 27,768 - - - - - 27,768 - 27,768
1,991,888 (138,022) (34,849) - - - 1,819,017 (476,099) 1,342,918
Current liabiliies m@l A
Trade and other payables ERESRELENZ 452,562 13,573 - - - - 466,135 137,999 604,134
Receipt in acvance BREN 623,559 (100,706) - - - - 502,853 (67,420) 455,433
Rent and other deposits 10,200 - - - - - 10,200 - 10,200
Provision for potential claims - - - - - 15,137 15,137 - 15,137
Provisions for litigations A - - - - 523,082 - 523,082 - 523,082
Bank and other borrowings iEﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁi‘*E 1,558,261 - - - - - 1,558,261 (440,159) 1,118,102
Loan from immediate holding company K& EZERAF - - - - - - - 440,159 440,159
Current tax liabilities MBRESE 144,532 53,223 - (379 - - 197,376 - 197,376
2,789,114 (33,910) - (379 523,082 15,137 3,293,044 70,679 3,363,623
Net current libiltes RBAEFE (797,226) (104,112) (34,849) 379 (523,082) (15137)  (1474,027) (546,678)  (2,020,705)
Total assets less current liabiltes BESENRDEE 897,834 (104,112) (34,849) 33472 (523,082) (15,137) 254,126 = 254,126
Non-current liabiltes FRAAE
Bank borrowings RiTEE 480,000 - - - - - 480,000 - 480,000
Deferred tax liabilities BREREAR 341,393 = = = = = 341,393 - 341,393
821,393 - - - - - 821,393 - 821,393
Net assets (iabilties) BE(BR)FE 76,441 (104,112) (34,849) 33472 (523,082) (15,137) (567,267) - (567,267)
Capital and reserves BARREE
Share capital & 123,644 = = = = = 123,644 = 123,644
Reserves 3 (41,986) (104,112) (34,849) 33,472 (523,082) (15,137) (685,694) = (685,694)
Equity (defici) attributable to owners of AR R EH AR (BA4)
the Company 81,658 (104,112) (34,849) 33,472 (523,082) (15,137) (562,050) = (562,050)
Non-controlling interests FERER (5,217) - - - - - (5,217) - (5,217)
Total equity (efict) S (B as 76,441 (104,112 (34,849) 33472 (523,082) (15,137) (567,267) - (567,267)
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for both years is as follows:

WA R 7B EF
AT AMIEFEREERZ RADN :

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&%)
Income from sales of properties HEWERA 132,543 1,048,519
Rental income and property management & U A K )3 & 1 RIS 18 & ¥ 3 U8
services income from investment A
properties 55,613 59,079
Travel agency services income TR % X 22 AR 5 U A 6,246 1,243
Income from sales of travel related S5 IR 248 B 2= o LA
products 347,867 -
Hotel and integrated resort management & & M 4R & & BT 2 & I8 KX B R R
and consultancy services income LN 2,539 -
544,708 1,108,841
Segment Information PEHER
Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company, RERDPERDMERBRFEAARAE
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”) for the = (8= BARRE ([EELEREK

purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. No operating segments have been aggregated in
arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.

EF]))BREZERTIETRAR &R
W2 EmBIRB 2B H - NEBR 25,

SRR L ES LD

Specifically, the Group’s operating and reportable segments are BEREMs AKEZKERBED WM

as follows: T

(1) Property development — Development and sales of office (1) MERBE-—NRTBERBEREERSF
premises, residential and retail properties in the PRC; B EERTEME:

(2) Property leasing — Leasing of retail properties and provision (2 MEHE-RPREEETEMERIRE
of property management services in the PRC; HYEERRT

(3) Hotel and integrated resort management and consultancy @) BERGZEEBNZEEREBEMR
services — Provision of hotel and integrated resort B-REBERGEERNEERE
management and consultancy services; and MR &

(4) Travel related products and services — Sales of travel related (4) TREEARREE o R ARTS — $H B IR AR Y

products and provision of travel agency services.

1 22 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7.
(Cont’d)
Segment Information (Cont’d)

Commencing from the current year, the CODM considers that
the Group provides travel related arrangement to certain groups
of gaming patrons under the segment of travel related products
and services.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by operating and reportable segments.

Property Property
development leasing

B NERER
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBT T

WARZEER (F)

DEBE R (&)

BEARAFEER FELEARERLAEEH
RIREREERMRES B THE TIE
R R IR IR AR LBk

NTRARBREERBENHE D2
WAREEZDH -

Hotel and
integrated resort
management Travel
and related
consultancy product and
services services Total
BER
GRERNZ gk
EERERRE ERRRE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR AR®TR AR® TR

For the year ended HZ2017512A318

31 December 2017 EE
Segment revenue from external  SMNREF A HMA

customers 132,543 55,513 2,539 354,113 544,708
Segment (loss) profit A (BE) &R (50,467) (7,551) (16,271) 17,807 (56,482)
Reversal of impairment loss BERDEEREER

recognised in respect of REEBER

deposits for non-current assets 438,000
Change in fair value of derivative T4 2RI AZ AL (E

financial instruments 28 (329,855)
Reversal of provisions for FAEERE

litigations 289,240
Share of result of an associate ~ E(FEE AR EE (37)
Unallocated other income, gains KA B EMMA » RZ R

and losses B 42,046
Unallocated finance costs AAEBERE (72,184)
Unallocated expenses RORRT (48,644)
Profit before taxation BB AR A 262,084

—_=—
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. RARDEHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment Information (Cont’d) DEBE R (&)
Hotel and
integrated resort
management Travel
and related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services Services Total
BIER
RRERNZ igiEl
EES NEHE EERERERE EmRkR% Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETTL AREFTL AREFT
For the year ended BZ2016512A31HLEE
31 December 2016 (Restated)  (E31)
Segment revenue from external  SMREE D HUA
customers 1,048,519 59,079 - 1,243 1,108,841
Segment profit (loss) AEEF (BE) 228,091 20,035 (1,714) (268) 246,144
Impairment loss recognised in -~ EFERBEER SR ZA
respect of deposits for non- EEE
current assets (316,259)
Change in fair value of derivative  fTE&RTAZ AL EES
financial instruments 17,704
Provisions for litigations FnEE (130,761)
Impairment loss recognised in B ERA L AEEBE
respect of goodwil (4,039
Unallocated other income, gains KA R EMMA Wz R
and losses B (79,613)
Unallocated finance costs RAAEBERE (105,798
Unallocated expenses AOERY (20,830)
Loss before taxation B AIEE (393,452)

The accounting policies of the operating and reportable

124  suncity Group Holdings Limited

segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies set
out in note 4. Segment results represent the profit earned by/
loss from each segment without allocation of other income,
gains and losses, reversal of impairment loss/impairment loss
recognised in respect of deposits of non-current assets, finance
costs, change in fair value of derivative financial instruments,
share of result of an associate, reversal of provisions/provisions
for litigations, impairment loss recognised in respect of goodwill
and corporate expenses. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

7. WARDEHER (F)

Segment assets and liabilities PTHEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities NTAAEEZREERREDHBE H 2
by operating and reportable segments: BENABZDW:
As at
As at 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E3)
Segment assets PBEE
Property development I EE 714,637 907,615 1,417,892
Property leasing MERE 1,734,799 1,744,821 1,725,392
Hotel and integrated resort management and BEREEERN 2 EE KBRS
consultancy services 1,401 461 352
Travel related products and services TR E o K R 7 78,265 8,214 =
Total segment assets NBEEHBE 2,529,102 2,661,111 3,143,636
Unallocated assets: AOBEEE
Interest in an associate kNI 2 1,701 - =
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRR® 289,689 86,632 899
Deferred tax assets BRERIEBE 96,307 86,036 33,310
Deposits for non-current assets RERBEELES - 140,135 439,212
Others Hif 1,902 1,139 692
Consolidated assets GREE 2,918,701 2,975,053 3,617,749
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION KARDHER (&)
(Cont’d)
Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d) THEEREE (&)
As at
As at 31 December 1 January
M2R318 WE1E
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%®Tr ARETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (E5)
Segment liabilities FPBEE
Property development EES 645,639 851,710 1,050,274
Property leasing MEHE 532,764 569,529 685,222
Hotel and integrated resort management and BERGAERNZEE KBRS
consultancy services 1,600 3,053 6,102
Travel related products and services TR R E @ & R 62,630 7,984 =
Total segment liabilities NHBERE 1,242,633 1,432,276 1,741,598
Unallocated liabilities: AOMERE:
Bank and other borrowings ROREMEER - - 650,602
Current tax liabilities BETIEE & 461,288 467,877 197,376
Deferred tax liabilities ELTEAE 357,950 355,602 341,393
Loan from immediate holding company REEEERRAER - - 440,159
Convertible bond AR ESR 411,107 365,286 =
Derivative financial instruments TS RmIE 439,938 129,675 =
Provisions for litigations RFRBE 235,000 653,843 523,082
Amount due to a director ERN—REZEHE 4,668 4,995 =
Interest payables 71 & - - 173,868
Others H 13,932 38,545 116,938
Consolidated liabilities HEER 3,166,516 3,448,099 4,185,016
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ire MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources among segments:

e all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interest in an associate, certain bank balances and cash,
deferred tax assets, deposits for non-current assets and the
corporate assets of investment holding companies; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain bank and other borrowings, loan from immediate
holding company, convertible bond, derivative financial
instruments, provisions for litigations, current tax liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities, amount due to a director, certain
other payables and the corporate liabilities of investment
holding companies.

7. WARDEHER (F)

ITHEERERE (&)
REEDBRAREDWBZEIEER :

FIBEEEANEEEZLDE XK
BRR S S TRITREBKKLR
T BERBEE FRBDEEZLR
T RREERAT 2 AR BERIN
K

EREANTEEELEDE ST
RITREMER REERERQA
ExoABaRES TEERT A
SRR B IR RARE RT
MEAE BN —R2EFXE AT
ENRERREERARZARERE
BR N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

ire M HRR N

7. WARDEHER (F)

(Cont’d)
Other segment information Hfth 5 I & H
For the year ended 31 December 2017 B E2017F12H31HIFFE
Hotel and
integrated resort Travel
management and related
Property Property consultancy ~ products and
development leasing services services Unallocated Total
EERGE
ERNZEER KERE
NERE NERE BRRH EmRRH AAE &5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Amounts included in the HANBERANPEES
measure of segment profitor ~ EEE7£HE:
loss or segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets  FEFHEERE (M)

(Note) - 2 442 1,475 2,699 4,618
Depreciation g 535 114 105 733 214 1,701
Gain on disposal of property, ~ HEWE HERRERS

plant and equipment - - - - 59 59
Interest income FEHA 43 26 - 50 45 534
Interest expense SR 19,264 26,598 - - 72,184 118,046
Change in fair value of RENF AR EE

investment properties - 7,100 - - - 7,100
Provision for potential claims ~ EEZEESE 41,882 - - - - 41,882
Impairment loss recognised in -~ #EERAZHESE

respect of inventories 57,034 - - - - 57,034
Income tax expense k2l 58,864 4,793 - 1,534 - 65,191
Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the TEHRETFEELERREEBTITAD

measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Change in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments

Reversal of provisions for
litigations

Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of
deposits for non-current
assets

Share of result of an associate

Interest in an associate

TEERIAZAALEEY

AR RED

RERDAEREERD LA
EERRE

Ma R D MEEFEZ S

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial assets and deferred tax assets. Bt 5
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Cont’d)

Other segment information (Cont’d)
For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Restated)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
=

7. WARDEHER (F)

Hit 2 HER (%)

BTSRRI o

HE2016F12H31HIFFE (EF)

Hotel and
integrated resort Travel
management and related
Property Property consultancy products and
development leasing services services Unallocated Total
BERba
ERRZERR g ifed
NEFRE NERE ER R En kR AOR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT AE®TT ARETT ARETT ARBTT
Amounts included in the FANBERANDEEE
measure of segment profitor ~ £E7% %ﬁ
loss or segment assets:
Addition to property, plant 0% FRERIERENRD
and equipment and deposit ¥ RERZEL RS
for property, plant and
equipment - 36 181 1,503 - 1,720
Depreciation il 83 246 i 81 179 1,344
Gain on disposal of property,  WEWF BE kit hE
plant and equipment - 57 - - - 57
Change in fair value of RENEL D EEY
investment properties - - 40,000 - - 40,000
Reversal of provision for EEZERERE
potential claims 14,937 - - - - 14,937
Impairment loss recognised i~ B SRR 2B ERRE
respect of inventories 21,057 - - - - 21,057
Gain on disposal of subsidlaries  Hi &M A 72 i - - 1,145 - - 1,145
Interest income LN 121 255 - 8 % 423
Interest expense HERX 47,776 38,563 - - 10,798 192,137
Income tax expense FEREY 304,629 14,210 - - - 318,839

Amounts regularly provided to the CODM but not included in the
measure of segment profit or loss or segment assets:

Change in fair value of
derivative financial
instruments

Gain from exchange of loan with

convertible bond
Provisions for litigations
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of goodwill
Impairment loss recognised in
respect of deposits for non-
current assets

TEERTIAZ AL ERS

BURRERLEERAG
i

EER{
RABED L AERR

RERDEERERALNE
BE

EHRHETIELLERREAAITAD
MaNEE D MEEFEZSRE:

17,704

1,098
130,761

4,039

316,259

17,704

1,098
130,761

4,039

316,259
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e MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)
Revenue from customers under property development segment
of the corresponding years contributing over 10% of total
revenue of the Group are as follows:

. WARTHER (&)

REBEFENEFAEDBTAAKER
WABBEI0% 2 EFEEZBALT -

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT

Customer A REH 87,000 =
Customer B ®EZ 65,000 =
Customer C =FR 65,000 =

217,000 -

No customers contributed over 10% of the total revenue of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2016.

1 30 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Cont’d)

Geographical location

The Group operates in four principal geographical areas — the
PRC, Macau, Hong Kong and Japan. The Group’s revenue from
external customers by geographical location at which the goods
were delivered and services were rendered and information
about its non-current assets (Note) by location of assets and
its associate by location of its business operations are detailed

7. WARDEHER (F)

AEERMUEEEMWERE-FE R -F
BRAXGERS AEBERINRER
RERGAERRE D ZREIBEP
WAREBBEREEMEME D 2 IF
MEBEE (M) REREXRMHE D Z
BERBZERFRMT

below:
Non-current assets

Revenue from external FRBRE
customers As at 31 December As at 1 January
REMBEFZUA M12A318 R A1A
2017 2016 2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARET T AEBTT ARETT AR
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (Z51) (Z51)
PRC G 188,056 1,107,598 1,733,963 1,741,711 1,802,210
Macau 43l 356,652 1,243 1,938 2,542 -
Hong Kong B - - 740 29 9
Japan AR - - 1,701 - -

544,708 1,108,841

1,738,342 1,744,282 1,802,309

Note: Non-current assets exclude financial assets and deferred tax assets.

M ERDEETEECREERELERAEE -
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e MR

8. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

8. HtWA WmEKEE

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Advertising income B & WA 100 200
Interest income B U A 534 423
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWME - HWE k2T

equipment 59 57

Gain from exchange of loan with convertible B2 A # J& (& 5 . 0 & K AT 5
bond (note 42) Wz (FTaE42) - 1,098
Net exchange gain (loss) Rl (BB ) F3E 41,667 (80,944)
Others Hib 1,155 2,550
43,515 (76,616)

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. RE A

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)

Effective interest expense on convertible bond A& %4 2 B 58 5 X
(note 30) (FF3E30) 72,180 4,501
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF R 26,602 29,988
Interest on other borrowings EmEEF S 19,264 157,648
118,046 192,137

No finance costs have been capitalised in 2017 (31 December

2016: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

10.PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION

10.BRBLATE R (BE)

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&E31)
Profit (loss) before taxation has been arrived at B AT &M (E1E) 2 (5
after charging (crediting) the following: A) AT
Depreciation e 1,701 1,344
Auditor’'s remuneration 1% HAD B & 2,595 1,458
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) EEME (HEE11) 11,522 2,254
Staff costs 8 TA
— salaries and wages, excluding directors —HeRkIE TREES 35,759 31,172
— share-based compensation benefits, — B 2R E R F -
excluding directors and consultants TEiEESNERE 934 -
— retirements benefits scheme contributions, —RIRE ARG EIGE5K
excluding directors TEEES 2,042 2,548
Total staff costs, excluding directors BMETHA  TEEES 38,735 33,720
(Reversal of impairment loss) impairment loss HIETRBEEREERLZ
recognised in respect of deposits for non- CREEEREE ) REEE
current assets (438,000) 316,259
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BB REE 2 W=
equipment (59) (57)
Change in fair value of investment properties BREMENRREEE 7,100 (40,000)
Change in fair value of derivative financial MESMIANAREE
instruments 329,855 (17,704)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of REFEERZBREEE
inventories 57,034 21,557
Impairment loss recognised in respect of IHEERZBEEE
goodwill - 4,039
Impairment loss recognised in respect of F AR TEN R
prepayment for land use right BB 1E - 99,330
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR 2 WaE - (1,145)
Legal and professional fee for litigations FAZERRBHEE 3,191 662
Minimum lease payments under operating leases ¥ A% 2 KEHE N &IKHE
in respect of office premises B3 4,238 8,988
Cost of sales $H & B AR
— cost of properties sold — S E KA 30,326 559,870
— cost of travel-related products sold — IR 548 BA EE Gh 8H B A AR 327,409 =
— cost of services rendered — R AR B A AN 4,923 4,975
362,658 564,845
Gross rental income from investment properties RE& ¥ ¥ 2 B & WA @5 (42,277) (44,583)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for W IREMEEECEELE
investment properties =53 685 813
(41,592) (43,770)

e
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11.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

MMEEZEREEMS

Retirement
benefit Share-based
Salaries and scheme Benefit compensation
Appointment date Resignation date Fees allowances contributions in kind benefits Total
RAEN RkaE#R
ZERH HERE e HeREE  GEMR  EMEA  BEEA it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TRE ARETR ARETR AR%TR AR¥Tn ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2017
HZ017F12A31BLEE
Executive Directors
angs
Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 104 - 5 - - 109
RlEE 201159428 ek
Lo Kai Bong 9 March 2017 N/A 1,369 - 13 - 3,019 4,401
ERF 201743A9H AER
Au Chung On John 31 March 2017 N/A 8 5,184 4 - - 5,266
Bk 2017%3A318 TR
Manuel Assis Da Silva 31 March 2017 N/A 781 - 12 - 226 1,019
Manuel Assis DaSiva 2017437318 il
Cheng Mei Ching 2 September 2011 31 March 2017 26 - 1 - - 21
gxe 201159428 2017%3A31H
Yeung So Lai 2 September 2011 31 March 2017 26 142 4 156 - 328
ESS 201145942 2017434317
Yeung So Mui 5 Qctober 2010 20 July 2017 57 - 3 - - 60
E 2010510858 201757A208
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUEHTES
Lo Wai Tung John 10 Qctober 2012 N/A 104 - - - - 104
EBR 20125108108 ki
Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 104 - - - - 104
ig 45 2012548268 ek
Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 104 - - - - 104
ifit) 2012548268 ek
Totel 435t 2,753 5,326 42 156 3,245 11,522
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

11.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS  11.

(Cont’d)

Salaries and
Appointment date Resignation date Fees  allowances
ZERE HERH ne HeREW

RMB'000  RWB'000
ARBTR  ARETT

ESkEEMS (F)
Retirement
benefit Share-based
scheme Benefit  compensation
contributions in kind benefits Total
RIGET R RER
HEER EOEA iR st

RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'OO0  RMB'00
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Year ended 31 December 2016

HE216512A31ALEE

Executive Directors

HiEs

Chau Cheok Wa 2 September 2011 N/A 108 - 5 - - 108
BlE 201159828 ki

Cheng Mei Ching 2 September 2011 N/A 108 - 5 - - 108
gz 201159428 Nl

Yeung So Lai 2 September 2011 N/A 108 783 15 720 - 1,621
ES 201159828 oy ki

Yeung So Mui 5 QOctober 2010 N/A 103 = 5 = = 108
EL 20105108 5H AR

Independent Non-executive Directors

BUkaES

Lo Wai Tung John 10 QOctober 2012 N/A 103 = = = = 103
EER 20125108108 i ki

Tou Kin Chuen 26 April 2012 N/A 103 - - - - 103
i 45 201254 A26H Oyl

Wu Kam Fun Roderick 26 April 2012 N/A 103 - - - - 103
L 201244 726H Iyl

Total 721 783 30 720 - 2,254

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were for their
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group. The emoluments of the Independent
Non-executive Directors shown above were for their services as
directors of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to
the Group under the share option scheme of the Company.
Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EXFTRATESCHE I RRENE
BARRIRAEESHEML 2 RS - £X
FIRBYFATEEZME I BREE
EARRAEFREZ RS -

HE2017F12A31B L FE - REARQ
AEREEIE TESHARNEERME
Rl 75 T JE £ B AR A o R AR AT Bl 2 FEIB K
PR IR A B 5 3R R T 532 o

—E-LEER  ABEEERREEAT 13D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

11.DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

MNEEREEMS (E)

(Cont’d)
Ms. Yeung So Lai was the chief executive officer since February
2012 and the position was vacant after her resignation.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
both years.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
2 (81 December 2016: 1) were the directors of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosure above.
The emoluments of the remaining 3 (31 December 2016: 4)
individuals were as follows:

BEBRZ T Y BH201242 A BEEITHRAZ
5 BB R B T R o

RREFER  TESERTREARNE
HFEBHERE AL B -

REEBRZ &R MWME ALF2% (20164
12A318 :18) AARAES  EfEH
M X FEA - H 834 (2016512 A 31
HE 48) ATHBES 0T :

136 suncity Group Holdings Limited

2017 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Salaries and allowances & KoERA 6,298 2,618
Share-based compensation benefits f&1n BERERHERT 415 =
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRFEFIET B3R 16 52
6,729 2,670

The emoluments of the remaining 3 (31 December 2016: 4)

H 434 (20165F12A31H : 48 ) Bl & &

individuals with the highest emolument are within the following SATHEICEENT
bands:
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AE
2017 2016
Nil to HK$1,000,000 (Equivalent to Nil to £ 51,000,000 7 (FHERZ
RMB865,000) 2= AR #865,0007T ) - 4

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 (Equivalent to
RMB1,730,001 to RMB2,162,500)

2,000,001 7T £2,500,000/%
7C (F8E N A R #1,730,001

TTE AR2162,5007T) 2 =

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (Equivalent to
RMB2,162,501 to RMB2,595,000)

2,500,001 7t £3,000,000/%
JC (FEE N ARE2,162,501

TTE A K #2,595,0007T ) 1 -

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12.FT S8 B XX
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(Restated)
(&%)
Current tax B HA 5 18
— Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) —1EMED
([EMBR]) 15,524 128,626
— Macau Complementary Income Tax (‘CIT”)  —RFI@E TSR
(RS R]) 1,534 =
17,058 128,626
LAT T b IBE B 56,056 228,730
Deferred tax (note 19) ELERE (KFEE19) (7,923) (38,517)
65,191 318,839
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (@) ERREH

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (31 December
2016: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits. No
provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made as the
Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong
Kong.

(b) EIT
Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on EIT (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

(b)

BAMER DG ERBEN 2
16.5% (2016512 A31H : 16.5% )
AE -ARAREWALIFEEBF K
REED WHMERTBEHBAFEHLE
e

TEFREH
REFRCEMBRE([REMB
Bkl REEMESHEEEES 8
2008F1A1H AL B KB A
A)HY T K B25% o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

138 suncity Group Holdings Limited

PRC withholding income tax

PRC withholding income tax of 10% shall be levied on the
dividends declared by the companies established in the
PRC to their foreign investors out of their profits earned after
1 January 2008. A lower 5% withholding tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the PRC
subsidiaries are incorporated or operated in Hong Kong
and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between the PRC and Hong Kong.

LAT

The provision for LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progressive
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
deductions.

Overseas income tax

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 of the Cayman Islands
and accordingly, is exempted from the Cayman Islands
income tax. The Company’s subsidiaries in the BVI were
incorporated under the International Business Companies
Act of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

CIT

CIT is calculated at the progressive rate on the estimated
assessable profits. The maximum tax rate is 12% for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Annual Report 2017

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

12.FiEBiRx (&)

FEEHMAEH
RAEBKS AR MEGIIMNEEES
&K E1200841 A1 H #E BB & F 19 A%
BIER10% T RGN BFEINE
o AP BRI B A R E R A R
TREBFEME SN BB EEALR
EHRBEERBENR G ELHE RS
T B fE 5% BB RIFL =R

TR ER

THIRENBEEIREBERETBERA
R ARG P, 2 SR (A T - L i 3B E
ERIBER 2 REV RBE(F LB
W BESETHHMER -

BINFREH
RRBRIEH SRS AP F 228 A7
ERRERESEMRIAERRER
RE AL ERRBRFESESH
BB -ARRZHBARRIBRELE
ARREERPAERRARNEB AR
REFB ML F itk - B E % 80
RERBARBESAEN-

WERREHR

MRS IDBEMGTERH R
A 2HER R E - HZE2017F &
2016F12A31H I F & ' & i Ft K
B12% ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont’d)

(g) The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the profit (loss) before taxation per the

12.FiEBRx (&)

(9) FAPEHF X R
Ut 2k R ER B A A (B 1R ) 2 ¥

aEakEME

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BRIAR
comprehensive income as follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Profit (loss) before taxation BB AT = A (E518) 262,084 (393,452)
Notional tax calculated at EIT rate of 25% &b ¥ FT 1S Fi i £25% (2016
(31 December 2016: 25%) (Note) F12A31H :25% )T EH
ZEME (M) 65,521 (98,363)
Tax effect of non-taxable income BAFHRANH BT E (192,375) (18,841)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S A R T 2 2 133,060 231,354
Tax effect of deductible temporary RF AR A HR SR A
difference not recognised THRIE R & 14,258 5,389
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RTUBERRIBEENTIBY
* 6,295 33,312
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses A LR ARERTIEBEOR
previously not recognised bR (3,610) (5,558)
LAT T+ B (E TR 56,056 228,730
Tax effect on LAT deductible for TERTS LR A = H 3 B F A9
calculation of EIT W& (14,014) (57,184)
Income tax expense for the year REESREX 65,191 318,839

Note: The tax rate represents the statutory tax rate of the operations in the

jurisdiction where the operations of the Group are substantially based.

et B EEARERBOEEHEREEER X
BHPDEETE -

—2—tEEg  ABEsEzRERas 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

13.DIVIDENDS 13. R B

The board of directors does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

14.EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 14.8KR 2R (BHR)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share

BEEQUWEERRKNEE2017F £2016
FI2A31HIEFESFE 2 RBAKE -

ARABHEBABRESRERRETR T

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

Earnings (loss) figures are calculated as follows:

(BR) 2t EEEMT

a7 (B8R BB EWT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
(Restated)
(&751)
Earnings (loss) ZF (BE)
Earnings (loss) for the purpose of basic SAESRERNRESERN (BE)
and diluted earnings (loss) per share ZBF (EE) (KRREE A
(profit (loss) for the year attributable to FEEFEREFN (EE) )
owners of the Company) 197,002 (702,236)
Number of shares
B & B
2017 2016
(Restated)
(&%)
Number of shares RoER
Weighted average number of ordinary STEEREARZR (EE) 2 T@k

shares for the purpose of basic earnings

(loss) per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options

2 I ¥ 39 2

6,072,849,666 1,931,724,464
mEHBEEBRZTE:
R

124,116,274 N/A T @EH

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of diluted
earnings (loss) per share

AAEEREAEERN (BB)2E
B I 2 AN T 19 B

6,196,965,940 1,931,724,464
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

14.EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Cont’d)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in
the calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 have been adjusted to reflect
the bonus element of the issue of rights shares during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the computation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the conversion of
the outstanding convertible bond of the Company since the
conversion of the outstanding convertible bond would result in
increase in earnings per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the computation of
diluted loss per share does not assume the exercise of the
Company’s outstanding share options and the conversion of
the outstanding convertible bond of the Company since the
assumed exercise of those share options and the conversion of
the outstanding convertible bond would result in decrease in loss
per share.

14.8KREBF (BR) (&)

S EEE2016F12A31HIEFEZER
N SE BB TR 2 AR I T &
BT HAE UREEZE2016F12H31H
IFFEH-REITZAFED -

HE2017F12A31B EEE ;FEEFR
BERMGURBEERAAARESR
MR ES  REASREERRERETR
MRAE 51K < T IREB AL -

HE2016F 128318 IEEE st EFK
BEEBRIRBRITERRARITE
EIRERERA A B RERATRRES
REABHZTEZEEREREHBRARE
BABRESFBELSEREBRD -
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

15.9% -BERZRE

Leasehold Furniture Motor
improvement and fixture vehicles Total
HEWEEE HKEARHEE RE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTIT ARETRT AR®TET
At cost N
At 1 January 2016 R2016%1 A1H - 6,058 7,463 13,521
Acquisition of a subsidiary & — I B A 7 571 27 314 912
Additions NE - 212 5 217
Disposals = - (3,351) (231) (3,582)
Disposal of subsidiaries L EME A Al = (15) = (15)
Exchange differences X =5 22 1 13 36
At 31 December 2016 and  FA2016F12 H31H &

1 January 2017 201751 A1H 593 2,932 7,564 11,089
Additions NE 904 86 1,883 2,873
Disposals & - (86) (591) 677)
Exchange differences e N =58 (53) (4) (75) (132)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%F12H831H 1,444 2,928 8,781 13,153
Accumulated depreciation Z:itiTE
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1H - 5,547 5,131 10,678
Charge for the year REFHE 39 155 1,150 1,344
Eliminated on disposals & B 3 8E - (3,351) (219) (3,570)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWB QA - (13) = (13)
Exchange differences ME 5, = 2 1 4 7
At 31 December 2016 and 72016512 H31H &

1 January 2017 201741 A1H 41 2,339 6,066 8,446
Charge for the year AKEFHE 398 180 1,123 1,701
Eliminated on disposals 6 B 8 - (1) (561) (562)
Exchange differences b N =5 9 (1) (27) (37)
At 31 December 2017 R20175128318 430 2,517 6,601 9,548
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2017 M20175612H31H 1,014 411 2,180 3,605
At 31 December 2016 K2016F12H31H 552 593 1,498 2,643
At 1 January 2016 R2016F1 A1H - 511 2,332 2,843
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ire MR

15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are

depreciated over their estimated useful lives and after taking into

account their estimated residual values, using the straight-line

method, as follows:

Leasehold improvement  Over the shorter of the term of the
lease and 20 years

Furniture and fixture 3 to 5 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December

15. 9% BERERE (&)

Bt E - BRE K& R B R E N T A
AERFEHAERERET AR HIT L
At R E A RIERELE

MEMERE T EI 204 (B
E R
REREE 3FE54
R 45
16. 1B

As at 1 January

M12H31H M1 A18
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT ARBT T
Fair value ARE

At 1 January ®1A1H 1,732,000 1,692,000 1,597,000

Fair value (loss) gain recognised RIEBZNERZ AR E
in profit or loss (FE18) e (7,100) 40,000 95,000
At 31 December M12A31H 1,724,900 1,732,000 1,692,000

All of the Group’s investment properties held under operating
lease to earn rentals are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The Group engages Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited and
ROMA Appraisal Limited, independent and professionally
qualified valuers not connected to the Group to perform the
valuation for the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, respectively.
The valuation committee works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation technigues and
inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer reports the
valuation committee’s findings to the board of directors of the
Company every six months to explain the cause of fluctuations in
the fair value of the investment properties.

AEBEZEERORIERDRAEASREZ
BREMEDERAAEBRAGE X
DEREMERNREMEARK-

M2017612H31H k2016512 H31H -
AEEDHEREFEFEBERAA RE
FSERFEERAR (HREAKEYE
MENBEXSERMERN) HAKE
BREMEZ AR EETHE-HEZES
HAEMINELEMBREAE  HIFIEE
MEERMERABARE M RES
NEARARREFCERMBEZES
ZHEERAFPAREMERIAERD
ZIRA -
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e M mRM T

16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d) 16.REW= (&)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all investment properties
of the Group have been pledged to secure the Group’s bank
borrowings and details are set out in note 29.

Income approach operates by taking into account the rental
income of the property derived from the existing tenancy
with due allowance for the reversionary income potential of
the tenancy which are then capitalised into the value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, all investment properties
are included in Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during both
years and there were no transfers among the fair value hierarchy
during both years.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements of investment
properties:

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable inputs
EREE R FTABEZEERAE

REFMEZRIRER  ZEVEZES
ReEREA/ERKFZAE-

MR20174 K20165E12A31H @ K & & fr
EREMEDIKBEUIEASRNEBRTE
BEZER BBEFBIHNHE29 -

WANEREBFRERBENELEZDE
MEWA - WEEFREOZBBBANE
N RBRREENEMEEREERNER
ETEE-

MR20174 N&2016F12HA31H » A& & Fr
EREMETARARBEERRNAFEIR -
R EFEE A GERMT I &5 8 RW
HAEEAALRBEERANLEER -

BRAREMERIRAABAEZER:

Sensitivity
BRE

All Investment Income approach

The rental unit rates range from
RMB18,366 (31 December 2016:

A significant increase in
the rental unit rate used
would result in a significant
increase in fair value, and
vice vesa.

RMB27,891 (31 December 2016:

PR B & K8 _EiR&E
HAAEREEMN k2T

properties (81 December 2016:

Income approach) RMB10,535) to RMB58,313
(81 December 2016:
RMB43,000) per square meter
with weighted average of
RMB26,897) per square meter.

FRBEIREMZE W AE BUHENFEEARARE
(20165 12A31H : 18,3667T (2016612 A31H : A
WAE)

R #10,53570) & AR #58,313 A o

70 (2016%F12A31H : AR
43,0007T) - NEFHES A/ET
7 A& AR #27,8917T (2016412
A31H8 : AR¥26,8977T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

17.PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS FOR NON-

CURRENT ASSETS

The prepayment and deposits are for the following items:

17.RBEEZANERES

UTERzZANEREE

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 HA1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBT T ART T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&751) (&75)
Land use right in the PRC A AR B A 4 b {55 R A
(Note (a)) (b 7E(a) ) 8,136 8,136 107,466
Property development projects in 72 FR Bl &) ¥ % 25 R 18 B
the PRC (Note (b)) (FF=E(D) ) - = 316,259
Potential investment project in R BIA)EER LB
the PRC (Note (c)) (KtaE(e)) - 140,135 122,953
Property, plant and equipment  #% i E & & - 1,503 -
8,136 149,774 546,678
Notes: B 5

(@) The prepayment represents the consideration of the land use right and related

tax of a project in the PRC which was fully paid by the Group in 2014.

Pursuant to the terms stipulated in the land use right transfer agreement (the
“Agreement”) signed between the Group and the Fushun Land and Resources
Bureau (“FLRB”) in 2014, the construction is required to be completed
before 30 April 2016 or the Group can apply for an extension of construction
completion date to 30 April 2017 before 30 April 2016, subject to the
approval by FLRB. FLRB is entitled to rescind the Agreement at no cost if the

Group did not comply with such term.

(@) BNEE-—EALRPEZERRZTmERER
ERAEHIE BASEDR2014F B -

BEAEEREIETBE+ERRE ([FLRB )R
014FFATz T EREEE D ([1HE])
=T BA A RN - 2SR T 127870 2016%F4 AB0H Al 78
B 3% 7K £ @A) 73201644 B30 H Al B7 75 1§ 22 58
TRE/K AHERZE2017F4A308 @ ALK
FLRBHE I o it 7 52 B 5K 38 <7 3% (53X - FLRBH #2
SRR IE R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

17.PREPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS FOR NON-
CURRENT ASSETS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(a)

146 suncity Group Holdings Limited

(Cont’d)

Neither the management of the Group applied for the extension of the
construction completion date by 30 April 2016, nor FLRB agreed to extend
the construction completion date as at 31 December 2016. The directors
of the Company are in the opinion that the construction was unlikely to
be approved by FLRB given that FLRB held up the application of the
construction commencement lodged by the Group during the current year.
Therefore, the directors of the Company impaired the entire prepayment
amounting to RMB99,330,000 during the year ended 31 December 2016
given that the Group could not complete the construction before 30 April
2016 with no extension applied during the year ended 31 December 2016.
The remaining balance represents the prepayment for land use right for a
property project in the PRC.

The deposit represents the earnest monies paid under two memorandums of
understanding entered into with different independent third parties in relation
to two property development projects in the PRC.

The Group paid deposits of RMB150,000,000 for a project in
Jiangsu Province (“Jiangsu Project”) to a company and approximately
RMB316,259,000 for a project in Anhui Province (“Anhui Project”) to an
individual during the year ended 31 December 2011.

As the directors of the Company were in the opinion that the projects were
not feasible and the earnest monies could not be recovered, the deposits for
Jiangsu Project and Anhui Project were fully impaired during the years ended
31 December 2014 and 31 December 2016, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has received the refund
of RMB150,000,000 and RMB288,000,000 for Jiangsu Project and Anhui
Project, respectively after the series of follow up collection actions taken by
the management of the Group. Accordingly, reversal of impairment loss of
such deposits of RMB438,000,000 is recognised during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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17.RBEEZHEFEREZS

(#&)

MigE: (8&)

@ (&)
AEEEEERN2016F4 A30R Al #E £ B 75
E%%IEEWE%'EH%Wﬁﬁﬁkg
L TIR%EK B HTEBRE2016F12A318 - ER

FLRBIEEASERAFFER ZRETREN
THF MARBIESERAFLRBTAIAE G L&
BETR B ERAKEIL AN201654 A
S0BRTEAERETIE AR B 201651231
BIEEEMERETH RARRESHES
2016F12ABIB L FHEZ 2 HENEARY
99,330,0007T. 1E i i & © #r B 15 BL Az 7 R B 2
—EAYEBEAZ L MEREINZENS

BEETRBILE =7 st nd B2 M E Y%
RBHEBFLZMARERETEN XN ZHE

RNEEREZ2011F12A318 EFERLR
IEAMER ([IHEBE ] RURZHAEAD
BEH(IZBEBDARR—HEARR—EA
T X 1z & AR %150,000,0007T & 49 A R #&
316,259,0007T °

HARARBEETRRAZEZHATATERES
FOEIE - BUIHE R RELHIEBNIES S 5
REE2014F12A318 IL F B K # £20164F
12 A31 B IEFEE LB EURE -

HZE2017F12A31BILFE KAEEEEE
KRS B EBFNITER  NEEFHIEHER
RZHEE 5 5l ER KA R %150,000,0007T
& A K #288,000,0007T ° A it + A & 20174
12AB1BILFE  HREREBRARMEBER
B A R %438,000,0007T °



17.P

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

REPAYMENT AND DEPOSITS FOR NON-

CURRENT ASSETS (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

()

Pursuant to the strategic cooperation agreement signed between the Group
and an independent third party on 1 February 2014, the Group and the
independent third party will explore investment opportunities together in
the PRC for 3 years from the date of strategic cooperation agreement. The
actual detailed terms and conditions for the investment(s) under the strategic
cooperation agreement shall be subject to the entering of formal agreement(s)
between the relevant parties. As at 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2016,
deposits of RMB140,135,000 and RMB122,953,000, were paid by the Group
for this strategic cooperation agreement, respectively.

As the strategic cooperation agreement was expired on 31 January 2017, the
entire amount is received by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017.

17.RBEEZANERES

(&)
fitsE s (4)
© RER20145281BR-EBIE=HETZ

REEEEHS  AEEEZEBIFE=F AR
B4 e B BBt = F N AR NP EZKE
BB - RS EMRB T ARIRE 2 B4
GRRIGHEGFEASHITCEABEE A
A {EE - R20165F12 318 K2016F1A18 -
AEERZRBEEBZE I X Tize ARY
140,135,0007T & A R #122,953,0007T

MR B A EHEER2017E1 A1 BEim » 4
HZE2017F12A31 B ILFEAKEE WEH 256

I -

18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18. RN E A E =

2017
RMB’000
AR T
Cost of unlisted investment I EMIRE KA 1,745

Share of post-acquisition loss and other BB EEREREMEER HKRE
comprehensive expense, net of dividends received U BR A% 2, (37)
Exchange differences PE 5 =% (7)
1,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d) 18.REt&E N e s (&)
The following sets out the particulars of the associate of the LA TR &5 2017412 A31 B 728 & @ B &
Group at 31 December 2017 which, in the opinion of the RAZHB (ARRAESRAETEFENR
directors of the Company, principally affected the results or net SEXEENEEFE) °

assets of the Group.

Place of Attributable equity

Name of registration and interest held by the  Principal

associate operation Legal form Paid up share capital Group  business

rEERFAEZ

BenRERE AR EEL R EEFR BRRAE EakE ZEXEK

2017
SeKeY A @4 Japan Limited Company ~ JPY100,000,000 30% Investment holding
A7 ARAF 100,000,000H (Note) ~ HEZR
()

Note: The associate was incorporated in Japan on 27 November 2017. The Group Ptk - % Bt & 2 R 20174511 A27 B 7 B A Ak
held 30% equity interest in the associate and the rest 70% equity interest was o AN B R A A B 2 30% M HE K 2 8
held by two independent third parties. T70%BEEM BB LE=T#H

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in the Z R AR E AR AN ARG R R

consolidated financial statements. AARK-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

18.INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont’d)

18.RBE QTR (&)

The financial information of the associate is summarised as ZHERNR M BERBEWNT

follows:

From

27 November
2017 to

31 December
2017
H20174F
11H27H
ZF2017%F
12A31H
RMB’000
AR®T T

The Group’s share of loss and other comprehensive A& EE(EHABEREMEZERAT

expense for the period

(37)

As at

31 December
2017
120175
12A31H
RMB’000
AR®T T

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in the
associate

e

JiE]

KBS A R 2 BRE A
1,701
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

19.DEFERRED TAX 19.3E ZE B 18
The components of deferred tax assets (liabilities) recognised RAFEERBEFENGZEEGHBMRRAE
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the NERHNEEHBEEE (BE) o kE
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: E)R(I NS
Revaluation Accelerated Capitalisation
of investment LAT tax of interest
properties provision depreciation expenses Total
BEHRE LHEEB mEHE FNEXZHE
LS BE e 1k iz
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTRT AR¥ETT ARBTT AR®TR

At 1 January 2016 120161818

(Restated) (271) (310,008) 33,109 (31,385) 201 (308,083)
(Charge) credit to profit (3B &)zt A B

or loss (10,000) 52,838 (4,209) (112) 38,517

At 31 December 2016 F2016512 8318
and 1 January 2017 K2017%1R1H

(Restated) (E3) (320,008) 85,947 (35,594) 89 (269,566)
Credit (charge) to profit & A (1B &) B2

or loss 1,775 10,276 (4,123) (5) 7,923
At 31 December 2017 2017512A31H (318,233) 96,223 (39,717) 84 (261,643)
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement BRIFREMBERRERNZY B TIEER
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities HEERBRBEEHE UTARYHER
have been offset. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax B 25| 2 mETIEA R D AT

balances for financial reporting purposes:

As at 31 December As at 1 January

R12831H »®1A18

2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T ARBTT

(Restated) (Restated)

(Z5) (&%)

Deferred tax assets R IE & B 96,307 86,036 33,310
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEEE (357,950) (355,602) (341,393)
(261,643) (269,566) (308,083)

1 50 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

19.DEFERRED TAX (Cont’d) 19.EEBIE (&)
At 31 December 2017, the Group had unused tax losses MR2017%F12A8318 A& BB K& A
of approximately RMB262,540,000 (31 December 2016: TRIEE 1B 4 A R #262,540,0007T (2016
RMB251,800,000 and 1 January 2016: RMB140,784,000), F12A31H : AR ¥251,800,0007T &
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset 20161 H1H : A K #140,784,0007T )
has been recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the AJ 4 3 88 R 2R F) o 2R 2R s Al i S AT 7B
unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses will be A H I T RRIE R IR & B o BiIA S 18
expired at various times within a period of five years from the 18 B B8 I ar 1t 68 [ RB54F B [ (9 1 B &
year of origination. CIENTE
20.INVENTORIES 20. 78
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 H1HE
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBF T AR¥T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(EZ751) ==
Properties under development 3 EF Y3 222,672 279,272 288,295
Properties held for sale FIELEME 421,739 452,628 978,812
Travel related products i< 3% 46 B8 2= om 8,819 = -
653,230 731,900 1,267,107
During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, KRB E2017F 220165 12H31H I F
impairment loss of RMB57,034,000 and RMB21,557,000 have E ERFESAERREESEARE
been recognised in respect of inventories, respectively as the 57,084,0007T & A R #21,557,0007T * T3
net realisable value of the properties under development is lower RAexRPYE S FEERRER
than the carrying amount. [EINER
The properties held for sale were located in the PRC. Properties FEL S WHEAM N B o FEHIR R & R
held for sale which are expected to be recovered in more HHERBBB12E A AR E 2 FIED
than twelve months after the end of each reporting period are EMESIEARDEE  AR/EHAIRA
classified under current assets as it is expected to be realised in SEIEFRLERENER-

the Group’s normal operating cycle.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR

20.INVENTORIES (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, certain inventories have
been pledged to secure the Group’s bank borrowings and

details are set out in note 29.

As stated in note 28, certain properties held for sales have been
seized by the court in the PRC in relation to the litigations.

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

20.7E (%)

MR20174 2016128310 5T =&
BEBMEAREERITEEZER &
%A 5 15 B A BT 5E29 o

AP EE28FTAR - B T EH EMEE R
B BEREE -

1. BEWRERF R EMERR

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12A831H W1HA1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(Z51) (&%)
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEU R 3K (FI5E(a) ) 59,022 25,101 330
Other receivables (Note (b)) H e YR (B EE(D)) 7,983 10,507 42,228
Deposit for a litigation (Note () FeFaA 2% (HIFE(C)) - 84,603 =
Other deposits (Note (d)) HAniz e (HFEd)) 54,387 4,610 2,819
121,392 124,821 45,377

Notes: B 5

(a) Proceeds receivable in respect of sale of properties are settled in accordance
with the terms stipulated in the sale and purchase agreements. Buyers are
not granted with any credit period for both years. For the trade receivables
in respect of rental income from lease of properties, no credit periods are

granted for both years.

Except for the proceeds receivable from sale of properties and rental income
from lease of properties which are payable on demand and payable in
advance monthly, respectively, the Group generally allows a credit period of

not exceeding 30 days to its customers.
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MAEEMRELEZHESWAR R BUERRT
5 REFERERHEES-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(@)

(Cont’d)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables based on the dates of
the properties delivered, dates of check-in and invoice dates at the end of

21. B IR R H b B UK ()

MfEE: (&)
@ (&)

AT AN REPRERRRZDERNAS
BRKBEHREZAH RAER B HRR) 27

each reporting period which approximated the revenue recognition dates: ZARER DT
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12831H M1A18
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T ARBTFT AREFTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&351) (&31)
Within 30 days 30HA 56,791 1,767 232
31 - 90 days 31H ZE90H 31 164 73
91 - 180 days 91H =180H 120 - 25
Over 180 days HBi@180H 2,080 23,170 -
59,022 25,101 330

As at 31 December 2017, approximately RMB2,231,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB25,084,000 (restated) and 1 January 2016: RMB98,000 (restated)) of
trade receivables are past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group has not provided for impairment loss. The Group is entitled to
take over the legal title and possession of the underlying properties for resale
under the sales and purchase agreements and rental deposits were held as
collateral over the proceeds receivable in respect of rental income from lease
of properties. The Group does not hold any collateral as security for other
trade receivable.

R2017F12A31H  BEREXRODARE
2,231,0007t (2016%F12A31H: AR
25,084,0007t (E%]) %2016F1A18 : ARME
98,0007t (E7|) )RR EHREH - BEAEE
WARIELREBSEREGE AEEBEREEEIEH
MEZEEXRERMERUERIZEEE HEE
& HHESKENEAMENEEEZESH
SYEBZERRBZEBRmMES - AEEL
EREAM BRI EMERRERER-

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired © 181 HA B 5K i 1B FE UK BR % =2 BR iR
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12831H ®1A18
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBETFT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E75) (231)

Past due for: B

Within 30 days 30HRA - 1,750 -
31 - 90 days 31HZE90H 31 164 73
91 - 180 days 91H £180H 120 - 25
Over 180 days #B@B180H 2,080 23,170 -
Total Fae 2,231 25,084 98
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) N ERERREMER (&)

Notes: (Cont’d)

(b) Other receivables are non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable within one year from the end of each reporting period.

(c) As details set out in note 28, the balance represents the deposit placed in
the court in relation to the Consultant Claim (as defined in note 28) as at
31 December 2016. Such deposit was paid to the Claimant during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

(d) The balance mainly represents construction deposits of approximately
RMB52,000,000 for properties under development as at 31 December 2017
(31 December 2016: Nil and 1 January 2016: Nil). As the deposit is expected
to be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle, such deposit is classified

as current assets.

22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A RELATED

COMPANY/DIRECTORS/LOAN FROM
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY

The amount due to a director of RMB4,668,000 and
RMB4,995,000 as at 31 December 2017 and 2016, respectively,
represents the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) denominated
promissory note of principal amount of approximately
HK$5,584,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB4,676,000)
which is non-interest bearing and repayable after two years from
31 August 2016 (date of issuance). Included in the principal
amount is an amount of approximately RMB1,256,000 that was
settled for the consideration of acquisition of Sun Travel Ltd.
(“Sun Travel”) (note 40).

Movement of the amount due to a director during the years is as
follows:

FfsE: (&)

(b) HEEREIFEZEE BER 2ERAR
B ERRERT —FAMKE -

() mnBTsr2spT il - #RERIE HR20165F12 431 H it
BERRE (T& R E28) F RN AR MRS -
HZE2017F12A31BILFE  ZREEXNT
RREA

(d) #HHEZIENR2017F12A31BERERDEZ
ZRIE S 4 AR %52,000,0007T (2016512 A
318 : T K2016F1A1H : ) - MR BHZ R
CHRARBEFSERRANER BWZKe

JEW (BN BELQR ES

RE/ REEEZRDAER

20174 %2016F12 831 H % Bl fE fF
EEHIE ARE4,668,0007T A R
4,995,0007T 5 74 & 58 #95,584,0007 T
(FHERHARKEA,676,0007T) ZAETT
(BTN EZEALER ZSEET
A R ZAR201648A31H (%17 HH)
EBRFREIfF -A2ERBEHARE
1,256,000 B AR & 1T B K Ik iz E
PRAR ([AREERE]) 2K E (FizE40) o

FARNESKRZEHOT

RMB’000

ARET T

At 1 January 2016 R20165F1H1H =
Issuance of promissory note BITHERRER 4,676
Exchange difference e N E5 319
At 31 December 2016 M2016F12 A31H 4,995
Exchange difference E 5 =58 (327)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12831H 4,668
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A RELATED

COMPANY/DIRECTORS/LOAN FROM
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (Cont’d)

Amount represented as:

As at 31 December

2.BW (BN BELR ES

RE/ REEEEZRLARDERK
(&)
THREINA:

As at 1 January

R12H31H m1A1R

2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARET T ARETIT

Current Vi) 4,668 = =
Non-current IERB - 4,995 =
4,668 4,995 -

On 1 January 2017, the Group has entered into a management
service agreement (“MS Agreement”) with Sun City Gaming
Promotion Company Limited (“Sun City Gaming Promotion”), a
related company which is wholly owned by Mr. Chau. Pursuant
to the MS Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will provide
certain management and administrative services to the Group at
a fixed monthly fee.

On 6 February 2017, the Group has entered into a hotel
accommodation procurement agreement (“HAP Agreement”) and
ferry ticket supply agreement (“FTS Agreement”) with Sun City
Gaming Promotion.

Pursuant to the HAP Agreement, the Group will procure the
hotel accommodation products from Sun City Gaming Promotion
for its business in relation to the travel related products and
services. During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group procures the hotel accommodation products from Sun
City Gaming Promotion in aggregate of RMB326,889,000 (31
December 2016: Nil).

201761 A1 8 - R & B 8 X5 8 %
FN—ABRAF ([KEBERHAN]
R—EAEAR AALEZEHEA)F]
ERRGHE (MSWHa&]) - BIEMS
Wi ABREEA N KRS AR KRE
mMASBERES TEERTBRS -

R2017F2A60  AK B EKXG MK EY
R RTSLB 5 (18 iR SR BB & ([HAP
Whal) Rtn REE G ([FTSHE])

BIEHAP 3% + 2N 5 B8 ok L i 2 AR B 2=
o K R M ARG ER RN RBEEEE
RIS EREE - MEL 20174128318 [E 4
B AEEAKGRERPNRBBET
18 AR 7 BR B8 & B8 H 5t A R #5326,889,000
7T (2016412 A31H 1 #) o
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22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A RELATED

COMPANY/DIRECTORS/LOAN FROM
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the FTS Agreement, Sun City Gaming Promotion will
purchase the ferry ticket from the Group.

Upon signing the HAP Agreement, the Group engaged Sun
City Gaming Promotion to follow up the collection of the trade
receivables in respect of the hotel accommodation products.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, Sun City Gaming
Promotion collected RMB309,380,000 (31 December 2016: Nil)
from the customers.

There was no amount due from a related company at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB2,806,000) and
amounts due from directors of RMB666,000 at 31 December
2017 (31 December 2016: Nil) are in trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and recoverable within 30 days.

The amount due from a related company and an aging analysis
of such balance net of allowance for doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice dates at the end of each reporting period,
which approximated the respective revenue recognition dates
are as follows:

As at 31 December

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

2.BK (BN BELR ES

ME/REEEZRATER
(#)
RIBFTSHE - ABRIET N IS AAE
BRI -

MNEZBHAPH ZE  NEEBZEARGHE
T2 7Y R 3 W ER A B 5 (3 78 AR %5 £R AR
Z FEWER 5k - IR E 201712831 H 1E
FE - ABHREXFNE B RS KEA
R #309,380,0007T (2016512318 :
&) o

72017912 431 H I £ B UK 78 3E A AKX
18 (201612 A31H : A R #2,806,000
TT) * AR R2017F12 831 B BIRE =K
18 A R #5666,0007T (20165F12 311 :
E)RESMHE EBEE - £ B KRATR30
HriE -

TH2INEREHRENFEZAH (&
W AR B RS ) MR E R AR
AR ZEE e (HRRERRE) HRER
DT

As at 1 January

A12A31H ®1A1H

2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT AREF T

Within 30 days 308X

- 2,806 =
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22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A RELATED

COMPANY/DIRECTORS/LOAN FROM
IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (Cont’d)

The amounts due from directors and an aging analysis of such
balances net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based
on the invoice dates at the end of each reporting period, which
approximated the respective revenue recognition dates are as

2.BW (BN BELR ES

REREEEZRAREN
(&)
TH2ARNEREHRENERAH (A
U AR B ERARE) M B I E KR
DA %% 85 (IR RIRB ) MIRER 5
17

follows:
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12A831H M1 A1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T ARET T
Within 30 days 30B AR 666 - -

All amounts due from the related company and directors
are within the credit period as at 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016.

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The
average age of the amount due from a related company is 30
days in 2016, while the average age of the amounts due from
directors is 30 days in 2017.

The Group has not provided any allowance for doubtful debts of
amounts due from the related company and the directors for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 as the entire amounts
have been subsequently received.

MN20175FE12A31 8 k2016512 A31H -
FrefEREE AR REERBYENS
FEAfE A o

REBWERZEEBRTEEAERR -
20165 FE Y &8 N Rl FRIB 0 T BR iR /3
30H - 20174 f& W & = s IB /) F 19 BR
ik A301 °

#H E2017F N2016F12 318 IEF&E
7N £ (B 3 4 pE U BE dE N A B R RUE
STREMRERE RAEHEEHED
U 3]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

22.AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) A RELATED
COMPANY/DIRECTORS/LOAN FROM

IMMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY (Cont’d)

The amount due to a related company of RMB50,193,000 at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB2,421,000) is in trade
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable within 30 days.
An aging analysis of such balance is presented based on the
invoice dates at the end of each reporting period as follows:

2.BK (BN BELR ES

RE/ REEEZRQAER

(&)

2017412 A31 H FE(T BEE A I FRIE A
K #50,193,0007T (2016124318 :

AR#E2 421,00070) A2 5 EE -

R

A BMARHAAEE REREH
RERBZBHRIN ZRFR/BZRIEK

DT :

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M®1A18
2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARBTT ARET T

Within 30 days

30H A

50,193 2,421

The loan from immediate holding company was unsecured,
interest bearing at 2% and repayable on demand as at
1 January 2016. The entire balance was settled through
issuance of the convertible bond on 8 December 2016 at
consideration of HK$570,000,000 (equivalent to approximately

RMB505,077,000).
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RBEER H2%it B RARERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

23.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK
DEPOSITS

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits for the following
purposes:

3. BERRITER SFRHBTHE
2%

EEMRITEFERAR T BB 275K

As at 31 December As at 1 January

M12A318 M1A1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBF T AR¥T T
Securities for banking facilities ~ $R{T@E 2 &R (M 7£29)
(note 29) 6 6 2,371
Securities for mortgate loan RITRTAEBYMEER
facilities granted by the banks ~ ZIZIBEREE 2 &R
to buyers of the Group’s (MI5E33)
properties (note 33) 297 296 295
Securities for the travel agency 24 T # FE i 2 2Nt BS B 1
business to the suppliers and B2 kR ER 2 IR
license granted by the local
regulatory body 5,570 1,332 -
5,873 1,634 2,666

At 31 December 2017, the pledged bank deposits are subjected
to floating interest rate ranged from 0% to 0.3% (31 December
2016: 0% to 0.3% and 1 January 2016: 0% to 0.3%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2017, the restricted bank deposits represent
bank deposits seized by the court in the PRC as details set out
in note 28. The restricted bank deposits carry floating interest
rate ranged from 0% to 0.3% per annum.

20176 12A31H » B R 1T 17 ;IR
FEREANF0%E0.3% (2016412 A31
BH:0%%=0.3%K%20165F1 818 : 0% %
0.3% ) HZ B FIKET B o

R2017F 128318 * Z R #l R 17157 ;K36
R BUERB &3 2 SRITE R - sEIE IR B
7128 o X R H IRITFEFIRFF XN F0%
Z0.3%H))ZEFIEFT S o
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e MR

24.BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank balances and cash
are denominated in the following currencies:

24 RITHBRAS
AEBERTESRAS RN T
B EHE -

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H R1A1B8
2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT ARET T

RMB AR 261,798 55,482 27,093
United States Dollars (“US$”) Ex([ZEmx]) 74 74 74
HK$ & TT 40,465 87,867 601
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) JRPIEE (DRPIEE ) 220 16 =

302,557 143,439 27,768

The conversion of RMB denominated balances into foreign
currencies and the remittance of such foreign currencies
denominated bank balances and cash out of the PRC are
subject to the relevant rules and regulation of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2017, bank balances carry interest at prevailing
deposit rates which ranged from 0% to 0.3% (31 December
2016: 0% to 0.3% and 1 January 2016: 0% to 0.3%) per
annum.
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25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

25. B 3 BR AR I H b B4 K

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 HA1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARBTT AR¥T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(&751) (&75)
Trade payables (Notes (a) and (b)) F& 15 BR 70 (B 7E (a) K. (b) ) 76,173 112,886 206,561
Interest payables (Note (c)) FEAFILE (BT aE(c)) - = 173,868
Other payables (Note (d)) H Ath & A 5% (B 5T (d) ) 122,687 176,111 223,705
198,860 288,997 604,134
Notes: Bt 5

(a)

(b)

The credit period of trade payables ranges from 30 to 180 days.

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of each

(a) ENERZEEENFI0HZE180H °

(b) ATARSREHMREREZAH2IZRNE

reporting period based on invoice dates: K2 BRER DT
As at 31 December As at 1 January
A12831H ®1A1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E75) (&7)
0 - 90 days 0&90H 11,157 7,437 1,138
Over 90 days 90H M E 65,016 105,449 205,423
76,173 112,886 206,561

The balance represents interest payables of approximately RMB30,594,000
and RMB143,274,000 which are arising from the loan from immediate holding
company and a borrowing from a third party, respectively. The interest
payable due to immediate holding company was settled through issuing the
convertible bond and the entire amount of interest payable due to a third party
was settled by cash during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Amounts mainly include accruals, other tax payables and salaries payable.

©) HHBRIEEEERRARERRE=ZFBREEZ
FE 5 FI 2.5 Bl £ A R 30,594,000 & A R ¥
143,274,0007T ° B E2016F12 31 B L FE -
BEREEERDBZEAFIRTIEBEITAR
RIEHEE MERE=F 22 BEMAFIET
AR & #EF -

(d ZERREIECRBEREM HEMEMHEAR
e #F & e

—2-tEER  ABEsEEzREEAm 101
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26.PROVISION FOR POTENTIAL CLAIMS

The balance represents the provision for potential claims which
include refund of the deposit and compensation to the buyers
of the properties held for sale in relation to the breach of terms
stipulated in the sales and purchase agreement entered into
between the Group and the buyers.

Certain properties under pre-sale arrangement have been
seized by the court due to the litigations as set out in note 28
since 2015. As a result, the Group failed to fulfil the obligations
stipulated in the sales and purchase agreement within the
predetermined period of time.

The Group is liable to the claims for the return of pre-sale
deposits and instalment payments made by the buyers and
compensation stipulated in sales and purchase agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain properties
were released by the court as set out in note 28 and the
Group has performed the obligations stipulated in the sales
and purchase agreements, and reversal of provision of
RMB14,937,000 was recognised in profit or loss. However,
as the Group received a Judgement (as defined in note 28),
additional properties have been seized by the court which leads
to non-fulfilment of certain obligations stipulated in the sales and
purchase agreements and therefore RMB41,882,000 of provision
has been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017.

No claims from the buyers have been received by the Group
during both years.

The movement of the provision for potential claims is shown as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

26. B RERE

BREEERERE ETERFKEHE
MEZETHRERAEEEE T Z
BEEWRAIAZBIMELZRESRD
REE(E

B2015F 1 HELXHBE T Z2ETYER
F P E28A it 2 SR AT BOEPE B 3 - A%
BEZNIAEMRABITE B H#R A
ZEfE-

AREAAEETIFHZRERERS
MAOBNRZREBARBEEBETHRE
ZHEE

H ZE=2016%F12A31B L F & AR E
BRHF28E 2 E THE BEASEE
BOEEMEB2EM WRIBEEHE
R RO A R#14,937,0007T ° AT
A A S B U B 0k (FE & R sE28) -
HtEB W AR E S ERELBIT
BEEWRBAZE TEE BREE
2017F12A31H L FEERABEARE
41,882,0007T °

%

MEFE EOBMERAEERLR

i

A

BERERGBESHINMT

RMB’000

AREFIT

At 1 January 2016 (Restated) R2016%F1 818 (&%) 15,137
Credit to profit or loss s AE = (14,937)
At 31 December 2016 (Restated) R2016F12831H (E31]) 200
Charge to profit or loss Mk E = 41,882
At 31 December 2017 R20175E12 A31H 42,082
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27.RECEIPT IN ADVANCE

Receipt in advance represents sales proceeds received from
buyers in connection with the Group’s pre-sales of properties
and prepaid rental and management fee from tenants of the
Group’s investment properties. The entire receipt in advance is
expected to be released to profit or loss within one year.

28.PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS

In July 2017, the Group has received an enforcement civil
ruling (the “Judgement”) from E R A &I & A RER
(the “Intermediate Court”) relating to the enforcement of a civil
claim (the “Bank Claim”) taken out by a bank (the “Bank”). As
alleged by the Bank under the Bank Claim, the Bank Claim
relates to a loan agreement for a loan with principal amount of
RMB120,000,000 (the “Bank Loan”) and made between the
Bank and a company (the “Borrower”), which is not connected
to the Group, established in the PRC as borrower in prior years.
Pursuant to the Bank Claim, it was alleged that /& JI| & 3 = ih &=
FE AR AR (“Shenzhen Zirui”) and ARG it 42 #h 2 & E AR A
Al (“Sun Century Property”), both being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC, together
with other four defendants which are not connected to the
Group in the Bank Claim, had been acting as guarantors for the
Bank Loan.

The provision for the Bank Claim is determined by the terms of
the loan agreement under which, the loan is interest bearing at
24% per annum and repayable within 6 months from date of
withdrawal of the loan. Beyond the loan period, the interest will
be adjusted to 36% per annum and all unpaid interest will be
subject to compound interest rate at 36% per annum until the
loan is settled.

27.

28.

T8 W AR K
BURESRREAEEERENEBES
WHHIHERMSAKEAREEENE
MWEPUBMBENEE R ERE - FAARE
WHRBEEHAMERABEEER -

BEFRAZ R

201767 R AEBWEIERAE RIT
PRANRER ([FRER]) BARIT—
MRT([RITDRENNRETRE([R
TRENHOREHITHEE ([HR]) -
BRITBIBRITREER RITRES
RRITE—MEF BRI AR ([FR
Al (BAREEHERE) NBTFER
A S A AR 120,000,000 H E
F([RITER]) 2ER M - BRIBRTT
RE ANEKEEHEREBR AR (DF
WK RABHLHESBER QA
(IRt mE]) (BARERRABRFE
BRI BEEEENRBAR)ERRITRE
R BINT B (ALK BB ERE) W
EBETRITERNERA

RITREBERET R GRRETE
Bt EFIRF R R24%51 8 BARRE
BMER AR EAAER - WBAER
HARR - KK AL RI6% BEREEE
RACFIARERNNSARESFNE
36%5T S °
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28.PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the Judgement, the assets of the Borrower,
Shenzhen Zirui, Sun Century Property and other defendants
under the Bank Claim (up to the sum of RMB807,133,000
with interest thereon together with fees and expenses to be
incurred under the enforcement) shall be seized or frozen (the
“Frozen Assets”) and such Frozen Assets shall be disposed
of for repayment of the amounts under the Bank Claim if not
paid. As at 31 December 2017, the Frozen Assets under the
Group’s legal title comprised bank balances in the aggregate
amount of approximately RMB334,000 (31 December 2016: Nil
and 1 January 2016: Nil) and inventories with carrying value of
approximately RMB213,367,000 (31 December 2016: Nil and 1
January 2016: Nil).

As the Borrower defaulted the repayment of the Bank Loan in
2012, the directors of the Company have revisited the provisions
in relation to the Bank Claim in prior years and retrospectively
recognised provision of RMB116,267,000 for the year ended 31
December 2016 (1 January 2016: RMB99,939,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
reached a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement
A”) with the Bank. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement A,
the Group’s liabilities in relation to the Bank Claim is limited to
RMB235,000,000, subject to the fulfilment of the precedent
events. Based on the legal opinion from the PRC lawyers,
Settlement Agreement A is legally enforceable and binding as
at 31 December 2017 even though there are some precedent
events to be fulfilled, the directors of the Company consider that
the maximum exposure for the liabilities of the Group in relation
to the Bank Claim is RMB235,000,000 as at 31 December 2017
and therefore reversal of provisions of RMB304,082,000 has
been recognised during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The provision in relation to the Bank Claim as at 31
December 2017 is RMB235,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB539,082,000 (restated) and 1 January 2016:
RMB422,815,000 (restated)).

Annual Report 2017
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28. 5 A 2 B (4R

BRI HR AR KBSt
HERRITRE TEMFEENEE (258
&5 A A RK807,133,0007T * & & Fl &
ERTKEENEBRRAL) BEER K
RE([HREBE]) BTN Z%F
WRABESWHE  NEBRITRET
FRIE - R2017F12A31H - REBAE S
BTHHEREEERRESBEOARE
334,000t (20164128318 : T %2016
FIAIB:D)MRITEHRREEDENA
R #213,367,0007t (2016512 A318 :
TR2016F1A1R T)NEFEE-

MR ERAR012EHEREZBRTE
FOWMARAREETENEHNRTFEM
IRITREFHIR ZEBE W H E20165F
12AMBLEFEENERBEEARYK
116,267,0007T (20164F1 A1H : AR
99,939,0007T ) °

HE2017F 128318 L6 E - AEEE
RITEK AR 7% ([FIAR I EA L) 1B
BAMBHBEA NEEEFHRITREZE
BE1E RN A R #235,000,0007T © BB
FRBIHEEK - RIBFBREMEREE
R-BEZZFEASTHEERFEN BMNHF
% AR2017F12 431 B {3 A & 7% 34 il
HITRAENRN WAEEEERE A
EER2017F12A31 B RIBITREAE
2 &= A EA ARK235,000,0007T ' #
REZE2017F12A318 (L FEEREE
BB A R #304,082,0007T °

R2017F 128318 BLRITRETIRZ
Bt B A R #235,000,0007T (2016412
A31H : AR #539,082,0007t (E %)
%2016%F1 A1H : A R#¥422,815,0007C
(&%) ) -
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28.PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d)

In December 2015, the Group received an enforcement notice
(the “Enforcement Notice”) from the Intermediate Court in
relation to another civil claim (the “Consultant Claim”).

Pursuant to the Consultant Claim, an individual (the “Claimant”)
alleged provision of consultancy services to the Borrower relating
to the Bank Loan pursuant to a consultancy agreement (the
“Consultancy Agreement”) made between the Claimant and the
Borrower in prior year. It was alleged that Shenzhen Zirui, Sun
Century Property and another defendant which is not connected
to the Group had been acting as guarantors in respect of
payment of consultancy fee under the Consultancy Agreement.
Pursuant to the Enforcement Notice, certain inventories
held by Shenzhen Zirui with carrying value of approximately
RMB388,374,000 were seized or frozen as at 1 January 2016.

The provision for Consultant Claim is determined by the terms
of the Consultancy Agreement under which, daily interest rate
of 0.1% will be charged on the unpaid consultancy fee until the
consultancy fee is settled.

As the consultancy fee had not been paid by the Borrower, of
which was payable in 2012, the directors of the Company have
revisited the provisions in relation to the Consultant Claim in prior
years and recognised provision of RMB14,494,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2016 (1 January 2016: RMB14,454,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group paid
deposit of RMB84,603,000 to the court in the PRC and
accordingly inventories with value of RMB221,419,000 were
released.

In July 2017, the Group received a notice from the Intermediate
Court, in which part of frozen inventories held by Shenzhen Zirui
with carrying value of approximately RMB166,955,000 shall be
disposed of by way of tender to settle the Consultant Claim.

28. WA 2 B (4R

R2015F12A  AEB M B —HEHRER
E([ERXRE]) WEIP AR 2 38 Hl#H
THRME ([AFBTRME]) -

BEEMRRE —BAT([REAE
BIRBERBEAREBERALER —FF]ILH
B H= ([BERRE]) mERAREE
IRITERE BRI E R R - B8 RYIE
I RS a0t E 2 55 90— B BRR BN
mEAENEEALERBZRE N (TE
MEAE —EETERA REARBIET
BAE N ERFEETEE (REA
# N R #388,374,0007C) A — T — N F
—A—BHEHSRE -

BRREREDRBEEM G GRE
E B RAERERER  ARXNER
EREBEXR01%E

HRERABRZFERE (ER2012
FXf) HMARRNESCEEFEHNR
TFERERERACRE UREE
2016F12A31H L FERRBHEARK
14,494,0007C (2016F1 A1H : AR
14,454,0007T ) °

HE2016F12A31H It FE AEE A
AR AR 2 (1% & A R #84,603,0007T °
HUBE A ARK221,419,000t 2 7 & 1
i i o

201757 A - NREB U EIF FIERT B
A HPRNEmFENHO W RETE
(BREEL AR166,955,0007T ) A AR
EFREENENERRE-
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28.PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d) 28.MERFA 2 (8])

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has
reached a settlement agreement (the “Settlement Agreement B”)
with the Claimant. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement B, the
Group’s liabilities in relation to the Consultant Claim is limited
to RMB129,603,000, subject to the fulflment of the precedent
events. Accordingly, provision of RMB14,842,000 in relation
to the Consultant Claim has been recognised during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

As all precedent events have been fulfilled and the Group
has settled the Consultant Claim as at 31 December 2017.
No provision in relation to the Consultant Claim as at 31
December 2017 (31 December 2016: RMB114,761,000
(restated) and 1 January 2016: RMB100,267,000 (restated)),
however, inventories with carrying value of approximately
RMB166,955,000 were still seized under the Enforcement Notice
as the inventories are under the process of release from the
court as at 31 December 2017.

The carrying value of inventories of RMB380,322,000 (31
December 2016: RMB166,955,000 (restated) and 1 January
2016: RMB388,374,000 (restated)) have been seized by the
count in the PRC in relation to the Bank Claim and Consultant
Claim as at 31 December 2017 as disclosed in note 20. In the
event that such inventories were released from the Enforcement
Notice, pursuant to the Judgement under the Bank Claim, such
inventories shall be seized or frozen.
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28.PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATIONS (Cont’d)

The movement of the provisions for litigations is shown as

follows:

Iy =7

28. WA 2 B (4R

FNBBHRHIITOT -

V%5 R B R

Consultant

Bank Claim Claim Total

$RITRME BERE et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT T AR¥T T

At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 2016561418 (F51) 422,815 100,267 523,082
Charge to profit or loss BFNE= R

for the year 116,267 14,494 130,761

At 31 December 2016 (Restated) 720165128318 (£71) 539,082 114,761 653,843
Charge to profit or loss BFNE= R

for the year - 14,842 14,842

Credit to profit or loss for the yearzt A F N8 % (304,082) = (304,082)

Settled through deposit paid BRENZESEE

(note 21(c)) (FizE21(c)) - (84,603) (84,603)

Payment for the year F AR - (45,000) (45,000)

At 31 December 2017 M2017512H31H 235,000 - 235,000

29.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

2. RTREMEE

As at 31 December

As at 1 January

MW128318 ®1A18

2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARBTT ARBT T

(Restated) (Restated)

(&31)) (&%)

Bank borrowings — secured RITEE—HFET 445,000 480,000 517,500
Other borrowings HmEE

- Secured — B & #HF 172,547 200,000 200,000

- Unsecured — IR - 35,000 880,602

172,547 235,000 1,080,602

617,547 715,000 1,598,102

“E—LFER
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29.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 20.RITREMMBEE ()
The maturity profile of bank borrowings is as follows: IRITEEZHHREASBERAT

As at 31 December

As at 1 January

M12H31H M®1A18
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT ARETF T
Within one year —F N 40,000 35,000 37,500
More than one year but not HRiE— FE T EE R E
exceeding two years 40,000 40,000 35,000
More than two years but not 8 38 W G B B A L
more than five years 140,000 130,000 120,000
Over five years AENE 225,000 275,000 325,000
445,000 480,000 517,500
Less: Amounts due for W —F AR BE R R FRIE
settlement within one year (F|BRBEE)
(shown under current liabilities) (40,000) (85,000) (37,500)
Amounts due for settlement after — £ 14 2| #i (& {5 69 7 1&
one year 405,000 445,000 480,000
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank borrowings are RERER  AEERITEENERE
denominated in RMB at the end of each reporting period. AARKEEHE
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted RITEEZ2ERME (RERRETLAF
interest rates) on the bank borrowings are as follows: )T
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 A18
2017 2016 2016
Effective interest rate per annum:  115% of People’s Bank 115% of PBOC 115% of PBOC
Variable-rate bank borrowings  of China benchmark rate benchmark rate benchmark rate

(“PBOC benchmark rate”) (equivalent to 5.64%) (equivalent to 5.64%)

(equivalent to 5.64%)

ERERNE  ZFHMNERITEES FREIARBITERENR  RTEERRZ115% RITEEFNEKZ115%
(TRTERERE]) 2115% (275.64%) (Z745.64%)
(% 715.64% )
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29.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 9O.BTRHEMEBE (&)
All other borrowings are repayable within one year at the end of REREHR IEEMEEET —FR
each reporting period. EE-
The carrying amounts of the Group’s other borrowings are AEB HEMEBEENREMETNLTIE
denominated in the following currencies: BT (A -
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 A1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T AR¥T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E=31)) (&%)
HK$ BT - - 645,602
RMB AR 172,547 235,000 435,000
172,547 235,000 1,080,602
The effective interest rates (which are also equal to contracted HMEEZERME (TERRETAF
interest rates) on the other borrowings are as follows: )M
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1A1H
2017 2016 2016
Effective interest rate per annum: &R F F =& :
8.00% — 14.00% —
Fixed-rate other borrowings ~ ElEf R HEMEE 12.00% 18.00% 18.00%

—E-tEER  ABEsEzREEaAs 109
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29.BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Cont’d) 2. BITREMMEE (F)
At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the RERMERR - AAEBRITEE MK F
following assets as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings: MASEEENT :
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1H1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBT T ARET T

Investment properties (note 16) & & ¥ (M:E16) 1,724,900 1,732,000 1,692,000

Pledged bank deposits (note 23) B M IR1T7F 5K (F7E23) 6 6 2,371

1,724,906 1,732,006 1,694,371

At the end of each reporting period, the Group has pledged the REWE R - BASE H o {5 5 w1
following assets as securities for the Group’s other borrowings: MAEEEEWDT

As at 31 December As at 1 January

M12H31H M1A1R

2017 2016 2016

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARBTT ARBTT

(Restated) (Restated)

(E31)) (&%)

Inventories (note 20) HFE (HzF20) 178,138 250,039 837,778
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30.CONVERTIBLE BOND/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

On 8 December 2016, the Company issued a convertible
bond (the “Convertible Bond”) with a principal amount of
HK$570,000,000 (equivalent to RMB505,077,000 at the
issuance date) to Fame Select Limited, the major shareholder of
the Company to set off the balance of the loan from immediate
holding company and the related accrued interest due to Fame
Select Limited on a dollar-for-dollar basis against the total
subscription price payable by Fame Select Limited in respect of
the subscription of the Convertible Bond.

The maturity date of the Convertible Bond is 7 December 2018
(“CB Maturity Date”) which is 2 years from the date of issue
of the Convertible Bond. The Convertible Bond is not interest
bearing and matures on CB Maturity Date at the principal
amount. The Convertible Bond is convertible into shares at any
time after the issuance up to the close of business on the CB
Maturity Date at the conversion price of HK$0.26 per share,
subject to anti-dilutive adjustments (“CB Conversion Option”).
The initial number of ordinary shares of the Company issuable
upon conversion is 2,192,307,692 shares, which represent
59.34% of the total number of ordinary shares of the Company
issued and outstanding as of the issue date of the Convertible
Bond on a fully diluted basis.

The Company is entitled to an option to early redeem at anytime
before CB Maturity Date the whole or part of the principal
outstanding amount of the Convertible Bond at principal amount
(“CB Redemption Option”).

The Convertible Bond contains a debt component and derivative
component. The CB Conversion Option is classified as a
derivative financial liability as it will be settled other than by
an exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of
the Company’s own equity instruments on the basis that the
Convertible Bond is denominated in HKS$, a foreign currency of
the Company.

0. RESHF TESMI A

MR2016F12H8H ' AR Al [ A A &
FERREBEBRAAIZTASERS
570,000,000/ 7t (R ETHHEER A
R #505,077,0007T ) B AT AR &% ([ 7]
BIRES])  ABEHR QA REA
BREFENNRREE KRN EE
ERAFMNREEEZERAAERRE
HEEEFIE -

ARRES 2 B8 H B2018F12A7H
(AR EHFEE]) BB AT Rk E
HEITA BRI ABMRE - JRREST
R BRASEN AT RRES T A E
Ho A RREFAIRNBITEEZ AT RRE
FHARAEERNHARIEERIZERE
FRRO.26B TER ARG A EH R #
SERAE ([TRRESFEREREE]) oK
NAREB IR A 81T 2 L BRI A E B
#2,192,307,6920% * 1H & M & AR B E
EEARANARABRRESFZTHEAZE
BT R AREITERARBE259.34% °

AR BEEERARBRESZ B AR
ERERZASRRERNED 2RI
AMBERZREEASR ([FBERE
FEONEEE]) -

AR ESBREEHE D ROTERD - 7
BRESEREEEADELSITESA
BE REAREST SR MBESEN
BT (RRBINE)FHEZEENBEES
BZASHRBNETEHE 2ARAARF K
ATERETRY
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30.CONVERTIBLE BOND/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

The fair value of the Convertible Bond is HK$568,761,000
(approximately RMB503,979,000) on the initial recognition date.
On initial recognition, the debt component was recognised
at fair value, calculated based on the present value of the
principal amount plus accrued coupon interest over the
expected life of the Convertible Bond. In subsequent periods,
the debt component is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The effective interest rate of the debt
component is 14.64% per annum. The derivative component is
measured at fair values at the date of issue and in subsequent
periods with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The fair values of the derivative financial instruments as at 31
December 2017, 31 December 2016 and 8 December 2016
(date of issuance) are determined by Grant Sherman Appraisal
Limited, an independent valuer not connected to the Group,
based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model (the “Binomial
Model”).

The inputs used for the calculation of fair values of the derivative
financial instruments are as follows:

0. ERESH TTEEMIA

(%)

ROTHERBBE - ATRRERFZAQ
4 18 &568,761,000/8 7t (M) A R
503,979,0007T ) ° IR ¥ FER s - &% 20
DRAREER  WIREASEEMRA
RREECEHFHOEAZZREMNE
ETE - RBER B B MO KA ERF
ROEIRE AT IR - B0 2 BRF
MEBE14.64% - PTEIBDIREITEBRZ
AREFE MRBEERBZAREZS

20174128318 20165128318 K
2016%F12H8RH (FTHH) - TE </
TEZRAREIHEAEEHEREY
B EEMR BT EERAABIE I
N EEER ([ZEXER])EE-

AETESRTAZAARBRERZEH
ABIBEAT

8 December

2016

31 December (date of

31 December 2016 issuance)
2017 (Restated) (Restated)

20164

20164 12 H8H

20175 12A381H (%17HE)
12A31A (E2%) (E75)

Share price & E
Conversion price EIR(E

Expected volatility (Note (a)) TEERIE (M aE(a))
Expected option life e B HA 8 <F B

HK$0.465 &7t HK$0.204 # 7T HK$0.218 /& 7T
HK$0.260 &t HK$0.260 &7t HK$0.260 & T

Expected dividend yield (Note (b)) 78 HA A% 2 =& (i 5 (b))
Risk-free rate (Note (c)) =R A= (KE(c))
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71.403% 93.469% 94.466%
0.94 Year &  1.94 Years &F 2 Years
Zero & Zero & Zero &
1.519% 1.711% 1.213%
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30.CONVERTIBLE BOND/DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

Notes:

(@) The expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the
Company’s share price over the previous one year.

(b) The expected dividend yield was estimated with reference to the historical
dividend payment record and the expected dividend payment in the next two
years of the Company.

(c) Risk-free rate is estimated based on the yield of Hong Kong Dollar Swap

Curve with a similar remaining tenure.

The movements of the debt component of convertible bond and
derivative financial instruments are shown as follows:

0. RESHF TESMI A
(#&)

f

(@) TRERBEDHEAARRE E—FREZELIRE
BEE-

(b) REBRESXRTIZLL2ZRRQBESER SR
Ro R R F 2 TREARR B (9 & fl 5t

© EEBRMEDBREEBRUKTFHZETE
Hih 4R 2 Weam AR AT -

AR EHES B RITESBIAY
EHIRMT :

At date of issuance (Restated)

Credit to profit or loss
Exchange difference

Effective interest expenses

(note 9)

RETHB(EH)

st AR

PE S EER

BRI EF (H5E9)

At 31 December 2016 (Restated)

Charge to profit or loss
Exchange difference

Effective interest expenses

(note 9)

®2016 F12 A31H
(&%)

MR E=

MEH =58

ERAM S (ME9)

At 31 December 2017

72017 12 A31 B

Derivative
Debt financial
component instruments Total
BB MTEELWMIA #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AREFTT AREEF T
357,196 146,783 503,979
- (17,704) (17,704)
3,589 596 4,185
4,501 - 4,501
365,286 129,675 494,961
- 329,855 329,855
(26,359) (19,592) (45,951)
72,180 - 72,180
411,107 439,938 851,045

“E-LFER

KpneEmErsRaa 173
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31. ;&K
SREEABTHZTER

Number of shares

31.SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each

Share capital

g ! [N
2017 2016 2017 2016
Note (Restated) HK$’000 HK$'000
FitzE (Z31) TER THET
Authorised EE
At beginning and end of year REFRER 50,000,000,000 50,000,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
Issued and fully paid ERTRAE
At beginning of year REA] 6,064,900,186  1,557,956,011 600,926 150,231
Issue of shares under rights 1R E (% 24T R M7
issue (@) - 4,506,944,175 - 450,695
Exercise of share options TR IR B A 11,560,000 = 1,156 =
At end of year REXR 6,076,460,186  6,064,900,186 602,082 600,926
As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12H31H M1 AR
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBT T AREFIT
RMB equivalent ARBERE 525,734 524,712 123,644
Note (a): The Company entered into an underwriting agreement dated 20 MizE@): AR FR20169F9H208 7] 3 B # %

174  suncity Group Holdings Limited

September 2016 (as amended and supplemented by the extension
letters dated 13 October 2016 and 25 October 2016 respectively),
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 4,506,944,175 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.2 per rights share on the basis of three rights shares for every
one existing ordinary share of the Company held on 6 December
2016 (the “Subscription”). The Subscription was completed on 16
December 2016 with net proceeds of approximately HK$901,389,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB802,137,000) and resulted in
the increase in share capital of HK$450,695,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB401,068,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$450,694,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB401,069,000).

Annual Report 2017

(LA HH B K2016F10A138 &
2016510 HA258 2 i& #5315 5T X
) Bt ARREEKRGEREEB
ER2016F12A6B B/ HE —BRA QA
BERMERE =RERRG 2 E%E K
REBETRERR D027 T At 8 & %
774,506,944 175 IR AR 5 ([ 1B =
H]) -REBEEIEE RN2016F127 168 &
B - 5 & FT 15 30 TE)F 1 49901,389,0007%
7T (8 R % A R%802,137,0007T) &
B 3% AN #8 91450,695,00074 70 (HHE
R4 A R %401,068,0007T ) & I 1535 B
#)450,694,000/ 7T (HHE R AR K
401,069,0007T ) °
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2007
Scheme”) on 31 January 2007.

The purpose of the 2007 Scheme is to enable the Company
to grant share options to selected participants as incentives
or rewards for their contribution to the Company and/or its
subsidiaries and/or its associated companies (as defined under
the 2007 Scheme). The 2007 Scheme was adopted on 31
January 2007 and terminated on 2 June 2016.

Under the 2007 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (including Executive
and Non-executive Directors), executives, officers, employees or
certain other eligible participants, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option was
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and was not less than the highest of (i) the official closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share
options; (i) the average of the official closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
of the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer of share options; and (iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company on the date of offer of share
options. Each of the grantees was required to pay HK$10 as
consideration for the grant of share options in accordance with
the 2007 Scheme. The offer of a grant of share options must
be accepted within 60 days from the date of the offer. All share
options are fully vested as at 31 December 2016.

32. R RESTE

AR TA200741 B 31 B ER Ay — 18 B8 I i
=&l (200755t El]) -

2007FETEIE ERARFIMEERHEE
BYTBREEAESHARAIR HE
B AR R SREBE AR (E&R2007
FErEl) FTEE R 2 BB 3k 22 /) - 20075
217200741 A31 H £43 & A20164FE6
A2R#& k-

RIR2007 4518 EF G WBERALQA
EX(BREATESRIFNTES) 17
BAB SABE EEHXETHEMSE
RSEERTREREABBRRB RN -

EBRECITFEERSRESEEET &
ZEBTIBLRUTZ2&EH  ()RRE
BREBBARARONERMEHR
BRAHR2EABTE: (i) B LB
HEH R A EE %R AR RRGRER
FTERARERMBZTFHEARTE:
RiNRAFZLBEREBBRARBRNZE
1B - R1Z2007F 518 - FARAEZ10
BITERBEERAERBREZRE - KT
ZREREEREL B HIRET608 R -
M20165F12 431 A T A BB B & H
Eo

—s—tEEg  ABHsEEzrewEaz 1/D
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, were subject to approval in advance by the
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of in aggregate 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue (based on the date of offer) and an
aggregate value of HK$5 million (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of each offer), within any
12-month period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

The 2007 Scheme was terminated on 2 June 2016 and no
further options can be granted under the 2007 Scheme.
However, the share options granted under the 2007 Scheme
prior to its termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable
in accordance with the 2007 Scheme.

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, 95,958,336 and
114,346,079 share options are outstanding under 2007
Scheme, respectively.

11,560,000 (31 December 2016: Nil) share options have been
exercised, 444,425 (31 December 2016: Nil) share options have
been cancelled and 6,383,318 (31 December 2016: Nil) share
options have been lapsed under the 2007 Scheme during the
current year. No share option was granted in accordance with
the terms of the 2007 Scheme during the current year.

The Company adopted a new share option scheme (the “2016
Scheme”) on 2 June 2016.

The purpose of the 2016 Scheme is to replace the 2007
Scheme and to continue to enable the Company to grant share
options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Company and/or any
of its subsidiaries and/or any entity in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest. The 2016 Scheme will remain in
force for a period of 10 years commencing on 2 June 2016.

Annual Report 2017
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MARREE FETHABRFERRK
UEEZEABEALELBRE A
BSBERITEST 2 F o toh -
REM+Z@ABERARAZEER
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MHBE01% (AEL BEHARE) REE
5,000,000/ 7t ( LA& & I B Hi AR 2 A A%
HzWmEAEE) RIEARBREAE L
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2007 F 5T 8B R2016%F6 A2H &R 1IF &
BRAZR2007F 5T 8T g — PR H B
T o AT+ 2007 G 5T &I 42 1k 2 BT IR H %
i 2 B AR 1 4 4B B I AR $R 2007 S AT
ZlA] F1TfE e

MR20174F K2016F12A831H ' R &
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

Under the 2016 Scheme, the board of directors may, at its
discretion, offer directors of the Company (including Executive
and Non-executive Directors), executives, officers, employees or
certain other eligible participants, share options to subscribe for
shares of the Company.

The exercise price in relation to each share option will be
determined by the board of directors at its absolute discretion
and shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of offer of share options;
(i) the average closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of share options; and (iiij the nominal value of a share of the
Company on the date of offer of share options. Each of the
grantees is required to pay HK$1 as a consideration for the
acceptance of the grant of share options in accordance with
the 2016 Scheme. The offer of share options must be accepted
within 21 days from the date of the offer.

250,500,000 share options have been granted under the 2016
Scheme since its adoption. Accordingly, as at 31 December
2017, 250,500,000 (31 December 2016: Nil) share options are
outstanding under the 2016 Scheme. The maximum number of
shares of the Company available for issue upon exercise of all
share options which may be granted under the 2016 Scheme is
500,425,890, representing approximately 8.31% of the shares
of the Company in issue at the end of the reporting period.
The total number of shares of the Company issued and which
may fall to be issued upon the exercise of share options to be
granted under the 2016 Scheme and any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding share options) to each grantee in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
number of shares of the Company in issue as at the date of
grant. Any further grant of share option in excess of this 1% limit
shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

2.3 E (|)

RE2016F 518 EFGARBAART]
EX(BRUTESRIRNTES) 17
BAE mA&BE EEXASETHMEE
R2EER THEBREARBARRND

EBEREZITEESHESSRET &
ZERTELRUATZERE  ()RIRH
BB RR#E B HA AR R R B 15 R B A FT = B
BRIARZBME: ((IBERLBRER
HAAEEXAARRARORBEIAE
HIERMB 2 FHWRHE : i) AR
FERiE B AR A AR ) 2 E1{E - 1R1%2016
Firdl SEARABIMBLEREE
MERBEREZRE BT 2EREAR
TR 21BN -

B 20164 I8 IR #E 5T S ER AN LA PR IR HL B %
1250,500,00017 & A% # & it - 72017
F12A318 - B E20164 8 I% # =+ 2
250,500,0001% (20164128318 : )
REAR M M AR TT(E o IATTIEARIR20165 5T &l
AR Z B BREM AT EIT 2 &Em A
A A B D B A500,425,8908% - 8 &
WERARAARIBBEITRND Z248.31% ©
BARARETBSAEE+=EA 5
M E 17T R H2016%F 51 8l R A A &) E [
HpER T8 mE R D 2 ERE (213
BT FERMARITEZERE) ME
BITRATRES FRITZARBIRMGBE
TREEREAPARABEEITRGEZ
1% o (B — PR H BB 1 %R EE 2 B
RiEBEBRARRFE—HDBEERBRR
RE LESIREHALE -
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 2.BRETE (&)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
Independent Non-executive Directors. In addition, any share
options granted to a substantial shareholder or an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company, or to any of their
associates, in excess of in aggregate 0.1% of the shares of the
Company in issue (based on the date of offer) and an aggregate
value of HK$5 million (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares at the date of each offer), in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the offer of such grant
shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

The following tables disclose details of the share options held
by directors, employees and other eligible participants under
the 2007 Scheme and 2016 Scheme and movements in such
holdings during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016:

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed at the
end of each reporting period are as follows, whereby all
options are settled by physical delivery of shares:

1 78 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

MARREE FETHABRFERRK
AR L 2 BB A IR R AR - ZA R
SEURMITEFT 2 RE LN R
+T_EAAHEZEERELBH(BE
ZA)AARAEZEBRFENKB L IERIT
EEYAMBREIHEALTRL 20
BREBBAAREEHTRMDAE01%
(LA B AR E %) K #1E5,000,0007%
T (ABREBSARRRG ZKTER
BEE) BRARRTIE—5EEH KRR
RAE EMBRELE-

TREZEZ2017F X20165F12A31H
LIEF ERIE2007 F 5t 8 R20165F 5T 21 &
E - RBEERHMEBR2EERB Z2BR
BARZEFRBZEB 25

(@) NEREMRTFEZR T &K RIE
1 (R UL P B B O DA IR 00 B XA
AAREM)MT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

(@)

AN
=

/

2.3 E (|)

V%5 R B R

(Cont’d) @@ (&)
2017 20174
Number of share options
i1 €]
Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed Exercise
At during during during during At Date of price
Grantees 1.1.2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 31.12.2017 grant  Vesting period Exercisable period per share
(Note (i) (Note (ii))  (Note (i) HK$
R2017 017% M17F 2017% 17 W017E
ERA 1818 REH  RETE  REEE  REXR 12R81A REAE HEHE AT EHME SRR
(WEEG)  (RSG))  (Hfska) En
Directors of the
Company
ADAES
Mr. Lo Kai Bong - 8,000,000 - - - 8,000,000 492017 NA Ti#ER 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2027 0.455
BRARE
- 12,000,000 - - - 12,000,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
- 20,000,000 - - - 20,000,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
Mr. Manuel Assis Da - 600,000 - - - 600,000 492017 N/A FER 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2027 0.455
Siva - 900,000 - - - 900,000  4.9.2017  4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
Manuel Assis Da Siva
- 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
- 43,000,000 - - - 43,000,000
Other employees of
the Group
AEEALER 596,485 - - - (596,485) - 1552007 15.5.2007 to 14.11.2007  15.11.2007 to 14.5.2017 4134
444,425 - - (444,425 - - 10.10.2007  10.10.2007 to 9.4.2008  10.4.2008 to 9.10.2017 6.728
462,559 - - - - 462,559 12.12.2013  12.12.2013 to 12.12.2013  13.12.2013 to 12.12.2023 0.344
- 2,700,000 - - - 2700000 492017 NA Ti#ER 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2027 0.455
- 4,050,000 - - - 4,050,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
- 6,750,000 - - - 6,750,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
1,503,469 13,500,000 - (444,425) (596,485 13,962,559
Consultants of the
Group
A5HER 5,786,833 - - - (5,786,833) - 1552007 15.5.2007 to 14.11.2007  15.11.2007 to 14.5.2017 4134
3,558,149 - - - - 3558149 13.2.2008 13.2.2008 to 12.8.2008  13.8.2008 to 12.2.2018 3.822
103,497,628 - (11,560,000) - - 01,937,628 12122013 12.12.2013t0 12.12.2013 13.12.2013 to 12.12.2023 0.344
- 150,000,000 - - - 150,000,000 11.1.2017 NA T#ER 11.1.2017 to 10.1.2027 0.202
- 16,500,000 - - - 16,500,000 19.4.2017 NA Ti#ER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2027 0.700
- 4,100,000 - - - 4,100,000 19.4.2017 NA T#ER 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2027 0.700
- 6,150,000 - - - 6,150,000 19.4.2017 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2018  19.4.2018 to 18.4.2027 0.700
- 10,250,000 - - - 10,250,000 19.4.2017 19.4.2017 to 18.4.2019  19.4.2019 to 18.4.2027 0.700
- 1,400,000 - - - 1,400,000 492017 NA TER 4.9.2017 t0 3.9.2027 0.455
- 2,100,000 - - - 2,100,000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2018 4.9.2018 to 3.9.2027 0.455
- 3,500,000 - - - 3500000 4.9.2017 4.9.2017 to 3.9.2019 4.9.2019 to 3.9.2027 0.455
112,842,610 194,000,000 (11,560,000) - (5,786,833) 289,495,777
114,346,079 250,500,000 (11,560,000  (444,425) (6,383,318) 346,458,336
Exercisable 114,346,079 279,258,336
e
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d) 32.fERRESTE (&)
(a) (Cont’d) @@ (&)
2016 20164
Number of share options
ERELE
Exercise
Adjustment  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed price
At during during during during At Date of per share
Grantees 1.1.2016 2016 2016 2016 2016 31.12.2016 grant Vesting period Exercisable period HKS
(Note (i) (Note (i)
8
. HR2016% 2016% 2016F 20165 2016% 20165 ) R
EEA 1A1A BE MEfE AEEE  AERR AR RUAW SENE AR B
(Wiz(i) (Wiz(in)
Other employees of
the Group
AEEAMES 515,813 80,672 - - - 506,485  16.5.2007 15.5.2007 to 14.11.2007  15.11.2007 to 14.5.2017 4134
384,318 60,107 - - - 444,425 10.10.2007 10.10.2007 to 9.4.2008  10.4.2008 to 9.10.2017 6.728
400,000 62,559 - - - 462,559 12.12.2013 12.12.2013t0 12.12.2013  13.12.2013 t0 12.12.2023 0.344
1,300,131 203,338 - - - 1503469
Consultants of the
Group
AEEER 5004188 782,645 - - - 5786838 1552007 155.2007 o 14.11.2007  15.11.2007 to 14.5.2017 4134
3,076,924 481,205 - - - 3558149 1322008 13.2.2008t012.8.2008  13.8.2008t0 12.2.2018 3.822
89,500,000 13,997,628 - - - 108,497,628 12.12.2013 12.12.2013t0 12.122013  13.12.2013 t0 12.12.2023 0.344
97,681,112 15,261,498 - - - 112,842,610
98,881,243 15,464,836 - - - 114,346,079
Exercisable
AR 98,881,243 114,346,079
Notes: Bt 5

() The cancellation of the share options is due to resignation of staff.
(i)  The lapse of the share options is due to the expiry of the exercisable period.

(i)~ The number of share option and the corresponding exercise price have
been adjusted due to the issue of rights share during the year 2016.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, share options were
granted on 11 January 2017 (“January Batch”), 19 April 2017
(“April Batch”) and 4 September 2017 (“September Batch”).

The fair values of the share options granted on those dates
are HK$13,523,000, HK$12,192,000 and HK$14,343,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB11,697,000, RMB10,546,000
and RMB12,407,000), respectively.
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() ZEBRETHDHESTEH-
(i) ZEBREXHIIET6ESEER-

(i) PR B R AR B 2 H2016% B 17 6
RIS TR

HZE2017F12A31BLFE - BRER
S BIR201781 118 (T— A# k) -
201748198 ([WM B #t)x]) K20174
9R48 ([ AH#KR D ZEE -

AZEHHER CEREZARED
Bl £13,523,0007% 7t * 12,192,0007% JT
$%14,343,0008 T (FHHERHARK
11,697,0007T * A R #10,546,00070 & A
R #12,407,0007T ) °
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32.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Cont’d)

The fair values were calculated using the Binomial Model. The
inputs of model were as follows:

2./ B RAERTE (&)
RARETDER-AARYGFE - ZBEZ
WAL

January April September

Batch Batch Batch

— A#tR ™M A #X LA #ER

Share price A (B HK$0.197 &7t HK$0.700 Bt HK$0.455 77T
Exercise price 1T1E(E HK$0.202 %7t HK$0.700 &7 HK$0.455 7 7T
Expected volatility T8 HA R & 47 12% 46.65% 45.43%
Expected option life T HA HA 4 F HR 10 years 10 years £ 10 years £
Risk-free rate f J Be ) 2& 1.649% 1.349% 1.382%
Expected dividend yield T8 HA AR B e & 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2016.

The volatilities adopted were based on average annualised
standard deviations of the continuously compounded rates
of return of the share price of the Company and comparable
companies with similar business nature of the Company as of
the valuation date. The fair value calculated for share options
is inherently subjective due to the assumptions made and the
limitations of the model utilised.

The Group recognised the share-based compensation benefits
of RMB24,432,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: Nil) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

RE Z2016F12831H IEFE - T E XK
ot B A A o

FIER A 2 R IB T ER A S E B AR R
EARAREBEERUZATLRQ AR
BZREEARERZ FHFREFER
= o AR PTIER R R AT RER G PR & -
WHRBEREFENIAERELEIEAX

4N o

7]

HZE2017F12A81B L FE  AEE 5
RRRRE 2 BRERRIARG BEH
B4R A A R #24,432,0007T (20164
12A31H : &) -
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33.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group provided
guarantees to certain banks in respect of mortgage facilities
granted in connection with the mortgage loans entered into by
buyers of the Group’s properties as follows:

33.HAREE

MR20174F 2016128318 » AN & E 51
ERASEEWMEE FTLMIRBERM
RERIRZBREREE M5 TRITIREE
REAT

2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage #L B HERIZIBRIE 5B E AR 1TIE
facilities granted to buyers HER 3,600 11,660

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees contract, if there
are any defaults on the mortgages, the Group is liable to the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage principals together
with the accrued interest and penalty payable by the defaulting
buyers to banks. The Group is then entitled to take over the legal
title and possession of the related properties. The guarantees
shall be released upon the issue of the relevant buyer’s property
ownership certificate and in the custody of the banks.

The fair value of the guarantees at date of inception is not
significant and is not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements. The directors of the Company consider that no
provision should be recognised at the end of each reporting
period as the potential cash outflow related to the guarantee is
not probable.

Bank balances of approximately RMB297,000 (31 December
2016: RMB296,000 and 1 January 2016: RMB295,000) have
been pledged with the banks as guarantee deposits for the
mortgage loan facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the
Group’s properties (note 23).
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34.0PERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 3. REHERIE
The Group as lessee AEBEREMEA
At 31 December 2017, the total future minimum lease payments MR2017F12H318 - PRI MK EHE
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows: TRREMN 2 EEERBEEOAT :
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%® TR ARBT T
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year 1FE R 3,740 2,079
In the second to fifth year inclusive FOFEEFELF (FELF) 1,400 584
5,140 2,663
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEHERBEASERESTERE
Group for its offices and staff quarters. Leases are typically ITEEMNHES HEREHE=FH B
negotiated for three years and do not include contingent rentals. TEREXAES -
The Group as lessor AEBEEREBEA
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had contracted MNERE R - AEBEAME AT AORE
with lessees for the following future minimum lease payments A HEE L E A EEARR A WE 2 &K
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: HENRKOTBWT :
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BT AR¥T T
(Restated)
(&%)
Within one year 1FE RN 39,817 43,983
In the second to fifth year inclusive F2FEEF5F (SHELF) 110,408 136,116
Over five years 5% A 55,503 69,612
205,728 249,711
The investment properties rented during the year have REFALEZ KRB YR 2 84
committed tenants for terms ranging from 1 to 20 years (31 A1 E206F 1% (20165124318 -
December 2016: 1 to 20 years). 152204 ) ©
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35.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group has following material commitments in respect of the

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

e M mRM T

35. & KRR IE

ARERERTVERBZIARGAY

properties under development which are not provided for in the TEHMAR N 2 EARRENT
consolidated financial statements as follows:
2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
(Restated)
(E71)
Contracted but not provided for BT 418 R B AF 113,109 117,877
36.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 36.FAEANLTIHE

As stated in note 22, during the current year, the Group
commenced its operation in the travel related businesses
by providing hotel accommodation, transportation and
entertainment to external individual customers (“Ultimate
Customers”). Substantially all of this business is deriving from
Ultimate Customers referred to the Group by its controlling
shareholder and/or its controlled entities, and these Ultimate
Customers were also customers of the controlling shareholder
and/or its controlled entities in their other businesses. Also,
the controlled entities are the major supplier of the underlying
services (such as provision of hotel rooms, cars and similar
products), as well as the settlement agent for certain Ultimate
Customers. Therefore, the Group’s trade receivables and trade
payables were net settled with the controlling shareholder and/or
its controlled entities on a regular basis.
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36.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 36.BAEANLTIHE (&)
Apart from details of the balances with related parties disclosed BRAARE M BARR R AR 2 B E A
in the consolidated statement of financial position and other T2 BRI A RRIRE B Rk A Aib
details disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial 7 HRER Y H AL SIS AN - M E R AR
statements, the Group also entered into the following significant SEMEBEEATHETTINEARS

transactions with related parties during both years:

Name of related parties

HAEALER

Notes

B &

Nature of transactions 2017 2016
REME RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TIT

Fame Select Limited
HEER AT

Sun City Gaming Promotion

KEREX N

Billion Grant Success Investment
Limited

Mr. Chau and Ms. Chan Wai Leng

BEERRER XL

Mr. Lo Kai Bong
B R A&

(i

(ii)

(iv)

Interest expense on convertible bond 72,180 4,501
AR ES 2 M B X
Interest expense on loan from

immediate holding company - 9,054
REEEZERARAERZMERX
Gain from exchange of loan with

convertible bond - 1,098
E AR ESF R E R W

Travel agency services income 5,958 -

it 38 138 AR 75 LA

Purchase of travel related products and 327,024 -
services

PR Tk 322 48 B 2= o M OBR 7%

Management service expenses 2,531 -

B RISH X

Purchase of motor vehicle 433 -

REETE

Sales of travel related products and 2,308 200
services

HEREMEBEm®R R RS

Sales of travel related products and 170 -
services

HEREEBE®R MRS
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36.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (Cont’d) 36.AEATHE (&)

Notes:

()  Fame Select Limited is the immediate holding company of the Company.

(i)  Sun City Gaming Promotion is wholly owned by Mr. Chau, the major
shareholder and Executive Director and chairman of the Company.

(i) Mr. Lo Kai Bong, an Executive Director of the Company, is the ultimate
beneficial owner of Billion Grant Success Investment Limited.

(iv) Ms. Chan Wai Leng is the spouse of Mr. Chau.

37.CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amount due to a director, bank and other borrowings,
loan from immediate holding company and convertible bond as
disclosed in notes 22, 29 and 30, respectively, net of pledged
bank deposits, restricted bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, and deficit attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital, share premium and other reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure from
time to time. As part of this review, the management considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class
of capital. Based on recommendations of the management,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, the issue of new shares, new debts or the
redemption of existing debts.

1 86 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

P & -

() BEABRDAA/RNRBDZEEZERAF-

(i) ABHREELRANHAAREERERRPTES
HREFERAREREHES -

(i) 7R R AT E F E R L & /Billion Grant
Success Investment Limited? & E XA

Ao

(iv) RERZLIRELEZRS:

EXERER

AEENEAEEBEAERAKEE
BESEL: ANEBE(CEFREEA
R RBRRFMEAEE - AEBERF
NHBEBREERFTE -

AEBEARBREER EFEED
AIPAKIEE22 - 20 RBON BB 2 BN EE
RE|RIOMEMEE REERERQ
AERRABRRES R ERRTHE
FXBRHRITER RITHEBRLIRS A
REARBDHEBEARGEEAM EPEEK
A Bt i (B S ELAd e 8 o

AEBERETRENEARE -ERE
Ble—#n BEEEBEREAXNARERE
RERS N2 B - RIRETEEH R E
#FARERBEB MRS BITHR
REFEXIELREAERFEHERE
BARE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

38.2@TH
(a) eMIENDHE

As at 31 December As at 1 January
M12A831H MW1A1H
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E=31)) (&%)
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivable (including & 7 & & Ug 5k 18
bank balances and cash) (BRERITEHRERS) 430,822 412,835 515,023
Financial liabilities TRAE
At amortised cost REBHK AT E 1,865,258 1,840,902 3,108,028
Derivative financial instruments $74 4 @t T B 439,938 129,675 =
2,305,196 1,970,577 3,108,028

—E-tEER  ABEsEEzREEaz 187



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M mRM T

38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

The Group’s major financial instruments include deposits
for non-current assets, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from a related company and directors, bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits, trade and other payables, amounts due to a
related company and a director, receipt in advance, rent and
other deposits, provisions for litigations, derivative financial
instruments, convertible bond, bank and other borrowings,
and loan from immediate holding company. Details of the
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (represented by currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Market risks

(i) Currency risk

All the Group’s entities do not have any foreign currency
sales and purchases for both years. The Group’s
exposure to currency risk is mainly attributable to bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, amount
due to a director, other borrowings and convertible
bond that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they related.
The management manages and monitors this exposure
to ensure approximate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

(i)

Currency risk (Cont’d)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities

38.£WMIA (#)
b) EMEAKREEEBEREE (H)

mSEE (&)

(i

E¥RAR (%)
AEBREREARAEBER
DREEBIAIINEEAEZERE

other than the functional currency of the entity to which EXEEEEREBERT
they related at the end of each reporting period are as
follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R BE
2017 2016 2017 2016
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT AR®TT AREBTRT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E751) (&751))
HK$ BT 855,713 499,956 45,625 87,867

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on a 10% increase/decrease in functional
currency of respective entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 10% change in foreign currency
rates.

7N 5% [ 30 B 0 S OIS SRR
A - EEESHEEINERR -
WK FHEZEE B HERINEE

o

BRE DT
ATHRESMIIERS B
BEEBEAENE EFA TR
10%MEE > 10% 3R * EE 12
A B 2 HONEE [ B B R A BURR
EhE WREEBEEHIINEE
KA A BT E BBAE
DITEBEAINETERN M AREZ
NE®IEE - WHRFRE BIRAHN
B TE R EBN10%IEE LA -
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)
Market risks (Cont’d)

(i)

(i

190 suncity Group Holdings Limited

Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis (Cont’d)

If RMB had been 10% strengthened/weakened to HK$
for respective HK$ denominated monetary assets and
liabilities, the Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended
31 December 2017 would have increased/decreased
by approximately RMB60,757,000 (31 December 2016:
post-tax loss would have decreased/increased by
approximately RMB30,907,000 (restated)).

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
related to fixed-rate other borrowings (note 29) and debt
component of convertible bond (note 30).

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the restricted bank deposits (note 23),
pledged bank deposits (note 23), bank balances (note
24), bank borrowings (note 29) due to the fluctuation of
the prevailing market interest rates for both years.

The Group currently does not have any interest rate
hedging policy in relation to fair value and cash flow
interest rate risks. The directors monitor the Group’s
exposure on ongoing basis and will consider hedging
interest rate risk should the need arise. The Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk is mainly sensitive to the
fluctuation of interest rate arising from the Group’s
restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and bank borrowings.

Annual Report 2017
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices
(Cont’d)

Market risks (Cont’d)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for restricted
bank deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and variable-rate bank borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
amounts outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 basis points
for restricted bank deposits, pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and 50 basis points for variable-rate
bank borrowings increase or decrease are used during
the year for the Group when reporting interest rate risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 10 basis points lower/higher
and all other variables were held constant, the post-tax
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 would have
decreased/increased by RMB232,000 (31 December
2016: post-tax loss would have increased/decreased by
RMB109,000).

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/
lower, with all other variable held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB1,669,000 (31 December 2016: post-tax loss
would have increased/decreased by RMB1,800,000).

Other price risk

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of
the derivative financial instruments at the end of
each reporting period with changes in fair value to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as long as
the convertible bond is outstanding. The fair value
adjustment will be affected either positively or negatively,
amongst others, by the changes in market interest rate,
the Company’s share market price and share price
volatility.

38.£WMIA (#)
(b) &FEMEE B RERBR (K)

w5 E R (&)

(i

(ii)

M= (8)
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)

Market risks (Cont’d)

(iii) Other price risk (Cont’d)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk and volatility
risk arising from derivative financial instruments at the
end of the reporting period only as the directors of the
Company consider that the change in market interest
rate may not have significant financial impact on the fair

value of derivative financial instruments.

Changes in share price

If the Company’s share price had been 5% lower/higher
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year (as a result of changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments) would have
increased/decreased by RMB42,607,000 (31 December
2016: post-tax loss for the year would have decreased/

increased by RMB10,288,000 (restated)).

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at
the end of each reporting period in relation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade and other receivables, amounts due from a related
company and directors, pledged bank deposits, restricted

bank deposits and bank balances.

38.£WMIA ()
b) EMEAKREEEFEREE (H)

mEEE (&)

(i) EaEERR (&)
BRERE DT
AT RRE ST T EER RS H
RE R 2 RERRRARITES
TEZFEBRKRMEE  BAEXR
REIEERE MiGHEREHT
ErEHTEEMTAEZ ARE
EEEAVBETE-

% (2 2

fHAR BB T &%, £ F50% °
FTEEMmAERAEEFTE,
BN E B AFE R HREZ TR
(ATELRMTAAARERZS)
#5300, 5 > A R #42,607,000
7t (2016412 A31H : F Nk
REBBEBRLD EINARKE
10,288,000t (&%) ) °

= B a8

REREPRR AXBHFRERET
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BEAMBNERERRRBNESR
MBMRAKRMINZEEEZREE
AEENEERRTEREBUIRR
REMEYF BUEEARRES
RIE - BEMRITER XRBIRT
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In order to reduce credit risk, the Group has procedures in
place to monitor the credit standing of this counterparty and
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover these
debts. The Group also reviews the recoverable amounts
of the relevant debts and the probability of default by the
counterparty at the end of each reporting period. The
directors of the Company considered that no provision for
impairment loss is necessary at the end of the reporting
period. Except for the above, the Group has no other
significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

1 92 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

RREEERR ~EECHERF
ERERXSHF 2 E RN KRR
RAEBEEOZEES NEREH
R AKE TR AR ER 2 " W e
TEARR S FHRZ A A

RAEFARNBERARER AR

EREIRRE B EX At E I N
BYEEMEREESTRR Rk
MODBREEIZHFRES -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire MR

38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)
Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 7% (31
December 2016: 68%) of the total trade receivables was
due from top five customers as at 31 December 2017. The
Group’s remaining customers individually contribute to less
than 10% of the total trade receivables of the Group.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits and bank balances are limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks or a financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

As stated in notes 22 and 36, controlling shareholders
and/or its controlled entities act as collecting agent for the
Group, therefore the Group has concentration of credit risk
under such arrangement.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. A monthly report on forecasted inflow and outflow
of cash is compiled for the review by the directors of the
Company. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
and other borrowings.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings and
convertible bond as significant sources of liquidity.
The Group’s and the Company’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by RMB1,319,514,000 and
RMB1,709,973,000 as at 31 December 2017, respectively.
Furthermore, the Group’s and the Company’s total liabilities
exceeded its total assets by RMB247,815,000 and
RMB820,341,000 as at 31 December 2017, respectively.
Taking into account the financial resources of the Group,
including the financial support from its controlling
shareholder, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the Group has sufficient working capital to meet in full
its financial obligations as they fall due for at least the next
twelve months from the end of the reporting period.
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows
of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which
the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived

from interest rate at the end of each reporting period.

38.£WMIA ()
b) EMEAKREEEBREE (H)

BRI (&)

T EFHIAKEFITESRAR
MR A M IR - ZFIRER

TRABENARTRERSRE

RERAE

SERIWERN TR B BER -

JIRBEBEMNERAEHH

Ay - —1 ++
TIinE A/

MERBFEBFE  ARFTEEET
BEBESHRONEE

Weighted Within ~ Morethan ~ More than
average 1yearor  1yearbut  2years but Total
effective repayable less than lessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate  on demand 2 years 5 years 5years  cash flows amount
mE¥s 1ERSE  1ENEE  2FULEE AFERS
ERTI% EXEE LYV DH5E 5ELE st 1] BEE
% RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE®TR ARETn AR%Tn AR®Tr ARETn ARETn
As at 31 December 2017 R2017£12A31R
Non-derivative financial liabilities T4 & REE
Trade and other payables E R REBERNT - 198,860 - - - 198,360 198,360
Amount due to a related company [EfTEIE A AR - 50,193 - - - 50,193 50,193
Amount due to a director ENESHE - 4,668 - - - 4,668 4,668
Provisions for litigations T - 235,000 - - - 235,000 235,000
Receipt in advance B - 330,441 - - - 330,441 330,441
Convertible bond R EH 14.64% 471,293 - - - 471,293 411,107
Rent and other deposits HeRkitike - 8,442 - - - 8,442 8,442
Bank borrowings RiTEE 5.64% 42,254 44,635 175,176 373,458 635,523 445,000
Other borrowings EpiE 12.00% 189,802 - - - 189,802 172,547
Total ) 1,539,953 44,635 175,176 373458 2,133,222 1,865,258
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and polices

38.£WMIA (#)
(b) EEEAMREEERRBE (&)

(Cont’d)
Liquidity risk (Cont’d) TEEN IR B (AE)
Weighted Within More than More than
average 1 year or 1yearbut 2 years but Total
effective repayable less than less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate~ on demand 2 years 5 years Syears  cash flows amount
T 1EmeE 1ENER 2FNIER AMERS
BRI ZRER DHoE HHsE SEIE RESE KHEE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETR ARETR ARBTR  ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December 2016 (Restated) R2016%12A31E (E5)
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3474 £ B8 &
Trade and other payables EREAREBERN - 288,997 - - - 288,997 288,997
Amount due to a related company JES BB ARIFUA - 2,421 - - - 2,421 2,421
Amount due to a director ERNEZFHE - - 4,995 - - 4,995 4,995
Receipt in advance RS - 454,965 - - - 454,965 454,965
Convertible bond AR ES 14,64% - 480,071 - - 480,071 365,286
Rent and other deposits BeRkitke - 9,038 - - - 9,38 9,238
Bank borrowings RiTEE 5.64% 36,072 44,635 162,724 463,976 708,307 480,000
Other borrowings g 15.00% 248,333 - - - 248,333 235,000
Total @i 1,040,926 529,701 162,724 463,976 2,197,327 1,840,902
The amounts included above for variable interest rate BIPNEEHEZRERARAEE
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are subject 2R EBEEZR  BIL E3EITAS
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those MERZEEITAZEHEKERE 2N

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of each

reporting period.

ﬁo
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 38.£® T A (&)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments (c) eMIAZAAREGE
This note provides information about how the Group A FREERFTRAAIEERSES
determines fair values of various financial assets and HMEERERABGBEEAAEZS
financial liabilities. VA o
(i) Fair value of the financial liabilities that are () BEEEEEUNEFFEZ

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the financial liabilities are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of
these financial liabilities are determined (in particular,
the valuation technique(s) and inputs used) as well as
the level of the fair value hierarchy into which the fair
value measurements are categorised (Levels 1 to 3)
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities at measurement date;

Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

1 96 Suncity Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Cont’d)

(i)  Fair value of the financial liabilities that are

38.£WMIA (#)
(c) EMITAZAREHE ()

() HEEERELALLEFTE

measured at fair value on a recurring basis

(Cont’d)

Financial liabilities

TEMAE

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)
HEEMREEH AHE

ZEBEBZAAE (&)

Significant unobservable
inputs

EXATUEEGARE

Derivative financial instruments
classified as FVTPL

PEREBEANBABRZITESR
BT A

Binomial Model — in this approach,
certain parameters (note 30)
determined by management are
input into the Binomial Model
to derive the valuation of the
derivative financial instruments.

Estimation of share price volatility,
determined by reference to the
average historical volatility of
comparable companies
HETRERIE 2Z A LKA A
Z PR LR IR E

“IEARE -RUIEF  EEE
EEHET28 (HEE30) @A
“HEARBUBHEITESRTA
ZfEfE-

Certain parameters include:
— Share price
— Conversion price
— Risk-free rate
— Expected option life
— Expected dividend yield
— Expected volatility
aT2HEHE:
—R(E
— (g
— B [ ) =R
— TR B R M R
—TEHA AR B A X
—TEHAR I8

Sensitivity analysis

If the volatility of the Company’s share price had been
5% higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, there will be no impact on the Group’s post-
tax profits for the year ended 31 December 2017 (31
December 2016: post-tax loss for the year would have
increased/decreased by RMB2,207,000) (as a result of
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments).

BRERE DT

M AN E R ERE AT &
5% FiAEMAI#EREFT
B HASEEE2017F12H
318 IEF E o BRF &R A I &
2 (2016F12A318 : F Wk
MEeEREEN R ARE
2,207,0007t) (AfTE€mI A
ZRAREZH) -
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

38.2WM I A (&)

(c) EMITAZARMEE (H)

(Cont’d)

() Fair value of the financial liabilities that are () HAEEMREL LT EFE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis ZEHBEZALE(E)
(Cont’d)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1% F28 £3% @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETTL ARETTL ARETT
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 R2017E126318 2
December 2017 MREER
Financial liabilities tEaRE
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIE - - 439,938 439,938
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December #2016F12A31EZ A%
2016 (Restated) ER (Z5])
Financial liabilties ERER
Derivative financial instruments fTESMTIA - - 129,675 129,675

(i) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements

of financial liabilities

(i) TEEBERFIRAAEFEZ
#ER

Derivative financial

instruments

TESBMTIE

RMB’000

ARET T

Date of issuance (Restated) ZEITHE (E7)) 146,783

Total gains in profit or loss BamNz Wm B (17,704)

Exchange difference &+ =5 596
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 MR2016F12 H31H &%2017%1H1H

(Restated) (Z31) 129,675

Total losses in profit or loss BmAZEBRRE 329,855

Exchange difference e N =5 (19,592)

At 31 December 2017 A2017%F12H831H 439,938

Total gains/losses in profit or loss are included in
“change in fair value of derivative financial instruments”

in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.
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38.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 38.

(c) Fair value measurement of financial instruments
(Cont’d)
(iii) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (but fair value disclosures are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and other financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

There is no transfer among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3
during both years.

39.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 39.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

EWMIA (&)
(c) EMITAZAREHE ()

(ii}) I0 FEFRAF 12 2E (1R IEL
DA ERE)ARABEFAEZ
THEERTHEBZ AL
=]
ARAEFRR/NEE Y HRE
REHERAD Rz S REERAE
fEmBEc FRAEEEQAE
e

RWEFEARN B1H - E2f s
E3R 2 EL EER

METHEECABZHER

TRAVNAEERERSH < AEZS B
EREMFRCEYP -RETDELZA
BIhiE ERERERRKRERENA
SEGARERERTNELARELD
RengzafE-

Bank and
Provisions other  Convertible
for litigations  borrowings bond Total
TR
BN HitfeE  ARRES st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR¥TR AR%®Tx
(note 28) (note 29) (note 30)
(Biko8) (BFE29) (M#¥30)
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) 1201751 A1 8 (E51) 653,843 715,000 494,961 1,863,804
Financing cash flows RERERE (45,000) (143,319) - (188,319)
Reversal of provisions for litigations ~ FFFABE# (289,240) - - (289,240)
Settlement through a deposit paid FPENIEE MR (84,608) = = (84,603)
Change in fair value of derivative TESBMTIARAEE
financial instruments — — 329,855 329,865
Exchange gain ERAE - - (45,951) (45,951)
Interest expenses recognised ERRTEHAX - 45,866 72,180 118,046
At 31 December 2017 R2017512A31H 235,000 617,547 851,045 1,703,592
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40.ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

40. 4555 — K /B 2 =

200 suncity Group Holdings Limited

On 31 August 2016, the Group acquired the entire equity
interest in Sun Travel (formerly named as Suncity Group
Tourism Limited), a subsidiary engaged in tourism business at
a consideration of MOP1,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,256,000) (the “Acquisition”) from Mr. Chau, the major
shareholder and Executive Director, in order to expand its
business segment. The consideration has been settled by way
of issuing a promissory note with zero interest and repayable
within two years from the date of issue. All conditions of the
Acquisition were fulfilled and the completion of Acquisition took
place on 1 September 2016. The carrying value of the assets
acquired and liabilities recognised of Sun Travel at acquisition
date approximated to its fair value and as follows:

BIEREB DI MR2016F8H31H ' &
& 8 LA {8 P #51,500,0007T (48 & 7
AR #1,256,0007T) B £ ZRE R#H1T
EERALEWEBARGRE (FIBAGHRE
EREBRAR)MEIHRE([WESE
H]) B RARREIRERE - %R E
EEBABITHHBITMFERNERZTH
BERALEEIAIN WEEEZMEK
B EK KW SEEE R2016F9A81H
KRB RBAGKRE B RBEE
MEHREEZREEEEAABMRE -
BRATR :

2016
RMB’000
ARET T
Plant and equipment BB K& 912
Trade and other receivables JE ST AR SR % LA 8 WK 1,559
Pledged deposit EAEUIRER N 418
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIAS 2,394
Trade and other payables JE 15 BR SR % LA 8 51 3K (4,646)
Amount due to immediate holding company JERT B E1E R A R RE (3,420)
Net liabilities assumed FrAE 8555 (2,783)
Goodwill (Note) NG D) 4,039
1,256

Satisfied by: LATR B AT -
Promissory note issued BETARLER 1,256
Net cash inflow from acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—RHE QA7 2 FEEHRA 2,394
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40.ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont’d)

Included in the loss for the year ended 31 December 2016 is
RMB67,000 attributable to the additional business incurred by
Sun Travel. Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
includes RMB1,243,000 generated from Sun Travel.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, total
group revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 would
have been RMB1,109,825,000, and loss for the year ended 31
December 2016 would have been RMB716,058,000. The pro
forma information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of operations
of the Group that actually would have been achieved had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2016, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and loss of the Group
had Sun Travel been acquired at the beginning of the year 2016,
the directors of the Company have determined borrowing costs
based on the funding levels, credit ratings and debt/equity
position of the Group after the business combination.

Note: At date of Acquisition, goodwill of approximately RMB4,039,000 has been
allocated to an individual cash generating unit, comprising one subsidiary,
namely Sun Travel. As Sun Travel was at net liabilities position and in the
preliminary establishment stage as at 31 December 2016, the directors of the
Company consider that the recoverable amount of such cash generating unit
is less than the aggregate carrying amount of Sun Travel, and therefore the
entire goodwill has been impaired during the year ended 31 December 2016.

4. B —EHRELR (&)

RE £2016F12A831HILLFEEBEEE
ARG EE M EBREENBENA
R 67,0007 - & £2016F12A318 1k
FENRABREARGIREE S 2 AR
1,243,0007 °

fis Y2 B8 B R 2016F1 A1H T - B &=
20165F 1231 B IEF E 2 & B Wz 48
2% B AR#1,109,825,0007T & & &
2016F12A81B L FEZBEEAAR
#716,058,0007T ° & & BHE £ 5 B8 B
&R W R R BRI B 2016451 A1
HEANE B EREXD KA S L

BERREN2016F EF I UWE KGR
ERAKREZ BE]IBRAREBRERE X
RAEFDIRBEAKEREHAHERLZ
BMEKF EEFNRRES,BEXTE
EEERA

B 5 - PUKEEEA S 2L ARE4,039,000
TESREERBECELSEMN BIE—H
MiB AR (BNAFSHREE) o B A RS R R
2016F12ABTHE N TR EMR R KN H
AP ARREEFRARTREESE
By 2 A U [E] & AR R K 5 R i 2 4R BR T
B BREZE2016F12A31HILFESR
EHEEERE -
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41.DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. HERE QA

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group disposed
its entire interest in Vanilla Rose Investments Limited to a third
party at consideration of HK$100 (equivalent to approximately
RMB80). Net liabilities of the subsidiaries being disposed of at
the date of disposal were as follows:

REE2016F12A81BIEFE K&
E LA E100% T (HHE R4 A K80
JL) Al — % E =75 {1 & M Vanilla Rose
Investment LimitedZ & 3F 4 25 o H & M}
BARRNEERSMMNEEFENT:

2016

RMB’000

AR¥ET T

Property, plant and equipment M W E R 2

Other receivables Lt JE YK 295

Other payables Lt & {5 3K (6,050)

Bank overdrafts RITEZ (1)

Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR A 2 4,609

Net liabilities discharged EEEBEFE (1,145)

Total consideration B =

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B EWB ARz W 1,145
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of HENBAREEXEZRESRAFEE

subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of ERERESRASEFED 1

42.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, repayment to
loan from immediate holding company of approximately
HK$525,375,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB465,535,000)
with related interest payable of approximately HK$44,625,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB39,542,000) were settled
through issuing the convertible bond at consideration of
RMB503,979,000, gain from exchange of loan with convertible
bond of approximately RMB1,098,000 was recognised.
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43.RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group provides defined contribution plans to its employees
and executive officers in Macau, Hong Kong, the PRC and other
jurisdictions.

Macau

Employees employed by the Group in Macau are members of
government-managed Social Security Fund Scheme (the “SSF
Scheme”) operated by the Macau Government and the Group is
required to pay a monthly fixed contribution to the SSF Scheme
to fund the benefits.

Hong Kong

The Group operates Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of these
schemes were held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The cost charged to the profit
or loss represented contributions payable to the funds by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

The PRC

The Group contributes to the local municipal government
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees in the PRC.
The employers and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in the
scheme’s rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

43. R K BRI &

AEBERAEMLRRPT FE FEREM
AAERZEE RITHABREREH
et 8l

B

AEERRMEE RRFABTMEER
LENHEREESFE (HREEF
KRB AEEATARLRESE
ERERAREEEA -

58

AEEREMARBEZAERERR
VigEEET & RFAE 2 EET AR
AEHIZESHE  BAKE 2 EENH
FE3E - B m R Z A TR AR BIZE
ZERPIAZIRZ e RAE S I 2 K-

Bl
AEELMETEAERER R —HI
ITHBFRAKT IR - BEREBTA
& BT8R AT R AVt R A At B4 SR -
AEBEBBZENRFTEZE—BERR
IBETBIE IR E AR -
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

UVAERTZHBRARREEEE

As at 31 December As at
R12A31H 1 January
®1A1E
2017 2016 2016
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT AREFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(E3) (E5)
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Nx BEREE 19 - -
Investments in subsidiaries (Note(@)) ~ RHIB LA AIKRE (M:@)) 889,613 584,948 591,332
889,632 584,948 591,332
Current assets MEBEE
Prepayment and deposits BARERES 132 80 316,337
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRER S 34,567 85,870 57
34,699 85,950 316,394
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables H A e F0E 5,810 3,659 195,637
Amounts due to subsidiaries JES B 2 A TR 883,484 1,047,573 802,104
Borrowings 1 - - 1,085,761
Derivative financial instruments fTESRMTAE 439,938 129,675 =
Convertible bond AR E 2 411,107 = =
Current tax liabilities AR EEE 4,333 4,333 4,333
1,744,672 1,185,240 2,087,835
Net current liabilities mEE RFE (1,709,973) (1,099,290) (1,771,441
Total assets less current liabilities BESERTDHARE (820,341) (514,342) (1,180,109)
Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible bond AR &5 - 365,286 =
Net liabilities BEFE (820,341) (879,628) (1,180,109)
Capital and reserves BAR R E
Share capital \“ 525,734 524,712 123,644
Reserves (Note (b)) AR (1,346,075) (1,404,340 (1,303,753)
Total deficit BAiGSE (820,341) (879,628) (1,180,109)

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March
2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

Chau Cheok Wa
BRE
Director

=0
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)

a.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

UAERTZHBRARRFEEEE
(%)

a. RINBRARAKRE
TRESFIEIZFEAEEXE &

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would in the

opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars

of excessive length.

ENBENNBARNFE - NAF
EERR RUEGCHBARFER
EYAMAABAR TR

Place of Registered
establishment capital/issued
incorporation/ Place of and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries registration ~ operation  Legal form up share capital interest held by the Group Principal activities
AL/ ER iftge/ /B34
WEAFAR k3 Bewd AR RE&RA FREREZEERE EE
2017 2016
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B ME EE BE
% % % %
Access Achievement Limited The BVI ThePRC  Limited liabilities company US$10,000 100 - 100 - Investment holding
REABRES 1E BRAR 10,000%7 RERR
Sun Century Property The PRC The PRC  Wholly foreign owned RMB299,000,000 - 100 - 100  Property development and
enterprise property investment
i alET T NEBALE N NERERMERE
299,000,0007
Shenzhen Zirui The PRC The PRC Limited liabilities company  RMB21,000,000 - 100 - 100  Property development
o3 alei ilei ERAR ARH VELES
21,000,007
Shenzhen Sun Era Management  The PRC The PRC  Limited liabilities company ~ RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100  Property management
Company Limited
MITABERERARAR  H i BRAF ARH NEER
1,000,00070
Shenzhen Guang Long City The PRC The PRC  Limited liabilities company ~ RMB1,000,000 - 100 - 100  Property management
Gommercial Management
Company Limited
MITERABRERERRA TH i ERAF ARH NEER
1,000,00070
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44.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Cont’d)
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

a.

UVAERTZHBRARREEEE
(&)

a. RMBATRE (&)

Place of Registered
establishment capital/issued
incorporation/ Place of and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of subsidiaries registration ~ operation  Legal form up share capital  interest held by the Group Principal activities
HMARL/ AR ihase/BRF
WEARAR e fend  EEpA RE&RE AREREZEERE IZER
2017 2016
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
B ®BE ER WM&
% % % %
Chaohu Boshing Tourism The PRC The PRC  Wholly foreign owned US$7,000,000 - 100 - 100  Property development
Development Company Limited enterprise
SHEAREREARAR 98 lei NEBERE 7,000,000%7 ESES
Fushun Sun Era Property The PRC The PRC  Limited liabilities company  US$23,000,000/ - 90 - 90 Property development
Development Company Limited® US$20,700,000
BIEARREREHERS i alei BRAA 23,000,000%7,/ VELES
ERAF 20,700,000% ¢
Sun Travel Macau Macau Limited liabilities company ~ MOP1,500,000 - 100 - 100 Travel agency service
gt 15 A ERAR 1,500,000 F5% g ARSEE S
Suncity Group Management and  Macau Macau Limited liabilities company MOP25,000 - 100 - 100 Hotel and integrated
Consultancy Limited resort management and
consultancy service
AGASEEEERARAR AN RF ERAR 25,0005 % BERGAERNERR

# 10% of the registered capital of the subsidiary was not paid-up by the

non-controlling shareholder.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.

2006 suncity Group Holdings Limited
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

AN
N=NE

7% R ok B R

UAERTZHBRARRFEEEE

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (&)
(Cont’d)
b. RESERVES b. f#fE
Share
Share option Merger Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
RiEE  BRERG AHRE Rt BB H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 (Restated) 1201651818 (E51) 998,042 19,594 (752) (2,320,637) (1,303,753)
Loss and total comprehensive TEEBERZERX B
expense for the year - - - (501,656) (501,656)
Issue of rights shares BT R 401,069 = = = 401,069
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January #2016F12A318 k2017F
2017 (Restated) 1R1B (E31) 1,399,111 19,694 (752) (2,822,293) (1,404,340)
Profit and total comprehensive TEERFRZENEEE
income for the year - - - 31,341 31,341
Exercise of share options T RmRE 3,417 (925) - - 2,492
Recognition of share-based RN REREERA
compensation benefits - 24,432 - - 24,432
Forfeiture of share options R = (7,341) - 7,341 =
At 31 December 2017 ®2017%12A31H 1,402,528 35,760 (752) (2,783,611) (1,346,075)
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45.EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The following events took place subsequent to the end of the

reporting period:

(@)

208 suncity Group Holdings Limited

On 13 February 2018, Suncity Group Management and
Consultancy (Hoi An) Limited (“SGMC (HA)”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company entered into the Technical
Services Agreement with Hoi An South Development Ltd,
pursuant to which SGMC (HA) shall provide technical and
pre-opening services in relation to a casino and the food and
beverages outlets to be established in the integrated resort
project being developed in Hoi An, Quang Nam Province,
Vietnam. Details of which are disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 13 February 2018.

On 28 February 2018, the Group has fully settled the Bank
Claim with settlement amount of RMB235,000,000. Details
of which are disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 23 February 2018.

On 27 July 2017, Goal Summit Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into an acquisition
agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”) with Suncity
International Holdings Limited, a related company wholly
owned by Mr. Chau. Pursuant to the Acquisition Agreement,
the Group will acquire the entire equity interest of a
company, which indirectly owns approximately 34% effective
interest in a company which is engaged in an integrated
resort project being developed in Vietnam, subject to
certain conditions. The expected completion date was 31
December 2017, and was extended to 31 March 2018 on
2 January 2018 and 31 May 2018 on 29 March 2018. The
directors of the Company are still assessing the financial
impact of the acquisition.

Annual Report 2017
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20182130 KM £ B & 18
B (g2%) - ABRAFA([EEE
ZHB AT (RRARIZE2EME
A A]) 2 Hoi An South Development
LtdFT S BT iR ek - BUL - BB S
ZH B AR EH ERNBEERE R
RS ERNIEER AR T
IREEIS 2 B RS PR AR R A K B BT AR
B FIBEBEEMA R AIR2018F2A
13Tz AE-

R2018F2H23H A& EE B &
HERTRE BE2BEAARE
235,000,0007T ° ¥ 1Ef5 & B A A ]
R2018F2 A23H I3 2 A4 o

R201747A27H » Goal Summit
Limited (AR R 22 EMEAFR])HE
NG HEIRERER AR (—HH
ArEsBEHRE 2BENT)TMK
B ([WEHR]) - BREBERED
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BRIIBE 2 R AHI34%% ) 2 23
et HAEGE THRGEEXE 7
AI{EE - TRHRSERL H Bi /5201712 5
318 MBE R2018F1A2R L H =
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